
  

 

  Location: Shields-Carter Room, Brookens Administrative 
Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 61802 
Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557 

   Date/Time: September 20, 2023/9:00 AM 

 

  

This meeting will be held in person, with remote access. Members of 
the public may attend in person or watch the meeting live through 
this link. The recording will be posted later among archives at 
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhddb/MeetingInfo.php 

 

Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
Meeting Agenda 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557 Meeting ID: 815 5912 4557   1-312-626-6799 

and In-Person at the Shields-Carter Room of Brookens Administrative Building 

I. Call to order 
II. Roll call 

III. Approval of Agenda* 
IV. CCDDB and CCMHB Schedules, CCDDB Timeline (pages 3-8) No action is needed.  
V. CCDDB Acronyms and Glossary (pages 9-16) No action is needed. 

VI. Citizen Input/Public Participation All are welcome to attend the Board’s meeting to 
observe and to offer thoughts during this time. The board may question them, but no 
further action or discussion is allowed. The Chair may limit public participation to 5 
minutes per person and/or 20 minutes total. 

VII. Chairperson’s Comments – Ms. Vicki Niswander 
VIII. Executive Director’s Comments – Lynn Canfield 

IX. Approval of CCDDB Board Meeting Minutes (pages 17-22)* 
Minutes from the CCDDB’s regular meeting on 7/19/23 and CCDDB-CCMHB Joint Study 
Session on 8/16/23 are included for approval. Action is requested. 

X. Vendor Invoice List (pages 23- 28)* 
Action is requested, to ratify the “Vendor Invoice List” and place it on file. Also included 
for information are Additional Details for these expenditures. 

XI. Staff Reports (pages 29-46) 
Included for information only are reports from Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Stephanie 
Howard-Gallo, Shandra Summerville, and Chris Wilson. 

XII. New Business 
a) CCDDB Allocation Priorities and Decision Support Criteria (pages 47-61) 

A briefing memorandum presents DRAFT funding allocation priorities and decision 
support criteria for the Program Year 2025. No action is requested. 

b) I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Allocation Priorities (pages 62-77) 
A briefing memorandum presents DRAFT funding allocation priorities and decision 
support criteria for the Program Year 2025. No action is requested. 

c) PY2024 Allocation Charts (pages 78-96) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhddb/MeetingInfo.php
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557


  

 

  Location: Shields-Carter Room, Brookens Administrative 
Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 61802 
Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557 

   Date/Time: September 20, 2023/9:00 AM 

 

  

This meeting will be held in person, with remote access. Members of 
the public may attend in person or watch the meeting live through 
this link. The recording will be posted later among archives at 
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhddb/MeetingInfo.php 

 

For information only: charts organizing PY24 I/DD contracts by priority, 
population, and service type; a list of all programs, with brief descriptions of each; 
and charts showing sources of revenue for each program. 

XIII. Old Business 
a) Revised 2024 Budgets (pages 97-122)* 

A decision memorandum suggests revisions to 2024 budgets and requests 
approval of these. For information are the CCMHB budget, background details, 
and budget documents prepared for the County. Action is requested. 

b) Evaluation Capacity Building Project 
An oral update will be provided by a UIUC Family Resiliency Center representative. 

c) Expo Update (pages 123-126) 
For information only are a briefing memo from the Expo Coordinators and 
promotional materials which are being shared widely. 

d) PY2023 Q4 DD Program Service Reports (pages 127-145) 
For information only are PY23 Fourth Quarter Service Activity Reports on funded 
agency programs. These are not cumulative. 

e) PY2023 DD Program Claims Data (pages 146-158) 
For information only are charts showing full year service claims data. 

f) 211 Quarterly Update for Champaign County (pages 159-180) 
For information only is an update on Champaign County 211 call activity reported 
by the PATH for the period of April 1 to June 30. 

XIV. Successes and Other Agency Information 
Providers and self-advocates are invited to report on successes. Agency representatives 
may share other agency information. The Chair may limit input to 5 minutes per 
individual or agency and/or total time to 20 minutes. 

XV. County Board Input 
XVI. Champaign County Mental Health Board Input 

XVII. Board Announcements and Input (pages181-182) 
For information and discussion are a chart of possible Board-to-Board liaison 
assignments and a DRAFT of liaison guidelines. 

XVIII. Adjournment 
* Board action is requested. 

For accessible documents or assistance with any portion of this packet, please contact us 
(kim@ccmhb.org). 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhddb/MeetingInfo.php
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org


 
 

CCDDB 2023-2024 Meeting Schedule 
9:00AM Wednesday after the third Monday of each month 

Brookens Administrative Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557   

 
September 20, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room 
September 27, 2023 5:45PM – Shields-Carter Room – joint study 
session with the CCMHB CANCELLED 
October 18, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room 
October 25, 2023 5:45PM – Shields-Carter Room – joint meeting with 
the CCMHB 
November 15, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room (off cycle) 
December 20, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room (off cycle) - tentative 
January 17, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room  
February 21, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room  
March 20, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room  
March 27, 2024 5:45PM – Shields-Carter Room – joint study session 
with the CCMHB 
April 17, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
May 22, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room  

This schedule is subject to change due to unforeseen circumstances. 
 

Please email stephanie@ccmhb.org to confirm meetings or to request alternative 
 format documents, language access, or other accommodation needed to participate. 
All meetings and study sessions include time for members of the public to address the Board. 

Meetings are posted in advance and recorded and archived at 
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php 

 
Public Input: All are welcome to attend the Board's meetings, whether virtually or in person, to observe 

and to offer thoughts during the "Public Participation" period of the meeting. For support to participate in a 
meeting, let us know how we might help by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org. If the time of the meeting is 
not convenient, you may still communicate with the Board by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org any written 

comments which you would like us to read to the Board during the meeting.  Your feedback is 
appreciated but be aware that the time for each person's comments may be limited to five minutes. 

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);


 
 

CCMHB 2023-2024 Meeting Schedule  
5:45PM Wednesday after the third Monday of each month  

Brookens Administrative Building, 1776 East Washington Street, Urbana, IL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682 (if it is an option) 

 
September 20, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room 
September 27, 2023 – Joint Study Session w CCDDB - CANCELLED 
October 18, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room 
October 25, 2023 – Joint Meeting with CCDDB - Shields-Carter Room 
November 15, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room 
December 20, 2023 – Shields-Carter Room (off cycle) - tentative 
January 17, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
January 24, 2024 – Study Session - Shields-Carter Room 
February 21, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
February 28, 2024 – Study Session - Shields-Carter Room 
March 20, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
March 27, 2024 – Joint Study Session w CCDDB - Shields-Carter 
April 17, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
April 24, 2024 – Study Session - Shields-Carter Room 
May 15, 2024 – Study Session - Shields-Carter Room 
May 22, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
June 19, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 
July 17, 2024 – Shields-Carter Room 

 
This schedule is subject to change due to unforeseen circumstances. 

 
Please email stephanie@ccmhb.org to confirm meetings or to request alternative 

format documents, language access, or other accommodation needed to participate. 
Meetings are archived at http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/MHBMeetingDocs.php 

 
Public Input: All meetings and study sessions include time for members of the public to address the Board. 

All are welcome to attend meetings, whether using the Zoom options or in person, to observe and to offer 
thoughts during "Public Participation". For support to participate, let us know how we might help by 

emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org. If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may still communicate with the 
Board by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org any written comments which you would like us to read to the Board 

during the meeting. Your feedback is appreciated but be aware that the time for each person's comments may be 
limited to five minutes. 

4

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/MHBMeetingDocs.php
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);


IMPORTANT DATES 
2023-24 Meeting Schedule with Subjects, Agency and Staff 

Deadlines, and PY25 Allocation Timeline 
This schedule offers dates and subject matter of meetings of the Champaign County 
Developmental Disabilities Board. Included are tentative dates for steps in the funding process 
for PY25 and deadlines related to PY23 and PY24 agency contracts. Subjects are not exclusive 
to any given meeting, as other matters requiring Board attention may be addressed. Study 
sessions may be scheduled on topics raised at meetings or by staff, or in conjunction with the 
CCMHB. Regular meetings are held at 9AM; joint study sessions and meetings at 
5:45PM; dates and times are subject to change and may be confirmed with Board staff.  
 
6/1/23   For contracts with a PY23-PY24 term, all updated 

PY24 forms should be completed and submitted by this date. 
 
6/17/23   Deadline for agency application/contract revisions 

Deadline for agency letters of engagement with CPA firms 
PY2024 contracts completed 
 

6/21/23 Regular Board Meeting: Draft FY2024 Budgets 
 

6/30/23 Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, or Compilations due 
(only for those with calendar fiscal year, per Special Provision) 

 
7/19/23 Regular Board Meeting: Election of Officers 
 
8/16/23 Regular Board Meeting - CANCELLED 
 
8/16/23   Joint Study Session with CCMHB (5:45PM) 

I/DD System Planning with Self-Advocates  
 
8/25/23   Agency PY2023 4th Quarter Reports, CLC Progress  

  Reports, and Annual Performance Measure Reports due 
 
9/20/23 Regular Board Meeting 

FY2024 Budgets 
Draft Program Year 2025 Allocation Criteria 
 

9/27/23   Joint Study Session with MHB - CANCELLED 
 
 

5



10/18/23 Regular Board Meeting 
Draft Three Year Plan 2022-24 with 2024 Objectives 

 
10/25/23 Joint Meeting with CCMHB at 5:45PM 

PY25 I/DD Special Initiatives Priorities and RFPs 
 
10/27/23   Agency PY2024 1st Quarter Reports due 
 
11/15/23 Regular Board Meeting (off cycle) 

Approve Three Year Plan, PY25 Allocation Criteria 
 
12/1/23    Public Notice of Funding Availability to be published by 

this date, giving at least 21-day notice of application period. 
 
12/20/23 Regular Board Meeting (off cycle) - tentative 
 
12/22/23   Online System opens for Applications for PY2025 Funding 
 
12/31/23   Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, or Compilations due 
 
1/17/24   Regular Board Meeting 
 
1/26/24   Agency PY24 2nd Quarter and CLC progress reports due 
 
2/12/24   Deadline for submission of applications for PY25 funding 

(Online system will not accept any forms after 4:30PM) 
 
2/21/24                   Regular Board Meeting  

Discuss list of PY25 Applications, Review Process 
 
3/20/24   Regular Board Meeting 
   Discussion of PY25 Funding Requests 
 
3/27/24                  Joint Study Session with CCMHB (5:45PM) 
   Discussion of PY25 I/DD Special Initiatives 
 
4/10/24   Program summaries released to Board, posted online with 

CCDDB April 17 meeting agenda and packet 
 
4/17/24   Regular Board Meeting 

Board Review, Staff Summaries of Funding Requests  

6



 
4/26/24   Agency PY2024 3rd Quarter Reports due 
 
5/10/24                   Allocation recommendations released to Board, posted online 

with CCDDB May 22 board meeting packet 
  
5/22/24    Regular Board Meeting 

Allocation Decisions; Authorize Contracts for PY25 
 
6/1/24   For contracts with a PY24-PY25 term, all updated PY25 

forms should be completed and submitted by this date. 
 
6/18/24    Deadline for agency application/contract revisions 
    Deadline for agency letters of engagement w/ CPA firms 
 
6/19/24                  Regular Board Meeting 

Draft FY2025 Budget 
 
6/21/24    PY2025 agency contracts completed. 
 
6/30/24                  Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, or Compilations due 

(only applies to those with calendar FY, check contract) 
 
7/17/24                  Regular Board Meeting  

  
8/21/24             Regular Board Meeting - tentative 
 
8/30/24   Agency PY2024 4th Quarter reports, CLC progress 

reports, and Annual Performance Measure Reports due 
 
9/18/24                   Regular Board Meeting 

Community Needs Assessment Report 
Draft Three Year Plan 2025-27 with 2025 Objectives 
Approve Draft FY2025 Budgets 

 
9/25/24                   Joint Study Session Joint with CCMHB (5:45PM) 
 
10/16/24                 Joint Meeting with CCMHB (5:45PM) 

I/DD Special Initiatives  
 
10/23/24                 Regular Board Meeting 

7



DRAFT Program Year 2026 Allocation Criteria 
 
10/25/24   Agency PY2025 First Quarter Reports due 
 
11/20/24                 Regular Board Meeting  

Approve Three Year Plan with One Year Objectives 
Approve PY26 Allocation Criteria 

 
11/29/24   Public Notice of Funding Availability to be published by 
    date, giving at least 21-day notice of application period. 
 
12/18/24                 Regular Board Meeting– tentative 
 
12/20/24    Online system opens for applications for PY26 funding. 
 
12/31/24    Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, Compilations due. 
 

8



Agency and Program acronyms commonly used by the CCDDB 
CC – Community Choices 
CCDDB – Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board 
CCHS – Champaign County Head Start, a program of the Regional Planning Commission 
CCMHB – Champaign County Mental Health Board 
CCRPC – Champaign County Regional Planning Commission 
CUAN – Champaign-Urbana Autism Network 
DSC - Developmental Services Center 
DSN – Down Syndrome Network 
IAG – Individual Advocacy Group 
ISC – Independent Service Coordination Unit 
FDC – Family Development Center 
PACE – Persons Assuming Control of their Environment, Inc. 
PCMHC – Piatt County Mental Health Center 
RCI – Rosecrance Central Illinois 
RPC – Champaign County Regional Planning Commission 
 
Glossary of Other Terms and Acronyms  
 
211 – Similar to 411 or 911. Provides telephone access to information and referral services. 
 
AAC – Augmentative and Alternative Communication 
 
ABA – Applied Behavioral Analysis. An intensive behavioral intervention targeted to autistic 
children and youth and others with associated behaviors. 
 
ABLE Act – Achieving a Better Life Experience Act. A tax advantage investment program 
which allows people with blindness or disabilities the option to save for disability related 
expenses without putting their federal means-tested benefits at risk. 
 
ACA – Affordable Care Act 
 
ACMHAI – Association of Community Mental Health Authorities of Illinois 
 
ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
ADD – Attention Deficit Disorder 
 
ADHD – Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder 
 
ADL – Activities of Daily Living 
 
ASD – Autism Spectrum Disorder 
 
ASL – American Sign Language 
 

9



ASQ – Ages and Stages Questionnaire.  Screening tool used to evaluate a child’s 
developmental and social emotional growth. 
 
ASQ-SE – Ages and Stages Questionnaire – Social Emotional screen. 
 
BD – Behavior Disorder 
 
BSP – Behavior Support Plan 
 
CANS – Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths. The CANS is a multi-purpose tool 
developed to support decision making, including level of care, service planning, and 
monitoring of outcomes of services.  
 
CARF- Council on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities 
 
CC – Champaign County 
 
CDS – Community Day Services, formerly “Developmental Training” 
 
CFC – Child and Family Connections Agency 
 
CFCM – Conflict Free Case Management 
 
C-GAF – Children’s Global Assessment of Functioning 
 
CILA – Community Integrated Living Arrangement 
 
CLC – Cultural and Linguistic Competence 
 
CMS – Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, the federal agency administering these 
programs. 
 
CNA – Certified Nursing Assistant 
 
COTA – Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant 
 
CP – Cerebral Palsy 
 
CQL – Council on Quality and Leadership 
 
CSEs - Community Service Events. A category of service measurement on the Part II 
Utilization form. Activity to be performed should also be described in the Part I Program Plan 
form-Utilization section. It relates to the number of public events (including mass media and 
articles), consultations with community groups and/or caregivers, classroom presentations, 
and small group workshops to promote a program or educate the community. Activity 
(meetings) directly related to planning such events may also be counted here. Actual direct 
service to clientele is counted elsewhere.  
 

10



CUSR – Champaign Urbana Special Recreation, offered by the park districts. 
 
CY – Contract Year, runs from July to following June. For example, CY18 is July 1, 2017 to 
June 30, 2018. May also be referred to as Program Year – PY. Most contracted agency Fiscal 
Years are also from July 1 to June 30 and may be interpreted as such when referenced in a 
Program Summary e.g.  FY18.   
 
DCFS – (Illinois) Department of Children and Family Services. 
 
DD – Developmental Disability 
 
DDD – Division of Developmental Disabilities 
 
DHFS – (Illinois) Department of Healthcare and Family Services. Previously known as IDPA 
(Illinois Department of Public Aid) 
 
DHS – (Illinois) Department of Human Services 
 
DOJ – (US) Department of Justice 
 
DRS – (Illinois) Division of Rehabilitation Services 
 
DSM – Diagnostic Statistical Manual. 
 
DSP – Direct Support Professional 
 
DT – Developmental Training, now “Community Day Services” 
 
DT – Developmental Therapy, Developmental Therapist 
 
Dx – Diagnosis 
 
ED – Emotional Disorder 
 
EI – Early Intervention 
 
EPDS – Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale – Screening tool used to identify mothers with 
newborn children who may be at risk for prenatal depression. 
 
EPSDT – Early Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment. Intended to provide 
comprehensive and preventative health care services for children under age 21 who are 
enrolled in Medicaid. 
 
ED – Emergency Department 
 
ER – Emergency Room 
 
FAPE – Free and Appropriate Public Education 

11



 
FFS – Fee For Service. Type of contract that uses performance-based billings as the method 
of payment.  
 
FOIA – Freedom of Information Act. 
 
FQHC – Federally Qualified Health Center 
 
FTE – Full Time Equivalent is the aggregated number of employees supported by the 
program.  Can include employees providing direct services (Direct FTE) to clients and indirect 
employees such as supervisors or management (Indirect FTE). 
 
FY – Fiscal Year, which for the County is January 1 through December 31. 
 
GAF – Global Assessment of Functioning. A subjective rating scale used by clinicians to rate 
a client’s level of social, occupational and psychological functioning.  The scale included in the 
DSM-IV has been replaced in the DSM-V by another instrument. 
 
HBS – Home Based Services, also referred to as HBSS or HBSP 
 
HCBS – Home and Community Based Services 
 
HI – Hearing Impairment or Health Impairment 
 
Hx – History 
 
ICAP – Inventory for Client and Agency Planning 
 
ICDD – Illinois Council for Developmental Disabilities 
 
ICFDD – Intermediate Care Facility for the Developmentally Disabled 
 
ID – Intellectual Disability 
 
IDEA – Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
 
IDHS – Illinois Department of Human Services 
 
IDOC – Illinois Department of Corrections 
 
IDPH – Illinois Department of Public Health 
 
IDT – Interdisciplinary Team 
 
IEP – Individualized Education Plan 
 
IFSP – Individualized Family Service Plan 
 

12



IPLAN - Illinois Project for Local Assessment of Needs. The Illinois Project for Local 
Assessment of Needs (IPLAN) is a community health assessment and planning process that 
is conducted every five years by local health jurisdictions in Illinois. Based on the Assessment 
Protocol for Excellence in Public Health (APEX-PH) model, IPLAN is grounded in the core 
functions of public health and addresses public health practice standards. The completion of 
IPLAN fulfills most of the requirements for Local Health Department certification under 
Illinois Administrative Code Section 600.400: Certified Local Health Department Code Public 
Health Practice Standards. The essential elements of IPLAN are: 

1. an organizational capacity assessment; 
2. a community health needs assessment; and 
3. a community health plan, focusing on a minimum of three priority health problems. 

 
I&R – Information and Referral 
 
ISBE – Illinois State Board of Education 
 
ISC – Independent Service Coordination 
 
ISP – Individual Service Plan, Individual Success Plan   
 
ISSA – Independent Service & Support Advocacy 
 
LCPC – Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor 
 
LCSW – Licensed Clinical Social Worker 
 
LD – Learning Disability 
 
LGTBQ – Lesbian, Gay, Bi-Sexual, Transgender, Queer 
 
LPC – Licensed Professional Counselor 
 
LPN – Licensed Practical Nurse 
 
MCO – Managed Care Organization 
 
MDC – Multidisciplinary Conference 
 
MDT – Multidisciplinary Team 
 
MH – Mental Health 
 
MHP - Mental Health Professional, a bachelors level staff providing services under the 
supervision of a QMHP. 
 
MI – Mental Illness 
 
MIDD – A dual diagnosis of Mental Illness and Developmental Disability. 

13



 
MSW – Master of Social Work 
 
NACBHDD – National Association of County Behavioral Health and Developmental 
Disability Directors 
 
NACO – National Association of Counties 
 
NCI – National Core Indicators 
 
NOS – Not Otherwise Specified 
 
NTPC -- NON - Treatment Plan Clients. Persons engaged in a given quarter with case records 
but no treatment plan. May include: recipients of material assistance, non-responsive outreach 
cases, cases closed before a plan was written because the client did not want further service 
beyond first few contacts, or cases assessed for another agency. It is a category of service 
measurement, providing an actual number of those served in the prior program year and a 
projection for the coming program year on the Part II utilization form. The actual activity to 
be performed should also be described in the Part I Program Form, Utilization section. Similar 
to TPCs, they may be divided into two groups: New TPCS – first contact within any quarter 
of the plan year; Continuing NTPCs - those served before the first day of July and actively 
receiving services within the first quarter of the new program year. The first quarter of the 
program year is the only quarter in which Continuing NTPCs are reported. 
 
OMA – Open Meetings Act. 
 
OT – Occupational Therapy, Occupational Therapist 
 
OTR – Registered Occupational Therapist 
 
PAS – Pre-Admission Screening 
 
PASS – Plan for Achieving Self Support (Social Security Administration) 
 
PCI – Parent Child Interaction groups. 
 
PCP – Person Centered Planning, Primary Care Physician 
 
PDD – Pervasive Developmental Disorders 
 
PLAY – Play and Language for Autistic Youngsters. PLAY is an early intervention approach 
that teaches parents ways to interact with their child who has autism that promotes 
developmental progress. 
 
PRN – when necessary, as needed (i.e., medication) 
 
PSH – Permanent Supportive Housing 
 

14



PT – Physical Therapy, Physical Therapist 
 
PTSD – Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder 
 
PUNS – Prioritization of Urgency of Need for Services. PUNS is a database implemented by 
the Illinois Department of Human Services to assist with planning and prioritization of 
services for individuals with disabilities based on level of need. An individual’s classification 
of need may be emergency, critical, or planning. 
 
PY – Program Year, runs from July to following June. For example, PY18 is July 1, 2017 to 
June 30, 2018. May also be referred to as Contract Year (CY) and is often the Agency Fiscal 
Year (FY).  
 
QIDP – Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional 
 
QMHP – Qualified Mental Health Professional, a Master’s level clinician with field experience 
who has been licensed.  
 
RCCSEC – Rural Champaign County Special Education Cooperative 
 
RD – Registered Dietician 
 
RN – Registered Nurse 
 
RT – Recreational Therapy, Recreational Therapist 
 
SAMHSA – Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, a division of the 
federal Department of Health and Human Services  
 
SASS – Screening Assessment and Support Services is a state program that provides crisis 
intervention for children and youth on Medicaid or uninsured.  
 
SCs - Service Contacts/Screening Contacts. The number of phone and face-to-face contacts 
with eligible persons who may or may not have open cases in the program. Can include 
information and referral contacts or initial screenings/assessments or crisis services. May 
sometimes be referred to as a service encounter (SE). It is a category of service measurement 
providing a picture of the volume of activity in the prior program year and a projection for 
the coming program year on the Part II form, and the activity to be performed should be 
described in the Part I Program Plan form-Utilization section. 
 
SEDS – Social Emotional Development Specialist 
 
SEL – Social Emotional Learning 
 
SF – Service Facilitation, now called “Self-Direction Assistance” 
 
SH – Supportive Housing 
 

15



SIB – Self-Injurious Behavior 
 
SIB-R – Scales of Independent Behavior-Revised 
 
SLI – Speech/Language Impairment  
 
SLP – Speech Language Pathologist 
 
SPD – Sensory Processing Disorder 
 
SSA – Social Security Administration 
 
SSDI – Social Security Disability Insurance 
 
SSI – Supplemental Security Income 
 
SST – Support Services Team 
 
SUD – Substance Use Disorder 
 
SW – Social Worker 
 
TIC – Trauma Informed Care 
 
TPC – Transition Planning Committee 
 
TPCs - Treatment Plan Clients - service recipients with case records and treatment plans. It is 
a category of service measurement providing an actual number of those served in the prior 
program year and a projection for the coming program year on the Part II Utilization form, 
and the actual activity to be performed should also be described in the Part I Program Plan 
form -Utilization section. Treatment Plan Clients may be divided into two groups: Continuing 
TPCs are those with treatment plans written prior to the first day of July and actively receiving 
services within the first quarter of the new program year (the first quarter of the program year 
is the only quarter in which this data is reported); New NTPCs are those newly served, with 
treatment plans, in any quarter of the program year.  

VI – Visual Impairment 

VR – Vocational Rehabilitation 

WHODAS – World Health Organization Disability Assessment Schedule. It is a generic 
assessment instrument for health and disability and can be used across all diseases, including 
mental and addictive disorders.  The instrument covers 6 domains: Cognition, Mobility; Self-
care; Getting along; Life activities; and Participation. Replaces the Global Assessment of 
Functioning in the DSM-V. 

WIOA – Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

16



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT 
OF PERSONS WITH A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY 

(CCDDB) 
 MEETING 

 
Minutes July 19, 2023 

This meeting was held at the Brookens Administrative Center 
1776 E. Washington St., Urbana, IL  61802 

 and with remote access via Zoom. 
 

9:00 a.m. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Anne Robin, Kim Fisher, Vicki Niswander, Georgiana Schuster 
 
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Deb Ruesch 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Lynn Canfield, Shandra Summerville, 

Stephanie Howard-Gallo, Chris Wilson 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sarah Perry, Danielle Matthews, Jami Olsen, Annette Becherer, 

Laura Bennett, Patty Walters, DSC; Mel Liong, PACE; Becca 
Obuchowski, Hannah Sheets, Community Choices; Annie Bruno, 
The Autism Project; Jessica McCann, RPC; Leah Taylor, 
Champaign County Board 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Dr. Robin called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Roll call was taken and a quorum was present.    
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
An agenda was available for review and approved by a unanimous vote.  
 
 

17



 
CCDDB and CCMHB SCHEDULES/TIMELINES: 
 
Updated copies of CCDDB and CCMHB meeting schedules and CCDDB allocation timelines 
were included in the packet.   
 
ACRONYMS and GLOSSARY: 
 
A list of commonly used acronyms was included for information. 
 
CITIZEN INPUT/PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
None. 
 
PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS: 
 
Dr. Robin announced her son Miles Robin has passed away. This will be Dr. Robin’s last meeting 
serving as President. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS: 
 
Director Canfield gave some updates on Association of Community Mental Health Authorities of 
Illinois (ACMHAI) recent activities. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Minutes from the 6/21/2023 board meeting were included in the packet.  
 

MOTION: Ms. Niswander moved to approve the minutes from the 
6/21/23 CCDDB meeting. Dr. Fisher seconded the motion.  A roll call 
vote was taken.  The motion passed. 

 
VENDOR INVOICE LIST: 
 
The Vendor Invoice List was included in the Board packet.  A detailed history report was 
included as well. 
 

MOTION:   Dr. Fisher to accept the Vendor Invoice List as presented 
in the packet.   Ms. Niswander seconded the motion.  A roll call vote 
was taken and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Staff reports were included in the packet from Kim Bowdry, Stephanie Howard-Gallo, Shandra 
Summerville, and Chris Wilson. 
 

18



 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Evaluation Capacity Building Project: 
An oral update from Jacinda Dariotis was provided on the project undertaken by the UIUC 
Family Resiliency Center to date.  Relevant pages from the Proposal were included in the packet.  
Board members were given an opportunity to ask questions following the presentation. 
 
UIUC Life Home Tour and Resources: 
Dr. Samuel A. Olatunji and Harshal Prab Mahajan from the Human Factors and Aging 
Laboratory/McKechnie Family LIFE Home provided a virtual tour and information about the 
Life Home project.  Board members were given an opportunity to ask questions following the 
presentation. 
 
I/DD Special Initiatives Fund: 
A Briefing Memorandum provided an update on PY24 IDDSI contracts and draft priorities for 
PY25. 
 
Election of Officers: 
The CCDDB By-Laws were included in the packet. 
 

MOTION: Ms. Schuster moved for Ms. Vicki Niswander to serve as 
President to the CCDDB for the coming year.  Dr. Fisher seconded the 
motion.  A voice vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
MOTION:  Dr. Robin moved for Ms. Georgina Schuster to serve as 
Secretary to the CCDDB for the coming year.  Dr. Fisher seconded 
the motion.  A voice vote was taken and the motion passed. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Quarterly Update on Community Health Plan: 
An overview of current priorities and activities was included in the packet for information only. 
 
Successes and Agency Information: 
Updates were provided by Annette Becherer from DSC and Becca Obuchowski from Community 
Choices. 
 
County Board Input: 
Ms. Leah Taylor from the Champaign County Board provided an update on potentially available 
ARPA funds. 
 
CCMHB Input: 
The CCMHB will meet this evening.  
 
BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

19



 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:23 a.m. 
Respectfully Submitted by: Stephanie Howard-Gallo 
 
*Minutes are in draft form and are subject to CCDDB approval. 

20



______________________________________________________________________________ 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES 

BOARD AND  

MENTAL HEALTH BOARD  

JOINT 

STUDY SESSION 

 
Minutes—August 16, 2023 

This meeting was held remotely and at the Brookens Administrative Center, Urbana, IL 

 

5:45 p.m. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Joe Omo-Osagie, Matt Hausmann, Molly McLay, Jane Sprandel, 

Jen Straub, Jon Paul Youakim, Anne Robin, Vicki Niswander, 

Georgiana Schuster, Kim Fisher 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Lynn Canfield, Stephanie Howard-

Gallo, Shandra Summerville, Chris Wilson 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Kentrell Graham, Danielle Kalakowski, Darrin Chatman, Patty 

Walters, Vickie Tolf, Danielle Matthews, DSC; Becca Obuchowski, 

Jennifer Buoy, Hannah Sheets, Jasmine H., Community Choices; 

Angela Yost, Jessica McCann, CCRPC; Susan Fowler, Citizen 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

Dr. Jon Paul Youakim called the meeting to order at 5:48 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

Roll call was taken and a quorum was present. 

 

 

CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

 

None. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

The agenda was in the packet for review.   

 

21



PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS: 

 

None. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS: 

 

None. 

 

STUDY SESSION: 

Study Session - “Preferences of Champaign County Residents with I/DD”  

 

To assist the boards in planning and prioritizing for the next funding cycle, advocates led the 

discussion. Participants from Community Choices’ Human Rights & Advocacy Group: Eric 

Beasley, Jennifer Buoy, Jasmine Hague, and Tobie Wood Representing Advocates at DSC (new 

group name TBD): Darrin Chatman, Kentrell Graham, and Danielle Kolakowski. Included in the 

packet to support this discussion and subsequent planning, were memorandum collecting input 

from people with I/DD and on their behalf.  

 

Board members were given the opportunity to ask questions following the presentation. 

 

BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m. 

 

Respectfully 

Submitted by:  Stephanie Howard-Gallo 

CCMHB/CCDDB Staff 

 

 

 

  

22



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
VE

N
D

O
R

 IN
VO

IC
E 

LI
ST

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
0
8
:
4
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
D
E
S
C
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
C
H
A
M
P
A
I
G
N
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
1
4
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
1
4
8
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
4
6
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I
N
C

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
7
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
7
0
8
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
1
4
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
3
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
3
5
1
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
,
2
6
7
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
O
F

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
3
-
0
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
2
8
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
5
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
5
8
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
3
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
1
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
1
2
3
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
1
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
1
7
0
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
3
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
3
4
0
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
8
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
8
3
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
8
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
8
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
8
6
6
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
VE

N
D

O
R

 IN
VO

IC
E 

LI
ST

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
0
8
:
4
1

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
D
E
S
C
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
,
7
6
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

ET
A

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y 

FO
R

 2
02

3 
07

 T
O

 2
02

3 
07

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
3

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

2
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
5
0
2
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
 
0
7
/
0
5
/
2
3
 
 
G
E
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
9
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
9
2
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
2
3
 
D
D
B
 
 
J
u
l
2
3
 
D
D
B
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
9
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
9
2
6
.
0
0

  2
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
 
5
0
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
&
 
G
R
A
N
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
8
 
 
 
4
1
1
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
1
4
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
1
4
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
8
 
D
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
P
C
P
 
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
5
 
 
 
4
1
1
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
0
2
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
5
 
C
u
s
t
o
m
i
z
e
d
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
0
 
 
 
4
1
1
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
,
5
2
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
0
 
I
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
 
 
4
1
1
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
3
5
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
R
e
c
r
u
i
t
m
e
n
t
 
&
 
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
5
 
 
 
4
1
1
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
7
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
,
0
6
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
5
 
S
e
l
f
-
D
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
S
u
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
4
 
 
 
4
1
1
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
8
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
4
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
4
 
C
l
i
n
i
c
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
1
 
 
 
4
1
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
7
,
4
4
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
2
 
 
 
4
1
1
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
1
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
1
,
6
1
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
2
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
1
 
 
 
4
1
1
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
1
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
,
7
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
L
i
v
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
2
 
 
 
4
1
1
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
8
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
7
,
6
0
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
2
 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
5
 
 
 
4
1
1
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
5
,
1
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
5
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
3
 
 
 
4
1
1
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
3
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
6
,
4
5
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
3
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
 
0
7
/
0
5
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
7
 
 
 
4
1
9
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
3
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
2
,
8
0
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
1
4
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
7
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
 
0
7
/
1
9
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
3
-
0
8
6
 
 
 
4
2
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
5
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
,
7
6
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
2
8
2
3
A
 
 
D
D
2
3
-
0
8
6
 
W
o
r
k
f
o
r
c
e
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

25



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

ET
A

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y 

FO
R

 2
02

3 
07

 T
O

 2
02

3 
07

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
3

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
0
0
0
0
1
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
8
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
1
4
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
7
,
9
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
8
 
D
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
S
u
p
p
o
 
C
C
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
5
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
8
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
6
,
7
8
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
5
 
C
u
s
t
o
m
i
z
e
d
 
E
m
p
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
0
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
5
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
3
,
2
8
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
0
 
I
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
C
o
m
m
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
6
,
1
1
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
6
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
R
e
c
r
u
i
t
m
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
5
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
7
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
0
,
8
2
7
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
5
 
S
e
l
f
-
D
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
4
6
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
7
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
3
5
1
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
,
1
7
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
7
7
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
T
Y
 
C
H
O
I
C
E
S
,
 
I

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
4
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
0
8
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
7
,
2
6
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
4
 
C
l
i
n
i
c
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
1
 
 
 
4
3
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
3
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
5
,
5
6
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
E
m
p
l
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
2
 
 
 
4
3
6
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
1
7
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
9
,
7
3
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
2
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
F
i
r
s
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
1
 
 
 
4
3
6
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
1
2
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
6
,
8
5
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
L
i
v
i
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
2
 
 
 
4
3
6
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
8
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
5
,
7
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
9
2
 
C
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
5
 
 
 
4
3
6
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
3
,
2
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
5
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
F
i
r
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
3
 
 
 
4
3
6
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
,
3
4
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
4
,
5
6
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
4
-
0
8
3
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
C
o
o
r
d
i
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
D
2
3
-
0
8
6
 
 
 
4
3
6
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
5
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
,
5
2
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
D
D
2
3
-
0
8
6
 
W
o
r
k
f
o
r
c
e
 
D
e
v
e
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
,
5
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
,
5
2
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
,
4
5
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
,
4
5
2
.
0
0
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
 
R
e
c
o
r
d
s
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL
VE

N
D

O
R

 IN
VO

IC
E 

LI
ST

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
0
8
:
4
6

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
a
p
i
n
v
l
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
.
O
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
R
U
N
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
P
A
I
D
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
U
E
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
S
T
S
 
D
E
S
C
R

 
 
 
 
1
0
1
7
0
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
 
O
F

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
I
D
D
S
I
2

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
4
2
4
 
P
E
R
S
O
N
S
 
A
S
S
U
M
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
O
F
 
T
H
E
I
R
 
E
N
V
I
R
O
N
M
E
N
T
 
I
N
C
.

J
u
l
'
2
3
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
0
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
I
N
V
 
P
D
 
 
I
D
D
S
I
2

 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
D
A
T
E
:
 
 
0
7
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 IL

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
D

ET
A

IL
 H

IS
TO

R
Y 

FO
R

 2
02

3 
07

 T
O

 2
02

3 
07

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
2

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
m
w
1
1
0
0
6

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
a
c
t
h
s
t

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

O
R
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
J
E
C
T
 
P
R
O
J
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
 
L
E
D
G
E
R

 
Y
R
/
P
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
S
R
C
 
R
E
F
1
 
 
 
R
E
F
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
#
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E

2
1
0
0
0
0
9
6
 
5
0
2
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
N
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
&
 
G
R
A
N
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
8
0
 
4
1
1
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
8
3
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
0
8
0
 
I
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
&
 
F
a
m
i
l
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
2
4
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
7
9
 
4
1
1
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
,
8
3
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
7
0
7
2
3
A
 
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
0
7
9
 
C
o
n
s
u
m
e
r
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
i
 
P
E
R
S
O
N
S
 
A
S
S
U
M
I
N
G
 
C
O
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
1
7
0
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
8
0
 
4
3
6
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
,
8
3
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
6
6
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
0
8
0
 
I
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2
3
/
0
7
 
 
 
 
7
1
3
 
0
7
/
2
7
/
2
3
 
 
A
P
I
 
0
1
0
4
2
4
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
7
9
 
4
3
6
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
6
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
6
6
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
0
8
0
4
2
3
A
 
 
A
u
g
'
2
3
 
I
D
D
S
I
2
4
-
0
7
9
 
C
o
n
s
u
m
e
r
 
C
o
 
P
E
R
S
O
N
S
 
A
S
S
U
M
I
N
G
 
C
O
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
B
A
L
A
N
C
E
S
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
6
6
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
-
-
-
 
D
E
B
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
,
6
6
6
.
0
0
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
 
R
e
c
o
r
d
s
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
.
 
W
i
l
s
o
n
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



Kim Bowdry, 
Associate Director for Intellectual & Developmental Disabilities 
Staff Report – August & September 2023 
 

CCDDB/CCMHB/IDDSI: 4th Quarter reports and year-end Performance Measure Outcome (PMO) 
reports were due on August 25, 2023. 4th Quarter Program Reports and PY23 Service Data Charts 
were included in the September CCDDB Board packet. I am currently reviewing agency reports and 
working to compile PY23 PMO reports. The PY23 PMO reports will be compiled and posted at 
ccmhddbrds.org. 
 
I am also taking data from the PY23 4th Quarter reports, to create the ‘Utilization Summaries for 
PY2023 CCDDB and CCMHB I/DD Programs’ document. This document is likely to be included in the 
October 2023 CCDDB Packet. 
 
I assisted with CCDDB, IDDSI, and CCMHB Priority documents. I participated in the joint CCDDB-
CCMHB study session held on August 16, 2023. Two self-advocate groups were part of a roundtable 
discussion. If you were unable to attend, the recording can be found here. This discussion is reflected 
in the CCDDB and IDDSI priorities. 
 
I participated in meetings with CCDDB/CCMHB staff and Dr. Dariotis from the Family Resiliency 
Center, related to the Evaluation Capacity project. 
 
HS-EHS requested an extension for 4th Quarter reports. Those reports are not included in the 
September CCDDB packet with the other reports. 
 
I participated in a Local Funders Group meeting with other CCDDB-CCMHB staff. 
 
CCDDB Contract Amendments: A contract amendment was sent to Community Choices for the 
Transportation Support program. The contract amendment was issued to reduce the contract 
maximum due to a partial staff vacancy at the beginning of the contract term. The program is 
currently fully staffed. 
 
Learning Opportunities: Joan Storey Gorsuch, BFA, M.Ed. and two self-advocates are scheduled to 
present “Employing Autism” on October 5, 2023, at the Champaign Public Library. Anyone interested 
in registering for this workshop can register at this link. 
 
In advance of each workshop, I reserve a room at the library, organize the registration page, order 
refreshments from the Champaign Public Library café, and make copies of any handouts. After the 
workshop, I tally training evaluation forms, create and email Certificates of Attendance, and share the 
PowerPoint and any other handouts with participants. 
 
Disability Resource Expo: I participated in the Expo Marketing Committee meeting on September 7, 
2023. Twice in August, I went to the Expo storage facility. Once to get a count on the remaining 
Children’s Activity bags from the 2022 Expo and another time to begin taking an inventory of items in 

29

https://www.co.champaign.il.us/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Zoom.mp4
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/employing-autism-tickets-713867877037?aff=oddtdtcreator


the storage facility. This is something that has not been fully done since 2019. I am planning a few 
more trips to get a full inventory before the 2023 Expo on October 28, 2023. The Children’s Activities 
Committee has been very active through email. There was a discussion of fidget toys to include in the 
Children’s Activity bags that will be given out at the Expo. I ordered those fidget items, as well. The 
Volunteer Committee is working to get an idea of the number of volunteers and their duties needed 
for the event. Stay tuned for the Volunteer Registration link. 
 
MHDDAC: The August MHDDAC meeting was held on August 22, 2023. The meeting discussion was 
about the upcoming year and the format of the meetings. Angela Yost, CCRPC has agreed to co-chair 
with Becca Obuchowski, Community Choices for the coming year. Each month’s MHDDAC meeting 
will have a topic of discussion (housing, food insecurity, etc.). A living document will be created so 
MHDDAC members can add ‘hot topics’ to discuss during the meetings and others can add responses. 
This is an effort to generate conversation and allows a place to maintain the questions and responses, 
so people can look at the document when they need relevant information. 
 
ACMHAI: I attended the September ACMHAI I/DD committee meeting. The discussion included 
national updates, state updates, and local updates from each member. State updates included 
discussion on the issues that continue at the SODCs. 
 
NACBHDD: I participated in the September meeting of the National Association of County Behavioral 
Health and Developmental Disability Directors (NACBHDD) I/DD committee meeting. Representatives 
from Easterseals Iowa and Benchmark Human Services provided presentations on crisis services for 
the I/DD population. 
 
Human Services Council: The Human Services Council resumed monthly meetings on August 3, 2023. 
Staff members from LifeLinks provided an update on the services provided by LifeLinks. Agency 
updates were also provided. I also attended the September HSC meeting. The September meeting 
included agency presentations from Rattle the Stars, The Pavilion, and Rosecrance Central Illinois. 
 
LIC: I participated in the September Local Inter-Agency Council (LIC) meeting. Meetings are held every 
other month, however just resumed for the year.  
 
Race Relations Subcommittee: I participated in biweekly Community Coalition Race Relations 
Subcommittee meetings. Members of the committee are presenting at the Black Mental Health and 
Wellness conference scheduled for September 30, 2023. A flyer and registration information for this 
free event can be found at the end of this report. 
 
Other: I participated in several webinars. Webinar topics included staff burnout, A Conversation with 
Temple Grandin, disability and domestic violence, ISC NOFO feedback discussion, OCD, telehealth, 
and toxic stress. 
 
I also attended the September Transition Planning Committee (TPC) meeting. 
 

30

https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=h9DeulNmC0GGjWInWQw6NigTVmaqlSlPhpHnJ9aKCC9UQ0tORTNSMU40VFJWQlcxVEVLMkVLUDBJWi4u


31



Leon Bryson, Associate Director for Mental Health & Substance Use Disorders 

Staff Report- September 2023 

Summary of Activity 

Thanks to all the agencies that met the fourth quarter report deadline. This is an improvement 

from last year’s report submissions. The Fourth Quarter reports and annual Performance 

Outcomes Reports (POR) were due on August 26th. At the time of this writing, two agencies 

requested extensions to submit their PORs and one agency did not submit any of their reports nor 

requested an extension. Once I have all the PORs, I will compile them into one document and 

include it in the next board packet and upload it to the online system.  

Also, I compiled the fourth quarter data from each program to create PY23 Utilization 

Summaries for CCMHB and CCMHB I/DD programs for the October CCMHB board packet. 

Ms. Canfield and I worked on DRAFT funding allocation priorities and decision support criteria 

for the Program Year 2025MHB. A briefing memorandum details the priorities to be used in the 

allocation process for contracts for services. 

Audit Delays/Suspension of Funding: Promise Health Care is experiencing a delay in their 

2022 audit and has submitted a formal request to waive the automatic cancellation of PY24 

contracts. A decision memo offers context, and a motion is included in this board packet. 

Financial Site Visits: In August, I attended and participated in a Children’s Advocacy Center 

financial site visit. There were no significant issues at this time. 

Evaluation Capacity Committee Team: Ms. Canfield, Ms. Bowdry, and I met with the U of I 

Family Resiliency Center for updates on the evaluation and capacity project. Dr. Jacinda Dariotis 

and her team are developing surveys for agencies and planning Group Level Assessment (GLA) 

dates. 

IPlan Behavioral Health Workgroup: August meeting was cancelled. The next meeting is on 

September 21st. In July, members listened to a presentation from Ms. Donna Tanner Harold, 

LCPC retired counselor from Parkland College. She discussed mental health issues in the black 

community and invited members to attend the Black Mental Health and Wellness Conference 

Saturday, September 30, 2023, 8-5pm at Parkland College.  

 

CCMHDDAC Meeting:  I participated in the monthly meeting of CCMHDDAC. Ms. Angela 

Yost of CCRPC has agreed to be the co-chair of the group.  

 

Reentry Executive Committee & Council Meetings: The Reentry Executive Committee has 

been working on setting clear goals and establishing agendas for the council meetings.  

Rosecrance is hiring for the Reentry Outreach Coordinator position. On September 6th, the 

council meeting had a nice turnout of agency representation. This is a step in the right direction 

as the executive team continues to make the meetings more efficient. 

32



ACMHAI I/DD Committee Meeting:  I participated in the monthly ACMHAI I/DD Committee 

Meeting. I also participated in the 2-day ACMHAI August Virtual Membership Meetings. 

NACBHDD BH and Justice Meeting: Members heard from NACBHDD member Michelle 

Cabrera present on California use of the 1115 Wavier. 

Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless (CSPH): I attended in the various CSPH 

Strategic Planning Meeting and CSPH meetings. In the Strategic Planning Meeting, members 

discussed the CSPH Strategic Plan and the next steps, implementation, and monitoring of the 

plan.   

In the August CSPH meeting, the COC Coordinator shared the first Point-in-Time (PIT) meeting 

is scheduled for September and encouraged members to join the PIT Subcommittee. Ms. Lisa 

Benson reported that RPC will be launching a transportation program for bus passes and auto 

repairs on August 14th.  Check the RPC Website for details on how to apply. Ms. Jessica 

McCann shared that RPC now has a HUD Certified Housing Counselor who can take referrals.  

A flyer will be sent out.  Note – RPC is not a HUD Certified Housing Counseling Facility.  

CSPH has begun preparations for the application for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Continuum of 

Care Program Competition, which includes the review of renewal and reallocation project 

applications. The deadline was extended to accept applications by 12pm Tuesday, September 5th.  

In the September CSPH meeting, emergency shelter providers discussed capacity information: 

eligibility criteria, total number of beds, current bed openings, waiting list numbers, if applicable, 

and any changes/updates to services. Members were emailed a draft of CSPH Strategic Plan and 

Feedback. 

Rantoul Service Provider’s Meeting: In the August meeting, the focus was on agencies updates 

with back to school for youth/families and barriers to emergency housing. The next meeting is 

scheduled for September 18th. 

SOFTT/LAN: The July 19th meeting was rescheduled for August 16th. In the August meeting, 

members discussed the challenges with engaging school staff, citing lack of efficient information 

sharing and shared goals. On a positive note, members discussed having resource tables at Jettie 

Rhodes Day.  

Disability Resource Expo Meeting: I attended the July 31st   Steering Committee meeting. 

Subcommittees provided updates. Three interpreters are confirmed for the event, six interpreters 

are needed. A challenge with getting ALS interpreters. 

I participated in the Marketing & Sponsorship Committee Meeting on September 7th. Ms. Boot, 

Resource Expo Co-Coordinator reported that some of the platinum donor members have 

downgraded their charitable donations to silver status. Additional help is needed with moving 

items from storage to Market Place Mall and back to storage once the event is done. The expo 

event has 63 exhibitors thus far and expect more in the coming days. 

The Accessibility Committee is scheduled for September 11th. 

Other Activities:   

33



▪ I was invited to join the United Way of Champaign County (UWCC) Community 

Solutions Team to review Child Well-Being applications. I completed the orientation 

meeting via Zoom on Thursday, August 31st. 

▪ I participated in a FUSE Overview meeting. The McLean County’s Frequent User 

System Engagement (FUSE) program is designed to help the community break the cycle 

of homelessness and crisis among individuals struggling with complex behavioral health 

needs. Services include Peer Support, Recovery Services, Case Management, Medication 

Assistance, Psychiatric Services, Psychoeducation, Court Liaison, and Therapy. 

▪ Ms. Canfield and I met with Scott Block, Statewide Behavioral Health Administrator 

from the Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts to discuss crisis intervention 

services. 

▪ Ms. Canfield and I met with Ms. Jamie Dahlman, CFO of Promise Heathcare, to discuss 

forms in the online system. 

Learning Opportunities (Trainings and Webinars):   

▪ ACMHAI’s webinar, Using upstream telehealth tools to maximize the workforce 

capacity. 

▪ NACo’s webinar, Fighting The Opioid Crisis With The Whole-Person Care 

▪  National Harm Reduction Coalition (NHRC) webinar Harm Reduction with Faith-Based 

Communities. 
 

 

34



Stephanie Howard-Gallo 

 Operations and Compliance Coordinator Staff Report –                          

 September 2023 Board Meeting 
  

  
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY: 
 
Fourth Quarter Reporting: 
Fourth quarter financial and program reporting was due at the end of 
August. (Agencies are given one extra month to submit 4th qtr. reports.) 
Performance Outcome Measures and a Cultural and Linguistic 
Competence Plan Progress Report are due the 4th Quarter of each 
funding year, as well.  A reminder of the upcoming deadline was sent Aug 
1 and again on Aug 18.  We approved an extension for Don Moyer Boys 
and Girls Club, Champaign County Healthcare Consumers, and Head 
Start (all CCMHB funded). Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center 
(UNCC) did not request an extension and we have not received reports.  
There are no payments to pause for them. 
 
Other Compliance: 
I made contact with all funded agencies regarding sending us their 
approved minutes from their Board meetings for files and the online 
Compliance Dashboard, as required in their contracts. 
 
Community Awareness/Anti-Stigma Efforts/Alliance for Inclusion 
and Respect (AIR):   
AIR artists will be selling their items at the disABILITY Expo on October 
28, 2023 at Market Place Mall from 11 am to 4 pm. So far, ten 
artists/groups have agreed to participate. There is no cost for 
participation.  We provide tables, chairs, tablecloths, hand sanitizer, 
masks, and water.   A Facebook page promotes AIR’s mission, members, 
artists, events, and news articles of interest.  I am one of the 
administrators of the page.   https://www.facebook.com/allianceforAIR  
 
Webinars: 
On September 8th, I attended “Recovery is a Family Affair: the Power of 
Family Peer Support”. 
 
 

35



Other: 
• Prepared meeting materials for CCMHB/CCDDB regular 

meetings, special meetings, and study sessions/presentations. 
• Composed minutes from the CCDDB/CCMHB meetings. 
• Participated in meetings and study sessions for the 

CCDDB/CCMHB. 
• I am participating in revising the Funding Guidelines for both 

boards. 
• I will be on vacation for most of October.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



  

Agency Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC) Technical Assistance, 

Monitoring, Support and Training for CCMHB/DDB Funded Agencies  

Agency Support and Technical Assistance:  

• Family Service Center: 4th Quarter CLC Support  

• Champaign County Regional Planning Commission: 4th Quarter CLC Support  

• Community Service Center Northern Champaign County: 4th Quarter CLC Support 

There will be a comprehensive report on all CLC Required Activities in October. This will 

provide information on how they are incorporating the values of Cultural and Linguistic 

Competence.  

CLC Coordinator Direct Service Activities 

Mental Health First Aid for Adults and Adults Assisting Youth-  

September 22, 2023, - Mental Health First Aid Blended for Adults 

Mental Health First Aid for Adults Registration  

Mental Health First Aid Flyer 

Youth Mental Health First Aid -Virtual Delivery  

September 27, 2023- Online  

Please register Here for Virtual Youth Mental Health First Aid 

Mental Health First Aid Community Presentation: Rotary District Conference: September 9, 

2023.  

Anti-Stigma Activities/Community Collaborations and Partnerships  

Disability Resource Expo Committee- I met with the Volunteer Committee to discuss the 

logistics for volunteer roles and expectations. We recognize that without the support of 

amazing volunteers we would not be able to do this work. The sign-up is available for members 

of the community.  

Walk as One Community Coalition: I will be a presenter for the Champaign Community 

Coalition Mental Health Conference, September 30, 2023, at Parkland College. I will present on 

the topic of how to Access Services and Supports in the community. Please see the flyer. 

 

 

37

https://forms.gle/TdbmyLoBrK5QgbhS6
https://acrobat.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:882da8e7-cb1a-3928-9901-dba7eeba3aab
Virtual%20Mental%20Health%20First%20Aid


 

38



 

39



2022

4001

01 2,724,230.86
03 0.00
04 1,473.55

4001 2,725,704.41

4004

76 197,712.00

4004 197,712.00

4008

01 6,509.94

4008 6,509.94

4009

01 0.00
02 71,723.00

4009 71,723.00

3,001,649.35

5001

02 61,516.75
03 190,670.30
05 0.00
08 0.00

5001 252,187.05

5003

01 18,337.66
02 12,608.65
04 1,031.55
05 1,494.89UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE        1,655.53 1,656.00

IMRF - EMPLOYER COST          6,736.75 12,546.00
WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANC 1,005.99 2,376.00

FRINGE BENEFITS

SOCIAL SECURITY-EMPLOYER      19,521.18 36,353.00

SALARIES AND WAGES TOTAL 265,022.95 480,310.00

OVERTIME                      0.00 2,612.00

REGULAR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES   205,344.67 368,198.00
TEMPORARY STAFF               0.00 2,500.00

SALARIES AND WAGES

APPOINTED OFFICIAL SALARY     59,678.28 107,000.00

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL REVENUES 2,927,750.60 6,369,010.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES TOTAL 12,856.00 42,000.00

GIFTS AND DONATIONS           450.00 3,000.00
OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE   12,406.00 39,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

INVESTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL 21,845.98 3,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

INVESTMENT INTEREST           21,845.98 3,000.00

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE TOTAL 237,482.00 407,118.00

OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL       237,482.00 407,118.00

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE

PROPERTY TAX TOTAL 2,655,566.62 5,916,892.00

PROPERTY TAXES - BACK TAX     0.00 1,000.00
PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES      2,915.74 2,000.00

PROPERTY TAX

PROPERTY TAXES - CURRENT      2,652,650.88 5,913,892.00

REVENUES

FUND DEPT 2090-053 : MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

Report Total 1 of 7 
Page 1 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
40



2022

FUND DEPT 2090-053 : MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

06 26,332.14

5003 59,804.89

5010

01 0.00
02 1,125.55
03 0.00
04 642.93
05 0.00
13 0.00
17 6,802.00
21 0.00

5010 8,570.48

5020

01 70,654.11
02 23,030.51
03 353.78
04 60.00
05 0.00
07 7,813.67
11 382.38
12 0.00
13 13,874.61
14 0.00
19 0.00
21 9,719.99
22 11,553.23
24 16,370.00
25 3,051,288.00
45 0.00
46 0.00
47 0.00
48 0.00

5020 3,205,100.28

3,525,662.70TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,008,828.52 6,352,010.00

SERVICES TOTAL 3,681,815.94 5,729,194.00

PHONE/INTERNET                1,413.48 2,470.00

EQUIP LEASE/EQUIP RENT        1,194.36 2,388.72
SOFTWARE LICENSE & SAAS       9,243.67 13,500.00

CONTRIBUTIONS & GRANTS        3,500,619.00 5,318,936.40
ATTORNEY/LEGAL SERVICES       1,450.00 2,000.00

OPERATIONAL SERVICES          2,448.19 77,230.00
PUBLIC RELATIONS              16,631.20 20,000.00

ADVERTISING, LEGAL NOTICES    58.00 500.00
DUES, LICENSE & MEMBERSHIP    9,239.99 20,000.00

RENT                          18,732.89 31,564.74
FINANCE CHARGES AND BANK FEES 0.00 30.00

UTILITIES                     0.00 0.00
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE       0.00 600.00

TRAINING PROGRAMS             3,504.00 20,729.86
INSURANCE (non-payroll)       9,618.00 18,000.00

TRAVEL COSTS                  6,793.66 11,500.00
CONFERENCES AND TRAINING      810.00 10,000.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         96,218.75 155,133.00
OUTSIDE SERVICES              3,840.75 24,611.28

SERVICES

COMMODITIES TOTAL 5,116.78 16,135.00

EQUIPMENT LESS THAN $5000     608.54 7,000.00
EMPLOYEE DEVELOP/RECOGNITION  0.00 285.00

FOOD NON-TRAVEL               534.68 1,150.00
DIETARY NON-FOOD SUPPLIES     91.86 200.00

BOOKS, PERIODICALS, AND MANUAL 0.00 300.00
POSTAGE, UPS, FEDEX           931.31 2,000.00

STATIONERY AND PRINTING       331.03 1,000.00
OFFICE SUPPLIES               2,619.36 4,200.00

COMMODITIES

FRINGE BENEFITS TOTAL 56,872.85 126,371.00

EE HLTH/LIF (HLTH ONLY FY23)  27,953.40 73,440.00

Report Total 2 of 7 
Page 2 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
41



2022

FUND DEPT 2090-053 : MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

7001

01 0.00

7001 0.00

0.00

524,013.35NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,081,077.92 0.00

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0.00 -17,000.00

OTHER FINANCING USES TOTAL 0.00 -17,000.00

TRANSFERS OUT                 0.00 -17,000.00

OTHER FINANCING USES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Report Total 3 of 7 
Page 3 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
42



2022

4008

01 1,915.24

4008 1,915.24

4009

02 260,368.90

4009 260,368.90

262,284.14

5010

17 0.00

5010 0.00

5020

01 600.00
07 316.33
12 12,562.00
19 0.00
25 0.00

5020 13,478.33

13,478.33

6001

01 50,000.00

6001 50,000.00

50,000.00TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 50,000.00 50,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL 50,000.00 50,000.00

TRANSFERS IN                  50,000.00 50,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,666.00 351,000.00

SERVICES TOTAL 47,666.00 345,937.00

CONTRIBUTIONS & GRANTS        47,666.00 341,737.00

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE       0.00 0.00
ADVERTISING, LEGAL NOTICES    0.00 200.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         0.00 4,000.00
INSURANCE (NON-PAYROLL)       0.00 0.00

SERVICES

COMMODITIES TOTAL 0.00 5,063.00

COMMODITIES

EQUIPMENT LESS THAN $5000     0.00 5,063.00

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL REVENUES 7,551.19 1,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES TOTAL 0.00 0.00

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE   0.00 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

INVESTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL 7,551.19 1,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

INVESTMENT INTEREST           7,551.19 1,000.00

REVENUES

FUND DEPT 2101-054 : I/DD SPECIAL INITIATIVES - CILA PROJECT

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

Report Total 4 of 7 
Page 4 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
43



2022

FUND DEPT 2101-054 : I/DD SPECIAL INITIATIVES - CILA PROJECT

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

-298,805.81NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -9,885.19 300,000.00

Report Total 5 of 7 
Page 5 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
44



2022

4001

01 2,237,584.16
03 0.00
04 1,209.97

4001 2,238,794.13

4008

01 4,318.59

4008 4,318.59

4009

02 0.00

4009 0.00

2,243,112.72

5020

01 230,664.00
25 1,817,143.00

5020 2,047,807.00

2,047,807.00

6001

01 0.00

6001 0.00

7001

01 -50,000.00

7001 -50,000.00OTHER FINANCING USES TOTAL -50,000.00 -50,000.00

TRANSFERS OUT                 -50,000.00 -50,000.00

OTHER FINANCING USES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL 0.00 4,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TRANSFERS IN                  0.00 4,000.00

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,871,916.00 4,824,487.00

SERVICES TOTAL 2,871,916.00 4,824,487.00

CONTRIBUTIONS & GRANTS        2,634,434.00 4,417,369.00

SERVICES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         237,482.00 407,118.00

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL REVENUES 2,200,659.80 4,870,487.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES TOTAL 1,537.00 5,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE   1,537.00 5,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL 16,731.48 2,000.00

INVESTMENT INTEREST           16,731.48 2,000.00

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

PROPERTY TAX TOTAL 2,182,391.32 4,863,487.00

PROPERTY TAXES - BACK TAX     0.00 2,000.00
PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES      2,396.21 4,000.00

PROPERTY TAX

PROPERTY TAXES - CURRENT      2,179,995.11 4,857,487.00

REVENUES

FUND DEPT 2108-050 : DEVLPMNTL DISABILITY FUND - DEVLMNTL DISABILITY BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

Report Total 6 of 7 
Page 6 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
45



2022

FUND DEPT 2108-050 : DEVLPMNTL DISABILITY FUND - DEVLMNTL DISABILITY BOARD

COMBINED REPORTING FOR YEAR: 2023    FROM PERIOD:  01  THROUGH PERIOD:  07

ACTUAL 2023ACTUAL
2023 ANNUAL

JAN - JUL BUDGETJAN - JUL

-50,000.00

-145,305.72NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 721,256.20 0.00

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -50,000.00 -46,000.00

Report Total 7 of 7 
Page 7 of 7 

8/7/2023 8:53:13 AM
46



 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  September 20, 2023 
TO:   Members, Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director, Kim Bowdry, Associate Director 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT PY2025 Allocation Priorities and Decision Support Criteria 
 

Statutory Authority: 
 
The Community Care for Persons with Developmental Disabilities Act (50 ILCS 
835/ Sections 0.05 to14) is the basis for Champaign County Developmental 
Disabilities Board (CCDDB) policies. Funds shall be allocated within the intent of the 
controlling act, per the laws of the State of Illinois. CCDDB Funding Requirements 
and Guidelines require that the Board annually review decision support criteria and 
priorities to be used in the allocation process which results in contracts for services. 
Upon approval, this memorandum becomes an addendum to the Funding 
Guidelines, incorporated in standard operating procedures. 
 
 

Purpose: 
 
The CCDDB may allocate funds for the Program Year 2025, July 1, 2024 to June 30, 
2025, using a timeline which begins with review and approval of allocation priorities 
and decision support criteria. These describe how the Board may contract with 
eligible human service providers for programs which further the mission and goals of 
the Board and fulfill their responsibilities to the public. This memorandum offers: 
 

- Assessed needs and preferences of people who have 
Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities (I/DD). 

- Impact of state and federal systems and pandemic-era developments. 
- Broad priority categories. Proposals for funding will address at least one. 
- Best Value Criteria (areas for a proposal to elaborate), Minimal Expectations, 

and Process Considerations. These support the Board in evaluating 
applications and making allocation decisions. 

Staff recommendations are based on input from board members and interested 
parties, along with our understanding of the larger context and best practices. This 
draft is presented to the Board and distributed to providers, family members, 

47

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3834&ChapterID=11
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf


advocates, and stakeholders for feedback to improve the final draft. If a version can 
be finalized and approved by the Board prior to December 2023, a Notice of 
Funding Availability will be published, and the application period will start December 
22, giving agencies extra time. 
 

Assessed Needs of Champaign County Residents: 
 
The Boards’ 2021 community needs assessment includes survey and qualitative data 
from Champaign County residents with I/DD and their supporters. As subject 
matter experts, their observations continue to impact planning and priorities. 
 
Each year, people with I/DD report unmet service needs through the Illinois 
Department of Human Services – Division of Developmental Disabilities (IDHS-
DDD) “Prioritization of Urgency of Need for Services” (PUNS) database. In the July 
10, 2023 PUNS report, sorted by County and Selection Detail: 

- The most frequently identified support needs are (in order): Personal Support, 
Transportation, Behavioral Supports, Speech Therapy, Other Individual 
Supports, Occupational Therapy, Assistive Technology, Physical Therapy, 24-
hour Respite, Adaptations to Home or Vehicle, and Intermittent Nursing 
Services. 

- 269 people are waiting for Vocational or Other Structured Activities, with the 
highest interest in community settings. 

- 74 are waiting for (out of home) residential services with less than 24-hour 
support, and 49 are seeking 24-hour residential support. 

Also annually, through a CCDDB contract, the Champaign County Regional 
Planning Commission (CCRPC) asks people with I/DD about their preferences and 
satisfaction. Highlights of the PY2023 preference assessment, from 268 people: 

- People preferred living with family (67%) or alone (36%). 
- Despite strong interest in competitive employment/volunteering and joining 

community groups, only 28% and 36% were doing so. 
- The top employment/volunteer preferences were Other (many answers), 

Retail and Working with Animals, Restaurant/Food Services, and 
Education/Childcare. 

- Recreation preferences included many options currently offered locally. 
- 57% were not receiving case management. 
- With regard to navigating the system and advocating for themselves, more 

people indicated lower levels of comfort than higher. 

More people are waiting for state funding than in 2022, for every category of service 
or support. More people need these services within one year and have waited longer 
than five. Over 140 engage in locally funded programs while waiting. This summer, 
36 adults with I/DD in Champaign County were issued letters of PUNS selection. 
 

48

https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/PDFS/Full_2021_Community_Needs_Report_ENGLISH.pdf


A self-advocate satisfaction survey conducted in 2022 had similar results: 
- 62.5% of respondents felt good about supports and services, 25% very good. 
- People had positive attitudes toward their staff. 
- People were interested in having help with cleaning, exercise, MTD, and 

employment, and in opportunities for travel, sports events, concerts, zoos, 
museums, antique stores, and to join a bowling league. 

- 19% found it hard to ask for new supports and 6% very hard. 
- 25% did not always feel heard when asking for something new. 

 
Self-advocates shared observations with us during a Joint Study Session of the Boards 
on August 16, 2023. Their input shapes the PY2025 priority categories and ‘best 
value’ criteria below as well as those of the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund.  
 

Operating Environment:  
 
Because services and supports available to individuals through other pay sources 
cannot be funded by the CCDDB, we are mindful of changes in the state and 
federal systems, particularly the “Medicaid waiver” programs available through 
IDHS-DDD, and of whether eligible individuals have access to these pay sources. If 
a service or support responsive to preferences and needs cannot be funded directly, 
whether due to constraints of the Community Care for Persons with Developmental 
Disabilities Act, other relevant statutes, state and federal service delivery and payment 
systems, or workforce or other resource shortage, it may be an important area for 
legislative and policy advocacy efforts of the Board and staff, with self-advocates and 
family members and with other organizations. 
 
Much attention is called to workforce shortages across the social services and 
healthcare systems. The I/DD service system was suffering deeply even before the 
pandemic, which led to loss of service capacity across the country, as detailed in a 
report from the Institute on Community Integration. CCDDB staff have advocated 
for the Bureau of Labor Statistics to establish a distinct classification for Direct 
Support Professionals (DSPs) so that the necessary competencies may be described 
accurately, and data collected which might persuade decision makers toward adequate 
appropriations in the future. An official policy position of the National Association 
of Counties for two years, this resolution sparked the first-ever discussions of I/DD 
within this large organization. The National Association of DSPs also pushed for this 
legislation, and in July 2023, it passed out of committee. 
 
In 2023, the Illinois General Assembly and Governor approved increased wages for 
DSPs to bolster community-based service capacity, but the increases are not at the 
level recommended by advocates and by the state’s commissioned “Guidehouse” 
rates study. Illinois’ reliance on institutional care and the slow growth of home and 
community-based services (HCBS), those waiver programs which are eligible for 
federal funding match and which require DSPs, is well-known, and the loss of 

49

http://www.co.champaign.il.us/MHBDDB/agendas/mhb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Zoom.mp4
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/MHBDDB/agendas/mhb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Zoom.mp4
https://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?item=45915
https://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?item=45915
https://ici.umn.edu/products/PERjPdfZQgGW_TqyOH_Utg
https://nadsp.org/recognizing-the-role-of-direct-support-professionals-act-s-1332-advances-through-committee/
https://nadsp.org/recognizing-the-role-of-direct-support-professionals-act-s-1332-advances-through-committee/


community-based service capacity is profound. Relatively small wage increases may 
not rescue our I/DD service system. 
 
DSP pay will remain far below what workers earn in State Operated Developmental 
Centers (SODCs), now notorious for reports of serious harm and neglect and 
inadequate corrective actions by facility administrators. Equip for Equality has issued 
a report based on their independent monitoring of the SODC so often in the news, 
“Choate Developmental Center Repurposing Plan: Why No One Should be Left 
Behind”. Recommendations are to end new placements in most, develop step-down 
and forensic units, transition people to least restrictive environments, improve 
programming, surveillance, and monitoring by Illinois Department of Public Health, 
etc. The transition to less restrictive environments will require expansion of home 
and community-based services (HCBS) and its key workforce, DSPs.  
 
In recent years, Illinois has been out of compliance with terms of the Ligas Consent 
Decree, an Americans with Disabilities Act-Olmstead case concerning community-
integrated residential settings. An overview of the class action case is provided by the 
American Civil Liberties Union of Illinois, and annual court monitor and data reports 
are available on IDHS website. The federal court monitor and judge have cited 
inadequate Medicaid-waiver reimbursement rates as the major cause not only for the 
state’s failure to meet the terms of the settlement but also for its loss of community-
based service capacity. Champaign County has specific concerns regarding the rate 
structure’s inadequacy to meet transportation needs and whether the more generous 
rate adjustments being made for Chicago and Springfield area providers should not 
also apply to Champaign County. 
 
The Institute on Public Policy for People with Disabilities summarizes the most 
recent Ligas Court Monitor Report, with several areas of improvement since 2019 but 
concerns about the Person-Centered Planning, which serves as the basis for funded 
service activities, and Independent Service Coordination (ISC) systems. Over the 
objections of many advocates and despite negative findings by the Office of the 
Auditor General regarding the 2018-2019 process, IDHS-DDD will again determine 
contracts for their ISC system through a competitive Notice of Funding Opportunity. 
This workforce is also diminishing due to low state rates, and no legislation has 
passed which would resolve that. At minimum, the ISC units are gatekeepers to state 
services, responsible for linkage and eligibility determination/maintenance, but the 
state contracts also include responsibilities for completion of state-approved Person-
Centered Plans, support for those transitioning to adult services, crisis response, and 
other case management. 
 
The barriers to care which existed prior to the pandemic have not changed: 
inflexibility of state services, low Medicaid-waiver reimbursement rates; long waiting 
lists; change fatigue; difficult-to-navigate systems; low provider capacity; pressure on 
family caregivers. New threats to the well-being of people with I/DD have included: 

50

https://www.equipforequality.org/files/EFE_Monitoring_Findings-Choate_DC.pdf
https://www.equipforequality.org/files/EFE_Monitoring_Findings-Choate_DC.pdf
https://www.aclu-il.org/en/cases/ligas-v-norwood
https://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?item=64489
https://www.instituteonline.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/Institute-Summary-of-Ligas-Court-Monitor-Report-to-Court.pdf
https://www.auditor.illinois.gov/Audit-Reports/Performance-Special-Multi/Performance-Audits/2020_Releases/20-ISC-Selection-Process-Perf-Mgmt-Digest.pdf
https://www.auditor.illinois.gov/Audit-Reports/Performance-Special-Multi/Performance-Audits/2020_Releases/20-ISC-Selection-Process-Perf-Mgmt-Digest.pdf


abrupt loss of services; high rates of infection, serious illness, and death, especially in 
congregate care; and low access to virtual innovations, for individuals and their 
supporters, which could have offered continuity of care and social connection. 
 
While COVID-19 was the third leading cause of death in 2020 in the US, it was the 
leading cause of death for people with I/DD. According to a study published in 
the Disability and Health Journal, contributing conditions were hyperlipidemia and 
obesity and dementia. Unlike their peers without I/DD, younger people with I/DD 
experienced this higher COVID-19 mortality burden.  
 
The 2023 report “Our Epidemic of Loneliness and Isolation: The U.S. Surgeon 
General’s Advisory on the Healing Effects of Social Connection and Community” 
acknowledges the devastating impacts of increased isolation on all and identifies ways 
to advance social connection. Social isolation is not a new concern for those with 
I/DD and their supporters. It also has role in the progression of ‘diseases of despair’ 
(e.g., depression and substance use disorder), other health conditions, and resulting 
deaths. Isolation and loneliness undermine empathy, memory, and mental/physical 
health. An article published by the Coalition to End Social Isolation & Loneliness, 
“Capturing the Truth Behind Causes of Death” calls for investigation and mitigation. 
  
The pandemic deepened existing flaws in our systems and caused the greatest harm 
to those who were already not well-served or fully included. People who have I/DD 
and their paid and unpaid care providers experience these impacts. The toll of social 
isolation calls for a more trauma-informed approach to all, and solutions to persistent 
barriers are still needed. 
 

 

Program Year 2025 CCDDB Priorities: 
 
During an August 16, 2023 study session, self-advocates offered input for Board 
planning and possible collaborative advocacy. Their comments and prior assessment 
data have informed many aspects of this memorandum, in particular the first seven 
priority categories. Self-advocates, family members, and their networks are critical to 
CCDDB efforts. 
 
Danielle, a Champaign County self-advocate, told us: 

… we are happy to talk to funders like the Board about what kinds of services 
we enjoy, and what can be changed. We are always thankful for the chance to 
speak on topics like these… Please continue to include us in your decisions on 
funding, and we will continue to give you our thoughts. 

 
PRIORITY: Self-Advocacy 
Kentrell, another study session presenter, added: 

51

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1936657422001261?via%3Dihub
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1936657422001261?via%3Dihub
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-social-connection-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-social-connection-advisory.pdf
https://www.endsocialisolation.org/cesil-blog/capturing-the-truth-behind-causes-of-death
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Zoom.mp4
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Agenda.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Agenda.pdf


I would like to be a part of more events out of town that give me the chance 
to be an advocate, like the Speak Up Speak Out Summit. I don’t usually have 
the money to do this on my own, and I would prefer to have another advocate 
or staff member attend with me. 
 

Human Rights & Advocacy (HRA) Group members also wrote about the need for 
more funding for advocacy opportunities. 
 
Staff and members of the CCDDB and CCMHB would benefit from more input 
from self-advocates, including through a formal advisory council more directly 
focused on our work, if people were interested in forming one and serving the public 
in this way. 
 
Nationally, about 90% of care is provided by family, friends, and community rather 
than through the formal service system. People with I/DD and their families lead 
improvements of that system and raise awareness of disabilities and of how the 
system works or fails. People who have I/DD can inform and lead self-advocacy and 
peer support groups. Families and other supporters can as well. These groups are 
uniquely effective at: 

- improving others’ understanding of I/DD and of the rights of people with 
I/DD, 

- peer mentoring and networking, 
- developing and sharing information on resources, and 
- advocating and directing advocacy at the local, state, and federal levels. 

Based on self-advocates’ input, a group of interested individuals might receive 
customized monthly flyers about upcoming meetings or activities and how to attend 
them. They might also purchase a memorable domain name and, with a professional 
web designer, create a straightforward, accessible site which collects links to other 
websites with updated information on community activities, disability-specific 
resources, public input opportunities, etc. Self-advocates may prefer other methods 
for finding the information they want when they want it; the value is in increasing 
self-direction and self-sufficiency. 
 
PRIORITY:  Linkage and Coordination 
When asked what would make daily life easier or better, self-advocates spoke of more 
information about available resources, services, and eligibility and noted that some 
public benefits are not adequate and are impacted by other income.  
 
People who are eligible for but not receiving state Medicaid “DD waiver” funding 
should have access to benefits and resources, including those benefits and resources 
which are available to people who do not have I/DD. Of interest are: 

52



- Conflict-free Case Management and Person-Centered Planning aligned with 
federal standards for Home and Community Based Services, to help identify, 
understand, and secure benefits, resources, and services a person chooses, and 

- Intensive case management or coordination, guided by a self-directed plan, for 
people with complex support needs, e.g., related to aging, physical or 
behavioral health issue, loss of family member or caregiver, or other traumatic 
experience. 

PRIORITY:  Home Life 
For this and the next four priorities, we consider self-advocates’ input about existing 
supports they would like to secure, keep, or increase. They frequently mentioned 
transportation and support staff, along with “people to talk to when I have 
questions.”  
 
People who have I/DD should have housing and home life matched to their needs 
and preferences. Individualized supports may include: 

- assistance for finding, securing, and maintaining a home, 
- preparing to live more independently or with different people, and 
- given the limitations of community residential options through state waivers, 

creative approaches for those who qualify for but do not receive these 
services. 

PRIORITY:  Personal Life 
People who have I/DD can choose supports which lead them to personal success 
and resilience, in the least segregated environment. These might include: 

- as with an I/DD Special Initiatives priority, assistive equipment or other 
accessibility supports and training in how to use technology such as electronic 
devices, apps, virtual meeting platforms, social media, Internet access, and 
online privacy/security, 

- speech or occupational therapy, 
- respite or personal support in the individual’s home or other setting of their 

choice, 
- training toward increased self-sufficiency in personal care, and 
- strategies to improve physical and mental wellness. 

PRIORITY:  Work Life 
People with I/DD who have an interest in working or volunteering in the community 
may find well-matched opportunities through individualized support. People should 
expect to be less isolated socially, safer due to relationships formed at work, and 
better able to contribute their talents. Focus on these aspirations and abilities, in the 
most integrated settings possible, to help people achieve their desired outcomes 
through: 

- job development, job matching, and job coaching, preferably in the actual 
community work setting, 

53



- technology to enhance a person’s work performance and reduce on-site 
coaching, 

- community employment internships, paid by the program rather than the 
employer, especially for people who have relied on traditional day program, 

- support for a path to self-employment or business ownership, 
- transportation assistance, and 
- education of employers about the benefits of working with people who have 

I/DD which then results in work for people with I/DD. 

PRIORITY:  Community Life 
Per self-advocate input and earlier survey and assessment results, people with I/DD 
seek a fuller social and community life. Support which is person-centered, family-
driven, and culturally appropriate, might offer: 

- development of social or mentoring opportunities, 
- transportation assistance, 
- support for building social and communication skills, including through 

technology, 
- connection to opportunities which are available to community members who 

do not have I/DD, both in-person and in digital spaces, and 
- access to recreation, hobbies, leisure, or worship activities, both in-person and 

in digital spaces.  

Darrin identified county-wide physical infrastructure changes which would improve 
access, but some activities with staff also improve his access. Members of the HRA 
wrote, “The mindset of the community isn’t very welcoming. It seems like people 
judge folks with disabilities and we aren’t respected.” While changing the whole 
community’s mindset is a tall order, paid staff can help people be seen and respected 
in the most integrated settings. 
 
PRIORITY: Strengthening the I/DD Workforce 
Self-advocates who presented to the CCDDB and CCMHB had positive comments 
about their current staff but said more staff are needed, in several roles. Agencies may 
propose strategies to strengthen the workforce, maintain the current service capacity, 
improve staff knowledge of technology ‘access and use’ for the benefit of the people 
they serve, and expand service capacity to meet the needs of all eligible residents of 
Champaign County. Agencies may collaborate on a joint application proposing 
system-wide solutions: 

- periodic retention payments with a performance standard, 
- intermittent payments for exceptional performance, 
- group and individual staff membership in professional associations which 

respect the I/DD workforce roles and offer networking and advocacy 
opportunities, and 

- high quality trainings or certifications specific to the staff roles, combined with 
recognition and payment upon completion. 

54



 
PRIORITY:  Collaboration with the CCMHB: Young Children and their 
Families  
As a result of the pandemic, 20-30% of children are being identified as having Social-
Emotional needs. This is a significant increase in children with SE needs. Dr. Belknap 
and Ms. McGhee also share that there is a significant increase in speech referrals. 
They reported seeing diminished capacity with staff. Early identification and 
treatment can lead to great gains later in life. 
 
Services and supports not covered by Early Intervention or under the School Code, 
for young children with developmental and social-emotional concerns, might include: 

– coordinated, home-based services addressing all areas of development and 
taking into consideration the qualities and preferences of the family, 

– early identification of delays through consultation with childcare providers, 
pre-school educators, medical professionals, and other service providers, 

– coaching and facilitation to strengthen personal and family support networks, 
and 

– identification and mobilization of individual and family gifts and capacities, to 
access community associations and learning spaces. 
 

Through the Boards’ intergovernmental agreement, the Champaign County Mental 
Health Board (CCMHB) has funded programs which complement those addressing 
the behavioral health of very young children and their families, and for which service 
providers collaborate as a System of Care for children and families. For PY2025, the 
CCMHB may continue this priority area in their continued commitment to people 
with I/DD. 
 
Another collaboration of the Boards is the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund, supporting 
short-term special projects to improve the system of services. Where there is overlap 
with CCDDB or CCMHB priorities, an applicant should consider that long term 
supports are more appropriately funded by the CCDDB or CCMHB. Short term 
projects piloting a unique solution or purchasing non-service supports will fit better 
with the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund. 
 
During or resulting from the allocation award process, the CCMHB may transfer a 
portion of their dedicated I/DD amount to the CCDDB or to the IDD Special 
Initiatives fund, to support contracts for DD services through either of those funds.  
 

Criteria for Best Value: 
An application’s alignment with a priority category and its treatment of the overarching 
considerations described in this section will be used as discriminating factors toward final allocation 
decision recommendations. Our focus is on what constitutes a best value to the community, in the 

55



service of those who have I/DD. Some of these ‘best value’ considerations relate directly to priority 
categories and may be the focus of a proposal. 
 
Budget and Program Connectedness 
Detail on what the Board would purchase is critical to determining best value. 
Because these are public funds administered by a public trust fund board, this 
consideration is at the heart of our work.  
 
Each program proposal requires a Budget Narrative with text sections the applicant 
uses to describe: all sources of revenue for the organization and those related to the 
proposed program; the relationship between each anticipated expense and the 
program, clarifying their relevance; the relationship of direct and indirect staff 
positions to the proposed program; and additional comments.  
 
One of the Minimal Expectations below is that an applicant be able to demonstrate 
financial clarity. This overlaps with but differs from Budget and Program 
Connectedness. Financial clarity is demonstrated by financial records maintained in 
an ‘audit-ready’ state. A recent independent audit, financial review, or compilation 
with no negative findings is one way to show that the applicant has this capacity. 
Those reports are not required with an application or in the Budget Narrative form 
but may be requested as part of the review and decision process. 
 
Another Minimal Expectation below asks for evidence that no other funding is 
available. The Budget Narrative submitted with each proposal is an excellent place to 
address these efforts. Through Budget Narrative comments, the program’s 
relationship to larger systems may be better understood, and the applicant may 
highlight how they will leverage other resources or use the requested funding as 
match for other resources. Programs offering services billable to Medicaid or other 
insurance should attest that they will not use CCDDB funds to supplement those. 
They may identify non-billable activities which can be charged to the proposed 
contract. While CCDDB funds should not pay for services billable to another payor, 
programs should maximize all resources, for their long-term sustainability and to 
ensure that CCDDB funding does not supplant other public systems.  
 
Participant Outcomes 
Also essential for demonstrating a best value is clarity about how the program will 
benefit the people it serves. Are people’s lives better because of the program? Simple, 
measurable outcomes are often the best way to communicate this. To demonstrate a 
program’s success in helping people achieve positive impacts, an applicant should use 
outcomes which consider participants’ gifts and preferences. For each defined 
outcome, the application will identify a measurable target, timeframe, assessment tool, 
and assessment process. All applicants are welcome to review the ‘measurement 
bank’ developed by local agencies and researchers. This repository offers a great deal 

56

https://drive.google.com/drive/u/0/folders/0B6cs5gZd3CK1Q2RBcFZpaHFKWmM?resourcekey=0-LTlk4A6etptY5mCGDnw5JQ
https://drive.google.com/drive/u/0/folders/0B6cs5gZd3CK1Q2RBcFZpaHFKWmM?resourcekey=0-LTlk4A6etptY5mCGDnw5JQ


of information on outcome measures appropriate to various services and populations 
and will be updated with new findings.  
Jennifer Buoy, a Champaign County self-advocate, has designed a survey which may 
be adopted in part or full, to understand program impacts on participants. This 
instrument can be found on pages 9-10 of the August 16, 2023 study session packet. 
 
Applicants will also identify how people learn about and access the program and will 
define outputs or measures of the program’s performance: numbers of people served, 
service contacts, community service events, and other. While not Participant 
Outcomes, these are important and required with every proposal. 
 
Self-Determination and Self-Direction in Service Planning 
The most meaningful participant outcomes will be discovered through a person’s 
involvement in their own service plan. Centering people’s communication styles and 
networks of support, self-directed or person-centered planning can be done even if 
the person has been referred to the program by a third party.  
 
Every person should have the opportunity to inform and lead their service plan. The 
plan should balance what is important FOR the person with what is important TO 
the person, be responsive to their preferences, needs, values, and aspirations, and 
help them recognize and leverage their strengths and talents. CCDDB funding should 
focus on people rather than programs. In a self-determined system, people control 
their day, build connections to their community for work, play, learning, and more, 
create and use networks of support, and advocate for themselves. 
 
Proposals should describe the individual’s role in their own service planning process 
and should connect the program activities to what people have indicated they want 
and need. If funded, program activities are reported regularly, with data on the 
individuals served and detail on community inclusion. 
 
Eliminating Disparities in Access and Care 
Programs should move the local service systems toward equitable care resulting in 
optimal health and quality of life for all community members.  For this, barriers 
specific to some groups must be addressed and eliminated or overcome. 
 
Proposed programs should improve access and offer appropriate care for people 
from historically underinvested populations as identified in the 2001 Surgeon 
General’s Report on Mental Health: Culture, Race, and Ethnicity. These groups, 
people living in rural areas, and those with limited English language proficiency 
should have access to supports and services. Applications should identify engagement 
strategies which help people overcome or eliminate barriers to care. 
 
The application includes a Cultural and Linguistic Competence Plan (CLCP) template 
consistent with Illinois Department of Human Services requirements and National 

57

https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/ddb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Agenda.pdf
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20669516/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20669516/


Standards for Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services in Health and Health 
Care (CLAS Standards.) A toolkit for these standards may be helpful to the applicant. 
One CLCP is completed for each organization. The program plan narrative for each 
of an organization’s proposals should include strategies specific to proposed services. 
CCDDB staff offer technical assistance. 
 
Promoting Inclusion and Reducing Stigma 
Programs should increase community integration, including in digital spaces. People 
feel better when they have a sense of belonging and purpose. People are safer when 
they have routine contacts with co-workers, neighbors, members of a faith 
community, and acquaintances at fitness or recreation centers or in social networks. 
Positive community involvement can build empathy, redefine our sense of group 
identity, reduce stress, and decrease stigma. Stigma inhibits individual participation, 
economic self-sufficiency, safety, and confidence, and may be a driver of insufficient 
State and Federal support for community-based services. Stigma harms communities 
and people, especially those who have been excluded due to sexuality, gender, race, 
ethnicity, disability, immigrant/refugee/asylee status, or preferred or first language. 
 
The CCDDB has an interest in nurturing resilience, inclusion, and community 
awareness, as well as challenging negative attitudes and discriminatory practices. Full 
inclusion aligns with values of other Champaign County authorities and 
collaborations and with the standards established by Home and Community Based 
Services, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity, and Americans with Disabilities 
Act. Proposed programs should describe activities and strategies that expand 
community inclusion and social connectedness of the individuals to be served. 
 
Continuation of Services   
Applications should describe how people will be served in the event of a public 
health emergency which limits in-person contact. Because social isolation increased 
the need for some services, continuity of care is a new and important consideration. 
If a virtual service is expected to be less effective than in-person, or if the people to 
be served do not prefer virtual platforms, some capacity should still be maintained 
now that their value as backup plan has been demonstrated. The negative impacts of 
insufficient broadband capacity and limited access to and understanding of 
technology have also been demonstrated. 

Some regulatory changes supporting virtual innovation have been made permanent 
and others extended. Telehealth and remote meetings are now integrated in many 
programs. Even without a public health emergency, they connect more people to 
virtual care and enhance their access to other resources. 

Whether a focus of the proposal or already integrated, successes with technology and 
virtual platforms can be expanded with training and access for people who participate 
in services and for direct staff or others involved in their care. 

58

https://www.cms.gov/About-CMS/Agency-Information/OMH/Downloads/CLAS-Toolkit-12-7-16.pdf#:~:text=The%20National%20CLAS%20Standards%20describe%20a%20framework%20to,of%20a%20health%20care%20organization%2C%20state%20or%20community.


Unique Features 
Demonstrating a best value involves amplifying those characteristics of the service 
approach, staff credentials, or funding mix unique to the organization or proposed 
program. While the pressures on service provider agencies are great, innovative or 
tailored responses to people’s support needs and preferences should be highlighted. 

- Approach/Methods/Innovation: cite the recommended, promising, evidence-
based, or evidence-informed practice and address fidelity to the model under 
which services are to be delivered. In the absence of such an approach to meet 
a community need, describe the innovative approach and how it is evaluated. 

- Staff Credentials: highlight credentials and specialized training. 
- Resource Leveraging: describe how CCDDB funds are amplified, and other 

resources maximized: state, federal, or local funding; volunteer or student 
support; community collaborations. If CCDDB funds will meet a match 
requirement, reference the funder requiring match and identify the match 
amount in the application Budget Narrative. 

Expectations for Minimal Responsiveness: 
Applications not meeting the following expectations are “non-responsive” and will 
not be considered. Applicants must be registered at http://ccmhddbrds.org. 
Accessible documents and technical assistance, limited to use of the online tools, are 
available upon request through the CCDDB staff. 
 

1. Applicant is an eligible organization, demonstrated by responses to the 
Organization Eligibility Questionnaire, completed during initial registration. 

2. Applicant is prepared to show their capacity for financial clarity, especially 
if they answered ‘no’ to any question in the Organization Eligibility 
Questionnaire or do not have a recent independent audit, financial review, or 
compilation report with no findings of concern. 

3. All application forms must be complete and submitted by the deadline.  
4. Proposed services and supports must relate to I/DD. How will they 

improve the quality of life for persons with I/DD? 
5. Application must include evidence that other funding sources are not 

available to support the program or have been maximized. Other potential 
sources of support should be identified and explored. The Payer of Last 
Resort principle is described in CCDDB Funding Requirements and 
Guidelines. 

6. Application must demonstrate coordination with providers of similar or 
related services, with interagency agreements referenced. Evidence of 
interagency referral process is preferred, to expand the system’s reach, respect 
client choice, and reduce risk of overservice to a few. For an inclusive, 
efficient, effective system, applications should mention collaborative efforts 
and acknowledge other resources. 
 

59

http://ccmhddbrds.org/


Process Considerations: 
The CCDDB uses an online system for organizations applying for funding. 
Downloadable documents on the Board’ goals, objectives, operating principles, and 
public policy positions are also posted on the application website, at 
https://ccmhddbrds.org. Applicants complete a one-time registration process, 
including an eligibility questionnaire, before receiving access to the online forms. 
Funding guidelines and instructions on how to use the system are also posted there. 
 
Criteria described in this memorandum are guidance for the Board in assessing 
proposals for funding but are not the sole considerations in final funding decisions. 
Other considerations include the judgment of the Board and staff, evidence of the 
provider’s ability to implement the services, soundness of the methodology, and 
administrative and fiscal capacity of the applicant organization. Final decisions rest 
with the CCDDB regarding the most effective uses of the fund. Cost and non-cost 
factors are used to assess the merits of applications. The CCDDB may also choose to 
set aside funding to support RFPs with prescriptive specifications to address the 
priorities. 
 
Caveats and Application Process Requirements: 

• Submission of an application does not commit the CCDDB to award a 
contract or to pay any costs incurred in preparing an application or to pay for 
any other costs incurred prior to the execution of a formal contract. 

• During the application period and pending staff availability, technical 
assistance will be limited to process questions concerning the use of the online 
registration and application system, application forms, budget forms, 
application instructions, and CCDDB Funding Guidelines. Support is also 
available for CLC planning. 

• Applications with excessive information beyond the scope of the application 
format will not be reviewed and may be disqualified from consideration. 

• Letters of support are not considered in the allocation and selection process. 
Written working agreements with other agencies providing similar services 
should be referenced in the application and available for review upon request.  

• The CCDDB retains the right to accept or reject any application, or to refrain 
from making an award, when such action is deemed to be in the best interest 
of the CCDDB and residents of Champaign County. 

• The CCDDB reserves the right to vary the provisions set forth herein at any 
time prior to the execution of a contract where the CCDDB deems such 
variances to be in the best interest of the CCDDB and residents of 
Champaign County. 

• Submitted applications become the property of the CCDDB and, as such, are 
public documents that may be copied and made available upon request after 
allocation decisions have been made and contracts executed. Submitted 
materials will not be returned. 

60

https://ccmhddbrds.org/


• The CCDDB reserves the right, but is under no obligation, to negotiate an 
extension of any contract funded under this allocation process for up to a 
period not to exceed two years, with or without an increased procurement. 

• If selected for contract negotiation, an applicant may be required to prepare 
and submit additional information prior to contract execution, to reach terms 
for the provision of services agreeable to both parties. Failure to submit such 
information may result in disallowance or cancellation of contract award. 

• The execution of final contracts resulting from this application process is 
dependent upon the availability of adequate funds and the needs of the 
CCDDB. 

• The CCDDB reserves the right to further define and add application 
components as needed. Applicants selected as responsive to the intent of the 
application process will be given equal opportunity to update proposals for the 
newly identified components. 

• To be considered, proposals must be complete, received on time, and 
responsive to application instructions. Late or incomplete applications will be 
rejected. 

• If selected for funding, the contents of a successful application will be 
developed into a formal contract. Failure of the applicant to accept these 
obligations can result in cancellation of the award for contract. 

• The CCDDB reserves the right to withdraw or reduce the amount of an award 
if the application has misrepresented the applicant’s ability to perform. 

• The CCDDB reserves the right to negotiate the final terms of any or all 
contracts with the selected applicant, and any such terms negotiated through 
this process may be renegotiated or amended to meet the needs of Champaign 
County. The CCDDB reserves the right to require the submission of any 
revision to the application which results from negotiations. 

• The CCDDB reserves the right to contact any individual, agency, or employee 
listed in the application or who may have experience and/or knowledge of the 
applicant’s relevant performance and/or qualifications. 

 

61



 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:       September 20, 2023 
To:       Members, Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) & 

      Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB)  
From:       Lynn Canfield, Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson 
Subject:   DRAFT I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Priorities for PY25 

 

Statutory Authority: 

The Community Care for Persons with Developmental Disabilities Act (50 ILCS 835/ 
Sections 0.05 to14) is the basis for Champaign County Developmental Disabilities 
Board (CCDDB) funding policies. The Illinois Community Mental Health Act (405 ILCS 
20/ Section 0.1 et. seq.) is the basis for Champaign County Mental Health Board 
(CCMHB) funding policies. All funds shall be allocated within the intent of these 
controlling acts, per State of Illinois laws. Decision support criteria and allocation 
priorities are reviewed annually. Upon approval these become addenda to CCDDB 
and/or CCMHB Funding Requirements and Guidelines. 
 

Purpose:  
 
The CCDDB and CCMHB share authority for the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund. For 
Program Year 2025 (July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025), the Boards may allocate funds to 
eligible human service organizations for projects and services which further the 
Boards’ goals and fulfill their responsibilities to the public.  This memorandum offers: 

• Overview of current uses of the fund and timeline for application, review, and 
decision processes. 

• Alignment with other County-wide health improvement efforts, which include 
community needs assessments. 

• Summary of public input. 

• Impact of state and federal systems and pandemic-era developments. 

• Broad priority categories in response to all of the above. Proposals for funding 
will address at least one of these priorities. 

62

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3834&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1499
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCMHB%20Funding%20Requirements%20and%20Guidelines.pdf


• Best Value Criteria (areas for a proposal to elaborate), Minimal Expectations, 
and Process Considerations. These support the Boards in evaluating 
applications and making allocation decisions.  
 

Staff recommendations are based on input from board members and interested 
parties, along with our understanding of the larger context and best practices. This 
draft is presented to the Boards and distributed to providers, family members, 
advocates, and stakeholders for feedback which will influence the final draft.  
 

Overview and Timeline:  
 
In 2014, the Boards launched a collaborative CILA Facilities Project Fund on behalf 
of Champaign County residents who had I/DD and complex support needs and 
who had been unable to secure services in or near the County. Difficulties 
maintaining a qualified workforce in the two small group homes were 
insurmountable by 2020, and the Boards chose to sell the properties and reinvest 
in supports for this population, renaming the fund as “I/DD Special Initiatives.” 
Because the barriers to care persist, we maintain the focus on eligible people with 
unmet service needs and on the development of appropriate services.  
 
During 2023, the Boards made available $341,737 through “I/DD Special Initiatives” for 
contracts for services to begin July 1. Under its PY2024 priorities for Strengthening 
the Workforce and Individualized Supports, $286,000 was awarded, half to be paid 
during 2023, the other half in 2024. $198,737 of the 2023 appropriation is unspent and 
can be used in 2024. The Boards have approved use of $400,000 to be transferred 
from fund balance for 2024 to support PY2025 allocations. 
 
As a special fund without substantial revenue, short-term projects are especially 
appropriate. By contrast, the Boards fund many ongoing, long-term services and 
support through their allocation processes. Of forty-one CCMHB PY24 agency 
contracts, three serve young children with developmental delays or risk. All sixteen 
CCDDB PY24 contracts serve people who have I/DD, primarily youth and adults. The 
two I/DD Special Initiatives PY24 programs serve people of all ages. 
 
The following timeline supports a competitive allocation process for I/DD Special 
Initiatives funding and parallels timelines projected for CCDDB and CCMHB funding: 

• A final version of these priorities and support criteria approved by both Boards 
during open, public meeting(s) prior to December 2023. 

63



• Proper public notice of funding availability published on or before December 1, 
2023 (if priorities have been approved). 

• From December 22, 2023, 8:00 AM CST, to February 12, 2024, 4:30 PM CST, the 
online system will be open for agencies to submit applications addressing one 
or more of the priority areas. Agencies not previously registered will 
demonstrate eligibility per the initial questionnaire and review of CCDDB and 
CCMHB Funding Requirements and Guidelines. If a specific requirement is not 
likely to be met, the Boards might consider waiving that requirement under 
certain conditions if a waiver allows them to fund a well-aligned proposal. 

• Board staff review of applications, with summaries of each in April and funding 
recommendations to the Boards in May. The Boards may choose to review 
applications at any time from February 12 through June. 

• Boards’ allocation decisions during May or June 2024 meetings. 

• Contracts developed, issued, and signed prior to June 18, 2024. Contracts will 
have a term of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, with the option of a shorter 
or longer term (up to two years) as requested or as negotiated. 

• If the Boards choose to design Requests for Proposal (RFP) to address a 
particular need relevant to this fund, each will have its own timeline with 
additional meetings and activities specific to the project. 

 
The statutory and practical frameworks above are supplemented by our understanding 
of current and emerging conditions. The following sections are meant to place the 
Boards’ work within the context of local values, the interests of people most directly 
impacted by funding decisions, and the operating environment, to set the stage for 
PY2025 funding priority categories and decision support criteria. 
 

Alignment of Local Efforts: 
 
Champaign County Community Health Improvement Plan 
CCDDB/CCMHB staff collaborate with local and regional partners on the Community 
Health Improvement Plan, also referred to as the IPlan, with the vision that: 

Champaign County will be the Healthiest and Safest, environmentally 
sustainable community to live, work, and visit in the State of Illinois. 

To identify goals and priorities for the Plan, a community health needs assessment is 
conducted every three years.  Health needs of equal priority identified in 2022 were: 

Behavioral Health, Healthy Behaviors and Wellness, and Violence. 
Staff members and service providers with expertise in behavioral health and I/DD 
participate in priority area workgroups. 
 

64

http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/PDFS/Champaign_County_2022.pdf


University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Campus Community Compact 
Board and staff members participate in this broad-based collaboration led by the 
UIUC Chancellor’s office. Through workgroups and large group meetings, the 
Compact has assessed strengths and needs of the community and developed vision 
statements which include:  

Health, Wellness, & Resilience: Assure physical, mental, and emotional health 
and wellness for all communities and all community members who face 
immense threats from structural inequities that disadvantage communities of 
color and other communities disproportionately affected by exposure to 
violence, trauma, adverse life experiences, and adverse community 
environments. 
Inclusive Education: Create a community in Champaign County that welcomes 
increasingly diverse cohorts of students who represent a wide array of cultures 
and ethnicities; a community that invests in and offers an accessible and 
engaging array of learning and individual growth opportunities. 

 
Champaign County Board 
CCDDB and CCMHB efforts also align with the Vision, Mission, and Values of the 
County Board, including with their Strategic Plan Goal to: 

Promote a safe, healthy, just community. 
The values of Diversity, Teamwork, Responsibility to the Public, Justice, and Quality 
of Life are relevant to the CCDDB and CCMHB. The Value of Diversity is defined as: 

Appreciation of the diverse culture within our community. 
Strive for a workforce reflective of the community. 
Equal and inclusive access to services and programs. 

 
Local leaders aspire to quality of life and full inclusion in the wake of increased health 
disparities for certain community members, among them people with I/DD. Growing 
awareness creates new opportunities for system advocacy. 
 
Statewide Advocacy Groups 
A partnership between our state trade association, the Association of Community 
Mental Health Authorities of Illinois (ACMHAI), the Going Home Coalition, and Arc of 
Illinois is focused on the State of Illinois’ persistent imbalance between funding 
institutional care, which is not eligible for federal match, and use of federal Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Home and Community Based waiver 
programs, which are eligible for federal match. These organizations, along with 
Illinois Association of Rehabilitation Facilities, They Deserve More Coalition, Illinois 
Council on Developmental Disabilities, Equip for Equality, and Institute on Public 
Policy for People with Disabilities, push to expand home and community-based care, 

65

http://www.co.champaign.il.us/CountyBoard/CountyBoard.php
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/CountyBoard/CountyBoard.php


but each may be too small to counter the forces of Illinois’ status quo, even with the 
relentless bad news about State Operated Developmental Centers. With these 
partners and with people who I/DD and their family members, we should advocate 
for system redesign and full funding, including for flexible, self-directed options. 
 

Public Input: 
 
During a Joint Study Session of the Boards on August 16, 2023, self-advocates and 
supporters offered input on preferences and concerns. Among these were: 

• Easier access to information about events, activities, and resources, when 
they need or want them. 

• Support for planning and attending events not in Champaign-Urbana. 

• A more disability-friendly, inclusive community, which includes physical 
infrastructure and access to resources enjoyed by others.  

• More job coaches, personal support workers, and direct support 
professionals. 

• More information about the impact of income on benefits; more assistance 
for food, rent, other basics, and emergencies. 

• Education about I/DD, especially for mental health professionals. 

• Better access and more resources for rural residents who have disabilities. 

• More flexible, lower cost transportation options and support. 
 

The discussion with self-advocates touched on several resources that exist but may 
be underutilized because they are not easily secured, not well-understood, or not 
what people prefer. In addition to allocation of the CCDDB, CCMHB, and I/DDSI 
Funds, our partnership can include systems advocacy and information-sharing.  
 
Other community needs information and service data were presented in the August 
16, 2023 Study Session Packet. A recurring theme is that not all Champaign County 
residents have access to the many resources enjoyed by some, despite the shared 
aspiration to be a welcoming, healthy, inclusive, and just community. 
 

Operating Environment:  

In CCDDB PY24 Funding Priorities  and CCMHB PY24 Funding Priorities and earlier 
board documents, we noted the dangerous decline in service capacity across the 
country and state and in our community. This crisis is not difficult to understand or 
easy to solve. If the enduring funding and policy neglect that led to it is NOT 

66

http://www.co.champaign.il.us/MHBDDB/agendas/mhb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Zoom.mp4
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/MHBDDB/agendas/mhb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Agenda.pdf
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/MHBDDB/agendas/mhb/2023/230816_Study_Session/230816_Agenda.pdf
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/PDFS/CCDDB%20Funding%20Priorities%20for%20PY2024.pdf
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/PDFS/CCMHB%20Funding%20Priorities%20for%20PY2024.pdf


consistent with our values, we should push hard to correct it, through collaborations 
above and as opportunities arise. This is clearly in the best interest of Champaign 
County and its residents. 
 
From the Institute on Community Integration’s 2022 report “Community Supports in 
Crisis: No Staff, No Services”: 

All the progress toward community living that has been made in services for 
people with IDD over decades is now in jeopardy — because of catastrophic 
labor shortages and pervasive high turnover rates in the workforce that 
supports them, direct support professionals (DSPs). 
 

National data found in the report: 

• 70% of DSPs are women, approximately 70% of them heads of household; 

• DSPs’ average age increased to 46; 

• DSPs’ mean hourly wage is $13.28, while for home health aides $13.49, 
nursing assistants $15.41, and residential advisors $16.07; 

• The percentage of individuals with behavioral support needs who receive 
community services has more than doubled since 2012; and 

• During 2020, 53% of agencies employed fewer DSPs, 41% served fewer 
people, 33% closed sites, and 47% stopped offering a support or service. 

 
This year, the Illinois General Assembly and Governor approved wage increases for 
Direct Support Professionals, which could bolster community-based service capacity. 
However, these increases are below those recommended by the state’s own rates 
study and numerous advocacy groups, and they are far below what workers earn in 
State Operated Developmental Centers (SODCs) where reports of serious, even fatal, 
abuse and neglect abound. Illinois’ overreliance on institutional care and low 
investment in more inclusive alternatives have taken a toll. With a relatively higher 
number of eligible Champaign County residents still awaiting selection for state 
Medicaid waiver awards for home and community-based care, and with many other 
service system improvements yet to be undertaken, we have a long way to go. 
 

Crisis to Opportunity:  

Telehealth and other remote options were introduced rapidly and out of necessity 
during the COVID-19 pandemic, allowing some with I/DD to connect with support and 
social opportunities more easily than before, especially if they had access to the 
internet but limited transportation, or if they preferred being at home. For some who 
prefer virtual participation over in-person, barriers have been lack of devices and 

67

https://ici.umn.edu/products/PERjPdfZQgGW_TqyOH_Utg
https://ici.umn.edu/products/PERjPdfZQgGW_TqyOH_Utg


programs, difficulty learning to maximize those, and poor internet service. The latter 
barrier has been typical in rural areas, apartment complexes, and housing 
developments. The Champaign County Board, Housing Authority of Champaign 
County, and University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign have led efforts to improve 
access and use for all. Virtual support may be most effective when combined with in-
person, where there is still room for innovation in services. 
 
The Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities (DODD) promotes the use of 
assistive technology and remote options as a partial solution to workforce and 
transportation shortages. Ohio’s Technology First Initiative ensures that technology 
is considered as part of all individual service plans, prior to authorization of on-site 
direct support staff and with the goal of training in technology which can improve 
quality of life. The Living Arrangements for the Developmentally Disabled (LADD) 
Smart Homes project incorporates many innovations, including low cost and widely 
available consumer products. A Concept Video and virtual tour highlight the Forever 
Home Smart Living Pilot. People with I/DD are also enjoying greater independence 
and control of their days with the lighter presence of non-resident professionals in 
their homes. See the Ohio DODD website for more. 
 
In their July 2023 meetings, the Boards took virtual tours of the UIUC McKechnie 
Family LIFE Home and heard a brief presentation on research done there. Dr. Olatunji, 
one of the presenters, has a research focus on the balance between tech support and 
social connectedness. Avoiding social isolation will be important in any remote 
innovations. With this caution, a partnership between local service provider(s) and 
UIUC researchers could explore innovation similar to the LADD Smart Home Pilot.  
 
Earlier CCDDB and CCMHB memoranda noted disproportionate negative impacts of 
COVID-19 and social isolation on people with disabilities, rural residents, and 
members of racial, ethnic, and gender minorities. Whether traditional or innovative, 
all supports should uphold the principles of community and social inclusion and 
consumer choice. The 2023 report “Our Epidemic of Loneliness and Isolation: The 
U.S. Surgeon General’s Advisory on the Healing Effects of Social Connection and 
Community” acknowledges the devastating impacts of increased isolation on all and 
identifies health outcomes as well as pillars to advance social connection and 
recommendations for stakeholders.  
 
Two American Network of Community Options and Resources (ANCOR) reports, 
“Addressing the Disability Services Workforce Crisis of the 21st Century and “Bringing 
Long-term Supports & Services into the 21st Century”, emphasize the need for service 
providers to receive training on using technology to deliver services and support 

68

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9FPBNxgUhBU
https://my.matterport.com/show/?m=kPPW3APrHgh
https://dodd.ohio.gov/about-us/resources/LADD_story
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/agendas/mhb/2023/230719_Meeting/230719_Zoom.mp4
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-social-connection-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-social-connection-advisory.pdf
https://www.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/surgeon-general-social-connection-advisory.pdf
https://cqrcengage.com/ancor/file/ZuL1zlyZ3mE/Workforce%20White%20Paper%20-%20Final%20-%20hyperlinked%20version.pdf
https://www.ancor.org/sites/default/files/news/ancor_technology_position_paper_-_final_-_7october2016_0.pdf
https://www.ancor.org/sites/default/files/news/ancor_technology_position_paper_-_final_-_7october2016_0.pdf


community integration, including self-advocates’ supported decision making in 
choosing and using technology to live more independent and overall quality lives.  
 
In support of self-directed services, even during an era when professional service 
capacity is so low as to offer very limited consumer choice, The Council on Quality 
and Leadership released “The Relationship Between Choice and Injuries of People 
With Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities”. Decisions about safety have 
typically been made by care providers rather than by people with I/DD, but it appears 
that injuries decrease with opportunities to make choices about their own care. The 
report concludes, “Beyond the potential impact on injuries, ultimately, choice is 
about ensuring people with IDD are supported to live the lives of their choosing.” 
 

I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Priorities: 

All proposals for funding must choose one of the following priority categories and 
clarify how the proposed services or supports align with that choice. Strengthening the 
Workforce and Self-Advocacy are not included for PY2025 because they are among 
CCDDB funding priorities. Other priority areas have been modified using input from 
people with I/DD and their supporters. People to be served should be eligible per Illinois 
Department of Human Services (DHS) Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD). 
 
PRIORITY: Short-Term Supports for People with I/DD 
People with I/DD have interests other than long-term care, and their success in 
many areas may be supported by short term support. These supports or specific 
assistance matched to their interests may be purchased for people by an agency. 
 
Strongest consideration should be offered to people with co-occurring diagnoses and 
multiple support needs, those not receiving services through any funder, and those 
who are unable to secure services locally but instead are served outside of 
Champaign County. People may engage an agency and their families and networks of 
supporters to clarify their preferences and help document needs. On behalf of the 
person, an agency could purchase appropriate, meaningful supports consistent with 
these and not available through other payers: devices and software needed for 
virtual access, equipment or classes related to a hobby or entrepreneurship, 
recreational opportunities requiring travel and related costs, assistive equipment, 
and transportation costs for Champaign County families to visit a person who is 
served outside of the County. Certain costs might recur within the Program Year. 

 

69

https://www.c-q-l.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/CQL-2023-Research-Choices-Injuries-Friedman.pdf
https://www.c-q-l.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/CQL-2023-Research-Choices-Injuries-Friedman.pdf


A National Core Indicators – Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Data 
Highlight finds that people with I/DD experience “abundant and well-documented” 
benefits from vacations. Because they take far fewer vacations than do their peers 
who do not have I/DD, and because these numbers sunk in recent years, inclusive or 
supported vacation options could bridge the gap. 
 
Champaign Community Advocacy and Mentoring Resources (CCAMR) resources 
should be used whenever they might support an identified preference. An agency 
would inform eligible people and, if help is preferred, work with them to complete an 
application through quarterly mini-grant opportunities. For purchases using I/DD 
Special Initiatives funding, the 2019 CCDDB mini-grant process may serve as a model, 
with an individual application form, per person cost limits, and follow up satisfaction 
survey. Sample documents are on pages 49 to 56 of the July 2022 CCDDB meeting packet 
or upon request from CCDDB/CCMHB staff. 

 
 
PRIORITY: Education on I/DD. 
People with I/DD would like professionals from other sectors to understand them 
and work with them more effectively. 
People with I/DD do not always feel welcome or included in this community.  
 
Advice and direction from self-advocates and their networks of supporters could 
shape the content of sector-specific and community-wide education efforts. 
 
An agency could purchase or develop training for professionals from other sectors, 
especially mental health providers. Other health and human service providers, law 
enforcement, first responders, educators, and court officers may also be interested.  
 
An agency could plan and host community awareness activities to improve 
understanding and build a more inclusive and welcoming community. Greater 
awareness may already have created conditions for system change. In the same way, 
broad awareness efforts might help our community to improve access and 
appreciate the gifts and contributions of people who have I/DD.  
 
PRIORITY: Technology and Training 
People with I/DD want access to more resources. This can be helped by virtual 
access training available to them, their staff, and their natural supporters. An 
agency could purchase equipment for a group and offer training in its use. 
 

70

https://ccmhddb-my.sharepoint.com/personal/lynn_ccmhb_org/Documents/Documents/Board%20meetings/IN%20PROGRESS%20board%20meetings/09202023%20DDB%20meeting%20packet/-%09https:/idd.nationalcoreindicators.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NCI-IDD-Data-Highlight-on-Vacations.pdf
https://ccmhddb-my.sharepoint.com/personal/lynn_ccmhb_org/Documents/Documents/Board%20meetings/IN%20PROGRESS%20board%20meetings/09202023%20DDB%20meeting%20packet/-%09https:/idd.nationalcoreindicators.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NCI-IDD-Data-Highlight-on-Vacations.pdf
https://www.ccamr.org/minigrants
https://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/agendas/ddb/2022/220720_Meeting/220720_Agenda.pdf


A program might cover costs associated with the development and staging of 
training opportunities or securing these through a qualified trainer. The audience for 
these would be Champaign County residents who have I/DD and any staff, family, or 
other natural supporters who assist these qualifying residents with virtual access and 
use. The agency might purchase a training program or equipment for groups of 
participants with similar interest. 
 
Also of interest would be a partnership to introduce remote supports into residences 
of people with I/DD and complex support needs. Devices and programs should match 
the interests and needs of people to be served in independent community settings. 
Strongest consideration should be given to people not receiving services and to 
those with complex support needs not receiving services which meet their needs.  

 
PRIORITY: Housing. 
People with I/DD can live independently in our community if appropriate living 
arrangements and supports are developed.  
 
Strongest consideration should be given to people not fully served who have I/DD 
and another diagnosis calling for active treatment, e.g., medical condition requiring 
treatment at home, mental health or substance use disorder, or physical disability 
supported by assistive equipment or specialized staff training. An agency might 
develop independent residential settings and supports for people who would benefit 
from and desire an affordable home and ongoing or short-term supports matched to 
their needs and preferences. A project might combine this priority and the 
technology and training priority to incorporate remote supports into a household.  

Criteria for Best Value: 

An application’s alignment with a priority category and its treatment of the overarching 
considerations described in this section will be used as discriminating factors toward 
final allocation decision recommendations. Our focus is on what constitutes a best value 
to the community, in the service of those who have I/DD. Some of these ‘best value’ 
considerations relate directly to priority categories and may be the focus of a proposal. 
 
Budget and Program Connectedness 
Detail on what the Boards would purchase is critical to determining best value. 
Because these are public funds administered by public trust fund boards, this 
consideration is at the heart of our work.  
 

71



Each program proposal requires a Budget Narrative with text sections the applicant 
uses to describe: all sources of revenue for the organization and those related to the 
proposed program; the relationship between each anticipated expense and the 
program, clarifying their relevance; the relationship of direct and indirect staff 
positions to the proposed program; and additional comments.  
 
One of the Minimal Expectations below is that an applicant be able to demonstrate 
financial clarity. This overlaps with but differs from Budget and Program 
Connectedness. Financial clarity is demonstrated by financial records maintained in 
an ‘audit-ready’ state. A recent independent audit, financial review, or compilation 
with no negative findings is one way to show that the applicant has this capacity. 
Those reports are not required with an application or in the Budget Narrative form 
but may be requested as part of the review and decision process. 
 
Another Minimal Expectation below asks for evidence that no other funding is 
available. The Budget Narrative submitted with each proposal is an excellent place to 
address these efforts. Through Budget Narrative comments, the program’s 
relationship to larger systems may be better understood, and the applicant may 
highlight how they will leverage other resources or use the requested funding as 
match for other resources. Programs offering services billable to Medicaid or other 
insurance should attest that they will not use CCDDB/CCMHB funds to supplement 
those. They may identify non-billable activities which can be charged to the proposed 
contract. While CCDDB/CCMHB funds should not pay for services billable to another 
payor, programs should maximize all resources, for their long-term sustainability and 
to ensure that CCDDB and CCMHB funding does not supplant other public systems.  
 
Participant Outcomes 
Also essential for demonstrating a best value is clarity about how the program will 
benefit the people it serves. Are people’s lives better because of the program? 
Simple, measurable outcomes are often the best way to communicate this. To 
demonstrate a program’s success in helping people achieve positive impacts, an 
applicant should use outcomes which consider participants’ gifts and preferences. 
For each defined outcome, the application will identify a measurable target, 
timeframe, assessment tool, and assessment process. All applicants are welcome to 
review the ‘measurement bank’ developed by local agencies and researchers. This 
repository offers a great deal of information on outcome measures appropriate to 
various services and populations and will be updated with new findings.  
 
Applicants will also identify how people learn about and access the program and will 
define outputs or measures of the program’s performance: numbers of people 

72

https://drive.google.com/drive/u/0/folders/0B6cs5gZd3CK1Q2RBcFZpaHFKWmM?resourcekey=0-LTlk4A6etptY5mCGDnw5JQ


served, service contacts, community service events, and other. While not Participant 
Outcomes, these are important and required with every proposal. 
 
Self-Determination and Self-Direction in Service Planning 
The most meaningful participant outcomes will be discovered through a person’s 
involvement in their own service plan. Centering people’s communication styles and 
networks of support, self-directed or person-centered planning can be done even if 
the person has been referred to the program by a third party.  
 
Every person should have the opportunity to inform and lead their service plan. The 
plan should balance what is important FOR the person with what is important TO the 
person, be responsive to their preferences, needs, values, and aspirations, and help 
them recognize and leverage their strengths and talents. CCDDB/CCMHB funding 
should focus on people rather than programs. In a self-determined system, people 
control their day, build connections to their community for work, play, learning, and 
more, create and use networks of support, and advocate for themselves. 
 
Proposals should describe the individual’s role in their own service planning process 
and should connect the program activities to what people have indicated they want 
and need. If funded, program activities are reported regularly, with data on the 
individuals served and detail on community inclusion. 
 
Eliminating Disparities in Access and Care 
Programs should move the local service systems toward equitable care resulting in 
optimal health and quality of life for all community members.  For this, barriers 
specific to some groups must be addressed and eliminated or overcome. 
 
Proposed programs should improve access and offer appropriate care for people 
from historically underinvested populations as identified in the 2001 Surgeon 
General’s Report on Mental Health: Culture, Race, and Ethnicity. These groups, 
people living in rural areas, and those with limited English language proficiency 
should have access to supports and services. Applications should identify 
engagement strategies which help people overcome or eliminate barriers to care. 
 
The application includes a Cultural and Linguistic Competence Plan (CLCP) template 
consistent with Illinois Department of Human Services requirements and National 
Standards for Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services in Health and Health 
Care (CLAS Standards.) A toolkit for these standards may be helpful to the applicant. 
One CLCP is completed for each organization. The program plan narrative for each of 

73

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20669516/
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/20669516/
https://www.cms.gov/About-CMS/Agency-Information/OMH/Downloads/CLAS-Toolkit-12-7-16.pdf#:~:text=The%20National%20CLAS%20Standards%20describe%20a%20framework%20to,of%20a%20health%20care%20organization%2C%20state%20or%20community.


an organization’s proposals should include strategies specific to proposed services. 
CCDDB/CCMHB staff offer technical assistance. 
 
Promoting Inclusion and Reducing Stigma 
Programs should increase community integration, including in digital spaces. People 
feel better when they have a sense of belonging and purpose. People are safer when 
they have routine contacts with co-workers, neighbors, members of a faith 
community, and acquaintances at fitness or recreation centers or in social networks. 
Positive community involvement can build empathy, redefine our sense of group 
identity, reduce stress, and decrease stigma. Stigma inhibits individual participation, 
economic self-sufficiency, safety, and confidence, and may be a driver of insufficient 
State and Federal support for community-based services. Stigma harms communities 
and people, especially those who have been excluded due to sexuality, gender, race, 
ethnicity, disability, immigrant/refugee/asylee status, or preferred or first language. 
 
The CCDDB and CCMHB have an interest in nurturing resilience, inclusion, and 
community awareness, as well as challenging negative attitudes and discriminatory 
practices. Full inclusion aligns with values of other Champaign County authorities and 
collaborations and with the standards established by Home and Community Based 
Services, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity, and Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Proposed programs should describe activities and strategies that expand community 
inclusion and social connectedness of the individuals to be served. 
 
Continuation of Services   
Applications should describe how people will be served in the event of a public health 
emergency which limits in-person contact. Because social isolation increased the 
need for some services, continuity of care is a new and important consideration. If a 
virtual service is expected to be less effective than in-person, or if the people to be 
served do not prefer virtual platforms, some capacity should still be maintained now 
that their value as backup plan has been demonstrated. The negative impacts of 
insufficient broadband capacity and limited access to and understanding of 
technology have also been demonstrated. 

Some regulatory changes supporting virtual innovation have been made permanent 
and others extended. Telehealth and remote meetings are now integrated in many 
programs. Even without a public health emergency, they connect more people to 
virtual care and enhance their access to other resources. 

Whether a focus of the proposal or already integrated, successes with technology 
and virtual platforms can be expanded with training and access for people who 
participate in services and for direct staff or others involved in their care. 

74



Unique Features 
Demonstrating a best value involves amplifying those characteristics of the service 
approach, staff credentials, or funding mix unique to the organization or proposed 
program. While the pressures on service provider agencies are great, innovative or 
tailored responses to people’s support needs and preferences should be highlighted. 
- Approach/Methods/Innovation: cite the recommended, promising, evidence-

based, or evidence-informed practice and address fidelity to the model under 
which services are to be delivered. In the absence of such an approach to meet 
a community need, describe the innovative approach and how it is evaluated. 

- Staff Credentials: highlight credentials and specialized training. 
- Resource Leveraging: describe how CCDDB and CCMHB funds are amplified, 

and other resources maximized: state, federal, or local funding; volunteer or 
student support; community collaborations. If CCDDB/CCMHB funds will meet 
a match requirement, reference the funder requiring match and identify the 
match amount in the application Budget Narrative. 

Expectations for Minimal Responsiveness: 

Applications not meeting the following expectations are “non-responsive” and will not 
be considered. Applicants must be registered at http://ccmhddbrds.org. Accessible 
documents and technical assistance, limited to use of the online tools, are available 
upon request through the CCDDB/CCMHB staff. 
 

1. Applicant is an eligible organization, demonstrated by responses to the 
Organization Eligibility Questionnaire, completed during initial registration. 

2. Applicant is prepared to show their capacity for financial clarity, especially if 
they answered ‘no’ to any question in the Organization Eligibility 
Questionnaire or do not have a recent independent audit, financial review, or 
compilation report with no findings of concern. 

3. All application forms must be complete and submitted by the deadline.  
4. Proposed services and supports must relate to I/DD. How will they improve 

the quality of life for persons with I/DD? 
5. Application must include evidence that other funding sources are not 

available to support the program or have been maximized. Other potential 
sources of support should be identified and explored. The Payer of Last Resort 
principle is described in Funding Requirements and Guidelines of each board. 

6. Application must demonstrate coordination with providers of similar or 
related services, with interagency agreements referenced. Evidence of 
interagency referral process is preferred, to expand the system’s reach, 
respect client choice, and reduce risk of overservice to a few. For an inclusive, 

75

http://ccmhddbrds.org/


efficient, effective system, applications should mention collaborative efforts 
and acknowledge other resources. 

Process Considerations: 

The CCDDB and CCMHB use an online system for organizations applying for funding. 
Downloadable documents on the Boards’ goals, objectives, operating principles, and 
public policy positions are also posted on the application website, at 
https://ccmhddbrds.org. Applicants complete a one-time registration process, 
including an eligibility questionnaire, before receiving access to the online forms. 
Funding guidelines and instructions on how to use the system are also posted there. 
 
Criteria described in this memorandum are guidance for the Boards in assessing 
proposals for funding but are not the sole considerations in final funding decisions. 
Other considerations include the judgment of the Boards and staff, evidence of the 
provider’s ability to implement the services, soundness of the methodology, and 
administrative and fiscal capacity of the applicant organization. Final decisions rest 
with the CCDDB and CCMHB regarding the most effective uses of the fund. Cost and 
non-cost factors are used to assess the merits of applications. The CCDDB and 
CCMHB may also choose to set aside funding to support RFPs with prescriptive 
specifications to address the priorities. 
 
Caveats and Application Process Requirements: 

• Submission of an application does not commit the CCDDB/CCMHB to award a 
contract or to pay any costs incurred in preparing an application or to pay for 
any other costs incurred prior to the execution of a formal contract. 

• During the application period and pending staff availability, technical 
assistance will be limited to process questions concerning the use of the online 
registration and application system, application forms, budget forms, 
application instructions, and CCDDB/CCMHB Funding Guidelines. Support is 
also available for CLC planning. 

• Applications with excessive information beyond the scope of the application 
format will not be reviewed and may be disqualified from consideration. 

• Letters of support are not considered in the allocation and selection process. 
Written working agreements with other agencies providing similar services 
should be referenced in the application and available for review upon request.  

• The CCDDB and CCMHB retain the right to accept or reject any application, or 
to refrain from making an award, when such action is deemed to be in the best 
interest of the CCDDB and CCMHB and residents of Champaign County. 

76

https://ccmhddbrds.org/


• The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right to vary the provisions set forth 
herein at any time prior to the execution of a contract where the CCDDB and 
CCMHB deem such variances to be in the best interest of the CCDDB and 
CCMHB and residents of Champaign County. 

• Submitted applications become the property of the CCDDB and CCMHB and, as 
such, are public documents that may be copied and made available upon 
request after allocation decisions have been made and contracts executed. 
Submitted materials will not be returned. 

• The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right, but are under no obligation, to 
negotiate an extension of any contract funded under this allocation process 
for up to a period not to exceed two years, with or without an increased 
procurement. 

• If selected for contract negotiation, an applicant may be required to prepare 
and submit additional information prior to contract execution, to reach terms 
for the provision of services agreeable to both parties. Failure to submit such 
information may result in disallowance or cancellation of contract award. 

• The execution of final contracts resulting from this application process is 
dependent upon the availability of adequate funds and the needs of the 
CCDDB and CCMHB. 

• The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right to further define and add application 
components as needed. Applicants selected as responsive to the intent of the 
application process will be given equal opportunity to update proposals for 
the newly identified components. 

• To be considered, proposals must be complete, received on time, and 
responsive to application instructions. Late or incomplete applications will be 
rejected. 

• If selected for funding, the contents of a successful application will be 
developed into a formal contract. Failure of the applicant to accept these 
obligations can result in cancellation of the award for contract. 

• The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right to withdraw or reduce the amount of 
an award if the application has misrepresented the applicant’s ability to 
perform. 

• The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right to negotiate the final terms of any or 
all contracts with the selected applicant, and any such terms negotiated 
through this process may be renegotiated or amended to meet the needs of 
Champaign County. The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right to require the 
submission of any revision to the application which results from negotiations. 

• The CCDDB and CCMHB reserve the right to contact any individual, agency, or 
employee listed in the application or who may have experience and/or 
knowledge of the applicant’s relevant performance and/or qualifications. 

77



Appropriation of CCDDB Funds by Sector, Population, and Service - Program Year 2024

Self
3%

Linkage
20%

Home
16%

Personal
13%

Work
17%

Community
25%

Workforce
6%

CCDDB and IDDSI PY24 Appropriation by Priority Category

Youth
13%

Adult
81%

Staff
6%

CCDDB and IDDSI PY24 Appropriation by Target Population
(very young children are served through MHB contracts)

Peer Support
7%

Capacity Building
8%

Screen/Support
20%

Outpatient
65%

CCDDB and IDDSI PY24 Appropriation by Type of Service

78



Champaign County Mental Health Board programs (not I/DD) for PY2024 (7/1/23-6/30/24)
Agency Program Focus $ Amount Summary

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 
Ch

ild
re

n'
s A

dv
oc

ac
y 

Ce
nt

er

Ch
ild

re
n'

s A
dv

oc
ac

y 
Ce

nt
er

He
al

in
g 

fr
om

 
In

te
rp

er
so

na
l V

io
le

nc
e

$6
3,

91
1 Using a child-centered, evidence based coordinated response to allegations of child 

sexual abuse and serious physical abuse, the CAC promotes healing and justice for young 
victims through: a family-friendly space for initial interview and parent meeting; a legally-
sound, developmentally appropriate child forensic interview; comprehensive case 
management provided by the CAC Family Advocate to help the family navigate the crisis; 
crisis counseling to the child and any non-offending family member; referrals to 
specialized medical services; and coordination of the investigation through 
multidisciplinary case reviews.

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 
Ch

ris
tia

n 
H

ea
lth

 
Ce

nt
er

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
at

 
CC

CH
C

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e $3

3,
00

0 Offers mental health care by mental health practitioners, along with primary care 
providers who also treat or refer those with various mental health conditions, especially 
anxiety and depression. A psychiatrist provides direct mental health care to patients; 
mental health patients receive mental health screenings, primary care, prescriptions, and 
referrals to specialized care as needed. Provided to any uninsured and underinsured 
resident of Champaign County, typically between the ages of 18 and 64 (as those under 
18 and over 64 generally have some form of health care coverage).

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Co

ns
um

er
s

CH
W

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
&

 
Be

ne
fit

 E
nr

ol
lm

en
t

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e $8

6,
50

1 Works with individuals experiencing behavioral health issues, helping them enroll in 
health insurance, food stamps, and other public benefits programs. Community Health 
Workers help stabilize individuals with resources and benefits, and help them navigate 
the health care system to get their needs met... establishes trust with clients by helping 
them gain and maintain access to many needed benefits, provides emotional support and 
helps them identify the types of services that they need in a non-stigmatizing and 
supportive way.

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Co

ns
um

er
s

Di
sa

bi
lit

y 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

$9
1,

50
0 Evaluations of disabling conditions and determinations of whether to apply for SSI or SSDI 

or both (depending on client's work history); assistance applying for and appealing 
adverse decisions; coordinating with attorney, if necessary to appeal decisions; 
emotional/psychological support for individuals applying. Often, the decision to apply for 
disability, and the process of doing so, can be challenging to the individual as they must 
come to terms with the idea that they are "disabled." Additional services to be provided 
to help facilitate approval for SSI/SSDI include helping clients to access various health 
services to document their disabling conditions.

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 H
ea

lth
 

Ca
re

 
Co

ns
um

er
s

Ju
st

ic
e 

In
vo

lv
ed

 
CH

W
 S

er
vi

ce
s &

 
Be

ne
fit

s

 S
af

et
y 

an
d 

Cr
isi

s 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n 

$9
0,

14
7 For people who have justice-involvment, Community Health Worker services are offered 

at the Champaign County jail and in community. Works with individuals experiencing 
behavioral health issues, helping them enroll in health insurance, food stamps, and other 
public benefits programs; helps stabilize individuals with resources and benefits; and 
helps them navigate the health care system to get their needs met.

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 
Re

gi
on

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 - 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Ho

m
el

es
s S

er
vi

ce
s 

Sy
st

em
 C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e $5

4,
28

1 Supports, facilitates, and directs the IL-503 Continuum of Care (CoC) aka Champaign 
County Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless; supports the body’s mission to 
end homelessness in Champaign County through a coordinated network of resources for 
those who are homeless or at-risk of becoming homeless; coordinates efforts across the 
CoC membership to support its goals and the Homeless Emergency and Rapid Transition 
to Housing (HEARTH) Act regulations; and builds and maintains collaborative partnerships 
with members and affiliates, working closely with the Executive Committee.

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 - 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Yo
ut

h 
As

se
ss

m
en

t C
en

te
r 

(C
om

pa
ni

on
 P

ro
po

sa
l)

Sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 C

ris
is 

St
ab

ili
za

tio
n

$7
6,

35
0 Early intervention and diversion for youth, particularly minority males, who are 

overrepresented in the juvenile justice system, and for youth whose behavior may be 
symptomatic of issues best served outside the juvenile justice system. Screens for needs, 
risks, and protective factors; uses Balanced and Restorative Justice (BARJ) approach; 
completes and reviews Station Adjustment as the working plan; may include weekly 
check-ins with case manager, curfew checks with police officer, reparation through 
written apology, community service hours, and linkage to social service, MH, or SUD 
treatment. Screening scores determine access to weekly phone counseling, group 
programming (CBT approach), and partnership with UIUC Psychological Services 
Center/Childhood Adversity & Resiliency Services to reduce barriers to MH treatment

79



CU
 E

ar
ly

CU
 E

ar
ly

-N
EW

 (a
no

th
er

 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 th
is 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
is 

fo
r D

D 
- s

ee
 b

el
ow

)

Th
riv

in
g 

Ch
ild

re
n,

 
Yo

ut
h,

 a
nd

 F
am

ili
es $7
3,

14
1 Bilingual home visitor for at risk Spanish speaking families, through home visiting 

program that serves expectant families and children up to age 3; completion of 
developmental screenings on all enrolled children alongside the parent to ensure that 
children are developing on track; referral to Early Intervention if there is a suspected 
disability or concern with the child’s development. 2020 IECAM data on Champaign 
County estimated there were 1,157 children under age 5 who speak Spanish, that 555 
Spanish speaking children were under 3, and that 1,188 children under 2 lived in poverty.  
($73 141 of the total contract relates to mental health  another $4 043 to I/DD )

CU
 a

t H
om

e

Sh
el

te
r C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 C

ris
is 

St
ab

ili
za

tio
n

$2
56

,7
00 Mid-Barrier Shelter Program: provides for a client’s essential needs, with services in a 

24/7, non-congregate, trauma-informed environment; clients can participate for 12-18 
months; intensive case management which employs client-centered, trauma- informed 
principles that assist in goal development to move clients toward stability; group 
activities; linkage to outside resources to develop a community network of assistance. 
Advanced Shelter: for clients who are either coming out of substance abuse treatment, 
are involved with Drug Court, or who have graduated from the Mid-Barrier program;  
services in a trauma informed, non-congregate setting; case management services to 
assist clients in developing case plans for stabilization. 

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 R
PC

 H
ea

d 
St

ar
t/

Ea
rly

 H
ea

d 
St

ar
t

Ea
rly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s (

an
ot

he
r 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

is 
co

nt
ra

ct
 re

la
te

s t
o 

DD
- s

ee
 b

el
ow

)

Th
riv

in
g 

Ch
ild

re
n,

 Y
ou

th
, a

nd
 F

am
ili

es

$1
97

,5
69 Social Skills & Prevention Coaches: collaborate with parents and Head Start staff to 

identify social-emotional strengths and areas of need for children; review and monitor 
developmental screenings for all students enrolled in HS/EHS; assist teaching staff and 
parents in writing individualized social-emotional goals and action plans; support staff 
and parents in identifying individualized inter/intra-personal goals and action plans and 
in reflection around inter/intra-personal skills used with children to improve co-
regulation, attunement, empathy, and compassionate limit setting; collaborate with 
stakeholders to develop Support Plans for children who engage in challenging behaviors 
to communicate their needs; facilitate workshops, support groups, and coaching for staff 
and parents on social-emotional development, compassionate caregiving, stress-
management, functional behavior assessments, trauma-informed practices/leadership, 
and cultural competency; support staff in monitoring children’s progress and outcomes; 
offer parenting consultation and coaching through Facebook groups and Zoom meetings; 
review developmental screenings and make recommendations regarding referrals, goals, 
services; create unique virtual stress management and equity-related content for local  
residents in collaboration with CU TRI. ($197,569 of the total contract is for Mental Health 

      

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ce
nt

er
 o

f 
N

or
th

er
n 

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Re

so
ur

ce
 

Co
nn

ec
tio

n

	Cl
os

in
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s 
in

 A
cc

es
s a

nd
 

Ca
re

$6
8,

60
9 A multi-service program aimed at assisting residents of northern Champaign County with 

basic needs and connecting them with mental health and other social services. Serves as 
a satellite site for various human service agencies providing mental health, physical 
health, energy assistance, and related social services. Features an emergency food pantry, 
prescription assistance, clothing and shelter coordination, and similar services for over 
1,700 households in northern Champaign County.

Co
ur

ag
e 

Co
nn

ec
tio

n

Co
ur

ag
e 

Co
nn

ec
tio

n

He
al

in
g 

fr
om

 
In

te
rp

er
so

na
l 

Vi
ol

en
ce

$1
27

,0
00 Provides services to all victims/survivors of domestic violence regardless of gender, 

immigration status, race, national origin, age, sexuality, or any other identifying factor. 
Eligibility is established based on self-report of domestic violence; there are no other 
barriers to receiving access to services. Helps victims and survivors of domestic violence 
rebuild their lives through advocacy, housing, counseling, court advocacy, self-
empowerment, community engagement, and community collaborations. 

Cr
is

is
 N

ur
se

ry

Be
yo

nd
 B

lu
e-

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

Th
riv

in
g 

Ch
ild

re
n,

 
Yo

ut
h,

 a
nd

 F
am

ili
es

$9
0,

00
0 Supports mothers experiencing perinatal depression, with a focus on the mental health 

and well-being of children and families, by strengthening the parent child bond through 
playgroups, support groups, and home visiting services. Through coordination with the 
Home Visitors Consortium, Crisis Nursery focuses on families who are identified as 
experiencing perinatal depression and then blends this programming with our Prevention 
Initiative funding through the Illinois State Board of Education which focuses on the 
development of children birth-3 years.

Cu
nn

in
gh

am
 

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
H

om
e

EC
HO

 
Ho

us
in

g 
&

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
Su

pp
or

t
 	C

lo
sin

g 
th

e 
G

ap
s i

n 
Ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 
C

 $1
27

,2
49 Provides comprehensive housing, employment, and life skills development to individuals 

who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, with the goal of providing resources that 
support independence.  Services are provided in the home, community, or office with the 
majority of services being provided in community settings.

80



Cu
nn

in
gh

am
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
H

om
e

Fa
m

ili
es

 S
tr

on
ge

r T
og

et
he

r

	Th
riv

in
g 

Ch
ild

re
n,

 Y
ou

th
, 

an
d 

Fa
m

ili
es

$3
98

,0
92 Provides voluntary trauma-informed, culturally responsive, therapeutic services for 

families and youth age 8 through 17 who have entered, or are at risk of entering the 
juvenile justice system. FST utilize the use of the Attachment, Regulation, and 
Competency (ARC) framework to promote resiliency as it is designed to strengthen the 
trauma-informed caregiving skills of caregivers. The ARC framework is adaptable to a 
variety of settings such as schools, afterschool programs, and community centers. The FST 
program helps youth and their families understand the impact that past experiences of 
trauma have had on their current level of functioning and/or behaviors that have brought 
them to the attention of the juvenile justice system.

D
on

 M
oy

er
 

Bo
ys

 &
 G

irl
s 

Cl
ub

CU
 C

ha
ng

e 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

 T
hr

iv
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n,
 

Yo
ut

h,
 a

nd
 

F
ili

 

$7
5,

00
0 Seeks to impact underresourced youth with potential for high school graduation by 

providing group and individual support, counseling, life skills training, and exposure to 
positive cultural and healthy life choices. Emphasizes academic support, community and 
positive peer engagment, hands on learning experiences with a plan for the future. 

D
on

 M
oy

er
 B

oy
s &

 
G

irl
s C

lu
b

CU
N

C

Th
riv

in
g 

Ch
ild

re
n,

 
Yo

ut
h,

 a
nd

 F
am

ili
es

$1
10

,0
00 Culturally-based and peer-based trauma-informed interventions, wellness and resilience 

building activities: GRITT, Stress Less, the S.E.L.F Curriculum, Start 2 Heal, Skills for 
Psychological Recovery and other evidence based/informed interventions in groups and 
individual settings for those experiencing gun violence, chronic stress, adversity or with 
emotional regulation needs.  Accomplished through training community members, 
focusing on youth leaders and elder helpers, and educating the community about trauma 
and trauma-informed care. 

D
on

 M
oy

er
 B

oy
s &

 G
irl

s 
Cl

ub

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

oa
lit

io
n 

Su
m

m
er

 In
iti

at
iv

es

 T
hr

iv
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n,
 Y

ou
th

, 
an

d 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

$9
0,

00
0 Supports youth and community mental health needs during critical out-of- school time 

over the summer months, when a lack of services is prevalent. Focused on violence 
prevention, enhancement of positive community engagement, academic enrichment, 
recreational activities, arts exploration, and leadership skill building. Services and 
supports by specialized providers, through subcontracts with Don Moyer Boys and Girls 
Club. The Champaign County Community Coalition and DMBGC support and reinforce 
System of Care principles and values, particularly relative to system-involved youth 
impacted with emotional and environmental challenges. Reports to and through the 
Champaign County Community Coalition and the CCMHB

D
on

 M
oy

er
 B

oy
s 

&
 G

irl
s C

lu
b

Yo
ut

h 
an

d 
Fa

m
ily

 
Se

rv
ic

es

 T
hr

iv
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n,
 

Yo
ut

h,
 a

nd
 

Fa
m

ili
es

 $1
60

,0
00 Serves Parents/caregivers of youth who: have been clinically diagnosed; are experiencing 

social, emotional, and/or behavioral health challenges; have been impacted or have a 
history of trauma; are involved in the juvenile justice, mental health, education or child 
welfare system. Supports are offered at home, in school, and in the community for 
optimal recovery. Parents/caregivers are partnered with a peer who has successfully 
navigated multiple child-serving systems. 

Ea
st

 C
en

tr
al

 IL
 

Re
fu

ge
e 

M
ut

ua
l 

As
si

st
an

ce
 C

en
te

r 
("

Re
fu

ge
e 

Ce
nt

er
")

Fa
m

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 
St

re
ng

th
en

in
g

 	T
hr

iv
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n,
 

Yo
ut

h,
 a

nd
 F

am
ili

es
 

$6
2,

00
0 Supports and strengthens refugee and immigrant families transitioning and adjusting to 

American culture and expectations in Champaign County. Staff speaks over ten languages 
in house, with other languages available through qualified translators… offers a 
connection to area resources that is culturally and linguistically appropriate. Staff often 
accompanies clients on appointments as advisors and trusted advocates. The goal is to 
give low-income immigrants better access to quality care and services, leading to thriving 
families and client self-sufficiency  

Fa
m

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
 o

f 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 

Co
un

se
lin

g

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

$3
0,

00
0 Affordable, accessible counseling services to families, couples and people of all 

ages. Serves Drug Court clients and participates in Specialty Courts collaboration. Clients 
are given tools and supports to successfully deal with life challenges such as divorce, 
marital and parent/child conflict, depression, anger management, anxiety, abuse, 
substance abuse/dependency and trauma. Strength-based, client-driven services utilize 
family and other natural support systems and are respectful of the client’s values, beliefs, 
traditions  customs  and personal preferences  Clients can be as young as 5

Fa
m

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
 o

f 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 

Se
lf-

He
lp

 C
en

te
r

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s 
in

 A
cc

es
s a

nd
 

Ca
re

 

$2
8,

43
0 Self-Help Center maintains and publishes information about and referral to local support 

groups. Provides information about local self-help groups and provides training, 
assistance, and publicity for group facilitators in Champaign County. Information is 
available online and in printed directory and specialized support group listings. Provides 
consultation services, workshops, conferences, educational packets and maintains a 
lending library of resource materials.

81



Fa
m

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
 

of
 C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 

Se
ni

or
 

Co
un

se
lin

g 
&

 
Ad

vo
ca

cy

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 

an
d 

Ca
re

 

$1
78

,3
86 Caseworkers assist with needs and challenges faced by seniors (60 or older) with multiple 

needs in terms of their emotional and/or physical health, as well as their requesting 
assistance in completing numerous applications and contacts with various safety net 
programs and service providers. Services are provided over the phone, Zoom meetings, in 
the home or in the community. 

Fi
rs

t F
ol

lo
w

er
s

Fi
rs

tS
te

ps
 R

ee
nt

ry
 

Ho
us

e

 S
af

et
y 

an
d 

Cr
isi

s 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n 

$3
9,

50
0 A transition house for men returning home to Champaign County after incarceration.  

Rent-free housing in a five bedroom house donated for use by the Housing Authority of 
Champaign County, for up to four men at a time. Provide furniture, appliances, 
computers, kitchen equipment, exercise equipment, some basic clothing items, food until 
the person has the means to pay for their own either through employment or Link Card. 
Staff assist residents in transition, help them set up plans of action and goals, provide 
transportation to potential employment or service opportunities, and facilitate their 
integration into the community.  Projected length of engagement is 3-12 months.

Fi
rs

t 
Fo

llo
w

er
s

Pe
er

 
M

en
to

rin
g 

fo
r R

e-
En

tr
y 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 S
af

et
y 

an
d 

Cr
isi

s 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n 

$9
5,

00
0 Formerly incarcerated individuals serve as peer mentors of the program as well as 

providing the direct support to clients. Provides counseling and social/emotional 
supports, workforce development programs, housing, assistance in accessing photo IDs 
and transportation, and more.

G
RO

W
 in

 Il
lin

oi
s

Pe
er

 S
up

po
rt

 In
no

va
tiv

e 
Pr

ac
tic

es
 

an
d 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 
Be

ha
vi

or
al

 H
ea

lth
 

S
i

 

$1
29

,5
83 A peer support group assisting with personal recovery and mental health of individual 

sufferers which may include addictions. Through leadership and community building, 
individuals attending weekly group meetings are given the tools and support to help 
them in their recovery and personal growth. Weekly group meetings / Organizer and 
Recorder meetings, Leaders meetings, and a monthly socials. Groups (3 to 15 members)  
include in-person as well as virtual sessions for men and for women, and are held in 
various locations around the County, including the Champaign County Jail.

Im
m

ig
ra

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s o

f 
CU Im

m
ig

ra
nt

 M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 P

ro
gr

am
-N

EW

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e $9

0,
00

0 Provides tele-mental health counseling, individual in-person counseling, small group 
therapy, forensic MH evaluations for asylum seekers, Living Room for walk-in 
consultations with social work team, eligibility assessment, selection of culturally 
appropriate providers, support to counseling (transportation and phone reminders), and 
help identifying other appropriate resources. Individuals engage in 5-6 sessions, followed 
by consultation on further steps. Core staff are supported by an internship program with 
UIUC School of Social Work (part time) and ISCU VISTA Family Assistance Coordinator (full 
time)  Both of these staff members are bilingual and native Spanish speakers

Pr
om

is
e 

H
ea

lth
ca

re

PH
C 

W
el

ln
es

s

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s 
in

 A
cc

es
s a

nd
 C

ar
e 

$1
07

,0
78 Case Managers and Community Health Workers provide assisstance to patients to 

address barriers to care, access to transportation, Medicaid and Marketplace insurance 
enrollment, Promise Sliding Fee Scale enrollment, SNAP enrollment, and enrollment in 
Medication Assistance Programs. The project will also establish a process for incoming 
referrals for behavioral health services and enabling services. Staff will assess patient 
need for enabling services and assist individuals in accessing behavioral health services.

Pr
om

is
e 

H
ea

lth
ca

re

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 C

ar
e $3

30
,0

00 On-site mental health services to achieve the integration of medical and behavioral 
health care as supported by both the National Council for Community Behavioral 
Healthcare and the National Association of Community Health Centers. Mental health 
and medical providers collaborate, make referrals, and even walk a patient down the hall 
to meet with a therapist. Patients receive MH treatment through counselor, psychiatrist 
or primary care provider. Counseling and psychiatry are available to patients at Frances 
Nelson, Promise Healthcare, Promise Urbana School Health Center, and by appointment 
with Dr. Chopra.

Ra
pe

 A
dv

oc
ac

y,
 C

ou
ns

el
in

g 
&

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es

Se
xu

al
 T

ra
um

a 
Th

er
ap

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
-N

EW

 H
ea

lin
g 

fr
om

 In
te

rp
er

so
na

l 
Vi

ol
en

ce
 

$1
40

,0
00 Improves the health and success of survivors by providing confidential trauma therapy 

and crisis intervention services to survivors of sexual violence and stalking.  Therapy 
services at RACES are part of the agency’s Survivor Services Program. Master’s level 
clinicians provide trauma-informed, culturally competent therapy through multiple 
treatment modalities, utilizing approaches that best meet the goals and the needs 
identified by clients. Cognitive-behavioral therapy, EMDR, and arts-based therapy, 
provided by five full-time staff members based out of the agency’s office in Urbana and a 
contractual therapist with office in Rantoul (established to increase access to therapy 
services for survivors in Rantoul and surrounding rural areas.)

82



Ra
pe

 A
dv

oc
ac

y,
 

Co
un

se
lin

g 
&

 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

Se
xu

al
 V

io
le

nc
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Ed

uc
at

io
n

 H
ea

lin
g 

fr
om

 
In

te
rp

er
so

na
l 

Vi
ol

en
ce

 

$7
5,

00
0 Services for residents of Champaign County aged three and older, at no cost. Uses a 

comprehensive, multi-level, evidence-informed strategy to provide age-appropriate 
programming to students, parents, teachers, and other community members. Special 
attention is given to ensuring the inclusion of historically underserved and marginalized 
communities, including racial and ethnic minorities, rural residents, members of the 
LGBTQ+ community, and individuals with disabilities. The most common locations for 
RACES prevention programming are K-12 schools.

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 

Ce
nt

ra
l I

lli
no

is

Be
ne

fit
s C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s 
in

 A
cc

es
s a

nd
 C

ar
e 

$8
0,

59
5 Benefits Case Manager assists clients with benefits enrollment, outreach and education, 

benefits counseling, and assistance with obtaining myriad resources available to 
behavioral health client.  The program aims to help clients obtain the benefits necessary 
to receive coverage for behavioral health and medical services, as well as other public 
benefit programs. May also assist clients with access to housing, employment, healthy 
food, and other resources.

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 C

en
tr

al
 

Ill
in

oi
s

Ch
ild

 &
 F

am
ily

 
Se

rv
ic

es

 T
hr

iv
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n,
 

Yo
ut

h,
 a

nd
 F

am
ili

es
 

$7
3,

50
0 For Champaign County residents aged 5 to 17 (and their families) with MH disorder and a 

need for counseling, transportation, case management, wellness, and psychiatric services 
supported by a licensed nurse who provides medication education, health and wellness 
promotion, and care coordination; multi-disciplinary team and coordination between 
psychiatrist and clinician; individual, group, or family counseling sessions, using skill-
building, psychoeducation, Cognitive Behavior Therapy, and Play Therapy; and 
transportation

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 C

en
tr

al
 

Ill
in

oi
s

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

PS
C

Sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 C

ris
is 

St
ab

ili
za

tio
n $3

20
,0

00 Community-based behavioral health program aims to reduce reliance on institutional 
care, with qualified professionals meeting those involved with the criminal justice system 
where they are—in the Champaign County jail, at probation, or in the community. Using a 
person-centered, client-driven plan, the staff coordinates across systems, with and on 
behalf of people with justice system involvement. Case managers conduct  screening, 
assessment, case management, and group therapy while individuals are in jail and help 
with the transition from incarceration to re-entry into the community.

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 

Ce
nt

ra
l I

lli
no

is

Cr
isi

s C
o-

Re
sp

on
se

 
(C

CR
T)

 

 S
af

et
y 

an
d 

Cr
isi

s 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n 

$2
07

,9
48 Responds to need for behavioral health support in Rantoul and Champaign County and 

aims to reduce the number of repeat calls to law enforcement for social emotional 
behavioral (SEB) needs by increasing available services, eliminating barriers to existing 
services, and increasing individual’s capacity to engage in treatment, while offering law 
enforcement an alternative to formal processing.

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 

Ce
nt

ra
l I

lli
no

is

Re
co

ve
ry

 H
om

e 

Cl
os

in
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s 
in

 A
cc

es
s a

nd
 C

ar
e

$1
00

,0
00 An alcohol and drug-free environment that provides individuals a safe, supportive living 

environment. Individuals go through a peer support recovery program while developing 
independent living skills in a community setting. Staff assist clients in addressing 
“problems in living” and the social determinants of health. The recovery home model 
demonstrates efficacy in mitigating risk of relapse and decreasing psychiatric symptoms 
when involved in 12-Step recovery and developing social supports. 

Ro
se

cr
an

ce
 C

en
tr

al
 

Ill
in

oi
s

Sp
ec

ia
lty

 C
ou

rt
s

 	S
af

et
y 

an
d 

Cr
isi

s 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n $1
78

,0
00 Specialty Courts (Mental Health Court and Drug Court) coordinates across systems, with 

and on behalf of people with substance use disorders or mental illness who have justice 
system involvement. Clinicians provide Specialty Court clients behavioral health 
assessments, individualized treatment plans, group, and individual counseling services. 
Case manager provides intensive case management to help clients overcome barriers and 
connect to mental health treatment and resources such as food, clothing, medical and 
dental services, employment, housing, education, transportation, and childcare.  

Te
rr

ap
in

 S
ta

tio
n 

So
be

r 
Li

vi
ng

Re
co

ve
ry

 H
om

e 

 C
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

G
ap

s i
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 

an
d 

Ca
re

 

$7
9,

67
7 Provides equitable housing for dual diagnosis persons in recovery from drug addiction, 

homelessness, and the justice system, in a manor that is forward-thinking and original. 
Intensive individualized case management; support for activities of daily living and 
relapse prevention skills; access to vocational/educational programs; assistance linking to 
medical, psychiatric, counseling, and dental services in the community; education on 
money management/budgeting; education on accessing peer or community supports and 
activities such as church, AA/NA meetings, other sobriety-based/mental health support 
groups, recreational activities, transportation services, and provision of service 
work/volunteer/work opportunities  

83



W
IN

 R
ec

ov
er

y

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
 

Re
En

tr
y 

Ho
us

es
-N

ew

 S
af

et
y 

an
d 

Cr
isi

s 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n 

$1
10

,0
00 Gender-responsive, trauma-informed, health-promoting services for women and gender 

minorities, as an alternative to incarceration upon reentry. Service navigation and 
assistance to meet individualized self-identified needs that may include housing, case 
management, support plan with self-identified goals and assessments of progress, 
physical/mental/emotional health care services, substance misuse/trauma recovery, 
education, employment, legal assistance, leadership training, peer-facilitated support 
groups, civic participation/community outreach, family therapy/reunification,  
compliance with parole/probation/DCFS/other, and recovery-based programming. All 
residents are provided curriculum books for trauma  parenting  and recovery classes  

Th
e 

U
P 

Ce
nt

er
 o

f 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty

Ch
ild

re
n,

 Y
ou

th
 &

 
Fa

m
ili

es
 P

ro
gr

am

 	T
hr

iv
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n,
 

Yo
ut

h,
 a

nd
 F

am
ili

es
 

$1
90

,0
56 Uniting Pride(UP) works to create a county inclusive of LGBTQ+ children, youth, adults, 

and families by providing programming and support across the lifespan. UP assists 
individuals dealing with depression, anxiety, substance use, suicidal ideation. Support 
groups meet in-person and/or on Zoom depending on participant preferences. UP 
provide trainings to organizations, agencies, schools to build inclusive communities 
accepting of LGBTQ+ members. UP has launched a food pantry, increased free gender-
affirming clothing program  and greatly expanded online resources

$4,913,803 CCMHB Total Investment in Programs other than DD

Champaign County Mental Health Board's I/DD programs for PY2024 (7/1/23-6/30/24)

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 
RP

C 
- H

ea
d 

St
ar

t/
Ea

rly
 H

ea
d 

St
ar

t
(p

ar
t o

f t
he

 M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 

ab
ov

e)
Co

lla
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 

CC
DD

B 
(p

or
tio

n 
fo

r 
DD

 se
rv

ic
es

) $1
49

,6
66 Seeks to identify and address social-emotional concerns in the early childhood period, as 

well as to promote mental health among all Head Start children. The social-emotional 
portion of the program focuses on aiding the development of self-regulation, problem 
solving skills, emotional literacy, empathy, and appropriate social skills. Accomplishments 
in these areas will affect a child’s ability to play, love, learn and work within the home, 
school and other environments. ($197,569 of the total contract is for Mental Health 
services, the remainder is $149,666 for I/DD.)

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
en

te
r

Fa
m

ily
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 C
CD

DB $6
56

,1
74 Serves children birth to five years, with or at risk of developmental disabilities and their 

families. Responds to needs with culturally responsive, innovative, evidence-based 
services. Early detection and prompt, appropriate intervention can improve 
developmental outcomes for children with delays and disabilities and children living in at-
risk environments. Family-centered intervention maximizes the gifts and capacities of 
families to provide responsive intervention within familiar routines and environments.  

CU
 E

ar
ly

(p
ar

t o
f t

he
 N

EW
 C

U
 E

ar
ly

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
bo

ve
)

Co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 C
CD

DB
 

(p
or

tio
n 

fo
r D

D 
se

rv
ic

es
) $4

,0
43 Supports a bilingual home visitor within home visiting program that serves at-risk 

children birth-to-3 and their families, focus on pregnant and parenting teens, at-risk 
families, and linguistically isolated families. Supports at-risk families of infants and 
toddlers in their efforts as their child's first teacher, to build a strong foundation for 
learning within enrolled families, and to assist parents in preparing their children for 
success in kindergarten and beyond. Program uses the Baby TALK model and curriculum 
and is Baby TALK Quality Certified. Seeks to ensure families receive adequate prenatal 
and well-baby health care, complete their education, and have the resources and skills to 
foster the optimal development of their child. ($73,141 of the total contract relates to 
mental health  another $4 043 to I/DD )

$809,883  Total CCMHB Investment in Agency I/DD Supports and Services 

Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board programs for PY2024 (7/1/23-6/30/24)
Agency Program Focus $ Amount Summary

CU
 A

ut
is

m
 

N
et

w
or

k

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

O
ut

re
ac

h

Se
lf-

Ad
vo

ca
cy $7

9,
13

2 Community resource information, education, and support through meetings emails, 
listserv, Facebook, and other networking outlets. Free, sensory friendly, family 
activities/pop-up play dates for people on the spectrum (skating, swimming, bowling 
etc.); Regular Lights Up Sounds Down Sensory Friendly Movies; Autism Aware Program; 
Community Outreach; Education Program; Beautification Community Program; Annual 
Walk and Resource Fair; Sensory Friendly Holiday events; Tailgate; and Parades.

84



CU
 A

ut
is

m
 N

et
w

or
k

CU
AN

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

ed
 G

ra
nt

 - 
N

EW

Se
lf-

Ad
vo

ca
cy

$6
5,

21
7 Resources to investigate, develop, and create a comprehensive action plan to create and 

operate a Regional Autism Support Network. CUAN will begin by engaging the community 
to understand its needs in a regional center’s offerings. This step comprises a series of 
community presentations, interviews, and surveys to ensure we offer exactly what our 
community needs. CUAN will initiate an external discovery to identify and model other 
community centers who operate autism support centers. CUAN will investigate 
collaborations, discuss with facility subject matter experts, collect quotes and service 
proposals, and create a due diligent and comprehensive budget to understand the 
necessary resources for plan execution. CUAN will engage with our community once 
again to present our findings, our planned offerings, and the proposed costs. The 
proposed plan will be opened to feedback and community recommendations via surveys 
and open-forum presentations. The final product of this proposal will be a fully 
investigated and vetted plan of action to deliver to our community the best possible 
Regional Autism Support Center CUAN and our collaborators can create  

Ch
am

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
- 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

De
ci

sio
n 

Su
pp

or
t P

CP

Li
nk

ag
e 

an
d 

Co
or

di
na

tio
n

$4
33

,7
77 Conflict-free case management and person-centered planning, transition from high 

school to adult life, identification of desired supports (for future system planning), and 
case management services for dually diagnosed adults. Extensive outreach, preference 
assessment, and person centered planning services for Champaign County residents with 
I/DD who do not yet have Medicaid-waiver funding. Consultation and transition planning 
for people with I/DD nearing graduation from secondary education. Conflict free person 
centered planning and case management services, using DHS’ Discovery and Personal 
Plan tools currently utilized by ISC agencies throughout Illinois for those who do have 
Medicaid waiver funding. Case management services for adults with I/DD and a mental 
health diagnosis  

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
, I

nc
.

Cu
st

om
iz

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

W
or

k 
Li

fe

$2
26

,5
00 Customized employment focuses on individualizing relationships between employees and 

employers resulting in mutually beneficial relationships. Discovery identifies strengths, 
needs and desires of people seeking employment. Job Matching identifies employers and 
learns about needs and meeting those needs through customized employment. Short-
term Support develops accommodations, support, and provides limited job coaching. 
Long-term Support provides support to maintain and expand employment. Supported 
Experiences for First Time Job Seekers provides classroom and intensive job-shadowing at 
two local businesses in structured 12-week program for first-time job seekers and others 
seeking additional experiences

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
, I

nc
.

In
cl

us
iv

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Su

pp
or

t (
fo

rm
er

ly
 C

om
m

. 
Li

vi
ng

)

Ho
m

e 
Li

fe

$1
98

,0
00 Housing, skills, connections, resource coordination, benefits and budget management, 

health, daily life coordination, and comprehensive HBS administration. Services chosen 
after in-depth planning process, in 1 of 3 tracks. Family-Driven Support: planning process 
for self-directed community living. Sustained Community Supports (ala carte): choice of 
specific services and supports in any domain, short or long term. HBS Basic Self-Direction 
Assistance (SDA): Individuals with state-funded HBS may choose an SDA to aid in the basic 
management of their personal support workers. (Paid for through Waiver Funding). 
Program Design: Support will be provided by a team and up to 5 times per week. Optional 
Personal Development Classes available to participants and other Members.

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
, 

In
c.

Se
lf 

De
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
Su

pp
or

t

Co
m

m
un

ity
 L

ife $1
76

,5
00 Family Support & Education: educating families on the service system, helping them 

support each other, and advocating for improved services through public quarterly 
meetings and individual family consultation. Leadership & Self-Advocacy: 1 leadership 
class and Human Rights & Advocacy Group. Community Building: Structured 
Opportunities for adults with I/DD to explore their communities; Urban Explorers 
community opportunities with support from CC staff; Organic Opportunities - member 
led connections; Social Coaching; and Clubs, Personal, and Community Connections.

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Ch
oi

ce
s,

 In
c.

St
af

f 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
an

d 
Re

te
nt

io
n 

- 
N

EW
St

re
ng

th
en

in
g 

th
e 

I/
DD

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

  

$3
4,

00
0 Allows for: New Hire Bonuses to attract and hire well qualified staff in a timely manner;  

$500 bonus to all new employees who successfully complete their training and 90 day 
probationary period; Retention Bonuses to retain high performing employees; current 
staff are eligible for a quarterly bonus of $500 for maintaining their good-standing, active 
employment, including ongoing professional development applicable to each position.

85



Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ic

es
, I

nc
.

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Su

pp
or

t -
 

N
EW

Pe
rs

on
al

 L
ife

  

$1
19

,5
00 Addresses barriers that many people with I/DD have in accessing and being engaged in 

the community. Transportation Coordination and Training: A dedicated staff person will 
be hired to manage, schedule, and train participants on the use of our transportation 
options as well as existing options (MTD, Uber, Lyft, etc) and the additional tools, 
technologies, and apps that can make those options safer and more accessible. 
Personalized Driver Services: CC drivers will be available from 8am-8pm on weekdays to 
provide scheduled rides to members according to their needs and preferences. Cost-free 
rides will be door to door with personalized reminders/arrival confirmations. Group rides 
will also be available for CC structured events

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ce
nt

er

Cl
in

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Pe
rs

on
al

 L
ife

$2
41

,0
00 Mental health and behavioral expertise to support people with I/DD. Counseling 

assessment and planning; individual, family, and group counseling; crisis 
response/intervention, short-term, long-term counseling. Initial/annual psychiatric 
assessment, quarterly medication review, and individual planning consultation. 
Psychological assessment, including new prospective participants (eligibility 
determination) and for changes in level of functioning. DSC seeks clinicians and options 
beyond the consultants enlisted to support people seeking/receiving services. State 
funding is maximized prior to the use of county funding. Staff Support Specialist provides 
staff training and dedicated resources to improve behavioral support and enhance 

i i  

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s C

en
te

r

Co
m

m
un

ity
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

W
or

k 
Li

fe

$4
59

,6
06 Assists people to find and maintain jobs. Discovery process: employment plan 

development; interviews with the person and others; daily observation; exploration of 
job interests; encourage/support volunteer opportunities; discussions of pre-employment 
habits. Resume or portfolio development: interview preparation and support; contact 
with potential employers; soft skills education and practice. Application process/follow-
up: traditional and non-traditional approaches to interviewing/hiring. Job orientation, 
skill acquisition including transportation, mastery of specific job responsibilities, potential 
accommodations, adaptive tools, development of natural supports, foster relationship 
with supervisor and coworkers. Job coaching: advocacy, development of self-advocacy 
skills, identification of potential new responsibilities or promotions, monitoring work 
environment for potential risks to job security; identifying and facilitating natural 
supports. Supported Employment: establish volunteer/work options for all people; 
support to increase time management skills, communication, and work preparedness; 
support niches for a small group of people within local businesses.  New for PY24, 
Employment Plus addresses work/social life balance. Planned get-togethers will function 
as a peer support forum for participants. Topics and activities will be driven by attendees.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
en

te
r

Co
m

m
un

ity
 F

irs
t

Co
m

m
un

ity
 L

ife

$8
90

,0
42 Community connection through participation in self-advocacy, recreational activities, 

social events, educational groups, volunteering, and other areas of interest to enhance 
personal fulfillment. Personalized support based on individual interests with choice 
identified through the personal plan, self-report, and surveys completed prior to the 
rotation of group offerings. Supports people with a wide range of interests, abilities, and 
needs, with people choosing from a diverse menu of activities, over 30 options.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ce
nt

er

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Li
vi

ng

Ho
m

e 
Li

fe

$5
65

,4
80 Supports people to live their best life enjoying independence, community engagement, 

and self-sufficiency. Staff provide individualized training, support, and advocacy and 
assist people with independent living skills, health and wellness, community access, 
various financial supports, and technology. Emergency Response is available after hours 
and on the weekends.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
en

te
r

Co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 L

ife $1
06

,4
00 Community-based alternative encouraging personal exploration and participation in the 

arts/artistic expression, promoting life enrichment and alternative employment. 
Introduces and supports people to experience a creative outlet, promote self-expression, 
and profit from products they create/produce. Encourages people to be creative and 
offers a welcoming venue for a variety of events. Groups and classes vary and are based 
on the interests and requests of program participants. Program hosts on-site events to 
promote collaboration and a venue for like-minded community artists.

86



D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
en

te
r w

/ 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 C
ho

ic
es

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t F

irs
t

W
or

k 
Li

fe

$9
0,

10
0 Promotes a change in culture surrounding people with disabilities and their role and 

contribution to Champaign County as members of the workforce. Outreach and incentive 
for the business community promoting inclusion and prioritizing employment for people 
with disabilities. The Champaign County Directory of Disability-Inclusive Employers is a 
means of identifying employers who wish to hire qualified people with I/DD, a resource 
for those seeking employment, and a learning platform. Advocacy and ongoing dialogue 
with Division of Rehabilitation Services, Rotaries, Chambers of Commerce, and more.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ce
nt

er

Se
rv

ic
e 

Co
or

di
na

tio
n

Li
nk

ag
e 

an
d 

Co
or

di
na

tio
n

$4
96

,0
80 Works with ISC to develop Personal Plans and Implementation Strategies for county-

funded and waiver participants. Supports people to be as active as possible in the 
development of their plan and to speak up for what they want. Offers intake screening; 
advocacy; assessments; medical support; crisis intervention; 24-hour on-call emergency 
support; referral and collaboration with other providers; linkage to services; apply for and 
maintain enrollment in SSDI and SSI and "Extra Help"; coordinate and assist with 
Medicare eligibility and enrollment; Representative Payee support; access tax 
professionals for filing federal and state taxes; legal support; and housing support.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
en

te
r

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 

Re
te

nt
io

n

St
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
I/

DD
 W

or
kf

or
ce

  

$2
27

,5
00 Strengthens and stabilizes the workforce through training, support, and 

recognition/reward. Program utilizes trainings, resources, and tools for staff through 
NADSP membership. New employees will be provided hiring bonus after completing 
required agency training. Retention/incentive bonuses are paid to keep key employees 
during the workforce crisis and pandemic. Retention bonuses occur 3 times per year in 
recognition of staff enduring the challenges of a compromised work force and for the 
long-term effects of high turnover and frequent vacancies.

$4,408,834 CCDDB Total Investment in Supports for People with I/DD

CCMHB-CCDDB I/DD Special Initiatives programs for PY2024 (7/1/23-6/30/24)
Agency Program Focus $ Amount Summary

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
en

te
r

In
di

vi
du

al
 &

 F
am

ily
 

Su
pp

or
t

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

up
po

rt
s 

to
 U

nd
er

se
rv

ed
 

Pe
op

le

$2
50

,0
00 Resource Coordinator supports families to have access to much needed services, as there 

is no age requirement to access this support. Financial support from CCDDB has afforded 
families to benefit from extended breaks through support such as traditional respite, 
CUSR camps, after-school programs, and summer camps with specialized supports. Other 
examples have included YMCA and fitness club memberships; overnight trips to 
conferences; social skills training; home modifications; and therapy/sensory/accessibility 
equipment not funded by insurance.

PA
CE

Co
ns

um
er

 
Co

nt
ro

l i
n 

Pe
rs

on
al

 S
up

po
rt

St
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

$3
6,

00
0 Personal Support Worker (PSW) recruitment and orientation, focused on Independent 

Living Philosophy, Consumer Control, and the tasks of being a PSW. Personal Assistant 
(PA)/PSW Registry can be sorted by; location, time of day, services needed, and other 
information which allows consumers to get the PSW that best matches their needs. 
Service is designed to ensure maximum potential in matching person with I/DD and PSW 
to work long-term towards achieving their respective goals.

$286,000 CCDDB Total Investment in Supports for People with I/DD

Other supports funded by Champaign County Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities Boards

Al
lia

nc
e 

fo
r 

In
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
Re

sp
ec

t

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Ev
en

ts

An
ti-

St
ig

m
a,

 
M

I/
SU

D/
ID

/D
D CC

M
HB

, s
om

e 
CC

DD
B

Community events, including: sponsorship, screenings, and discussions of anti-stigma 
film, related activities (CCMHB only); coordination, promotion, and marketing of 
artists/entrepreneurs with disabilities, such as International Galleries year-round booth 
and indoor Market at the Square table; social media campaigns. Costs vary with 
opportunities for events and are offset by member contributions and in-kind.

Cu
ltu

ra
l a

nd
 

Li
ng

ui
st

ic
 

Co
m

pe
te

nc
e 

Co
or

di
na

tio
n

Tr
ai

ni
ng

s a
nd

 
Co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns

fo
r f

un
de

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s a

nd
 

bo
ar

d/
st

af
f

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
HB

Support to organizations serving or supporting people, in the areas of: Cultural and 
Lingustic Competence and the Enhanced National CLAS (Culturally and Lingustically 
Appropriate Services Standards); Working with Culturally Diverse Populations; Positive 
Youth Development; Asset Building for Youth; Ethical Communication; Building 
Evaluation Tools; System of Care Development; Addressing Mental Health Disparities; 
Systemic Racism; Community Engagement.

87



di
sA

bi
lit

y 
Re

so
ur

ce
 E

xp
o

An
nu

al
 E

xp
o 

Ev
en

t

An
ti-

St
ig

m
a,

 
M

I/
SU

D/
I/

DD

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
H

B 
$6

0,
00

0

A well-known, family-friendly event with information and resources from over 100 
organizations, to promote a better quality of life for people with disabilities. Resource 
book available year round, hard copy and reflected in a comprehensive searchable online 
directory. Costs are offset by significant contributions from sponsors and exhibitors as 
well as in-kind contributions.

21
1/

PA
TH

 
(w

ith
 U

ni
te

d 
W

ay
)

21
1

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

Re
fe

rr
al

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
H

B 
$2

2,
50

0

Staffed 24/7 to refer callers to the most appropriate source of assistance. Employs a 
database comprised of services which include health and human services, governmental 
agencies, non-for-profit organizations, and much more. The provider is also taking on 988 
duties, for managing mental health crisis calls. (In 2024, the State of Illinois will cover half 
of the cost.)

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
s

Ad
ul

t, 
Yo

ut
h,

 T
ee

n,
 a

nd
 P

ub
lic

 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
od

ul
es

 O
pe

n 
to

 c
om

m
un

ity
, l

im
ite

d 
se

rie
s 

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
HB

 (t
hi

s a
nd

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ca

te
go

ry
 h

av
e 

to
ta

l 
bu

dg
et

 o
f $

12
,0

00
)

Mental Health First Aid is a course designed to identify and understand signs and 
symptoms to provide the initial support for a person who is experiencing mental health 
challenges and/or challenges with substance use disorders. Mental Health First Aid for 
Adults and Adults Assisting Youth has a virtual option, as well as blended learning for 
both an in-person and self-paced course. NEW Teen Mental Health First Aid: this in-
person training will teach high school students about common mental health challenges 
and what they can do to support their own mental health and help a friend who is 
struggling. It is equipping young people with the knowledge and skills they need to foster 
their own wellness and to support each other. The in-person course normally costs about 
$45.00 per person, and the virtual option about $30.00. The Boards offer a minimum of 6 
classes per year  at low or no cost to the trainee  

M
on

th
ly

 
W

or
ks

ho
ps

Tr
ai

ni
ng

s,
 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

, 
Di

sc
us

sio
ns

 O
pe

n 
to

 
fu

nd
ed

 
pr

og
ra

m
s a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
HB Typically 2-3 hours and held on the last Thursday of each month. Sessions are free of 

charge, offer CEUs for various (QIDPs, LCSWs, and others as appropriate), and are on 
topics of interest to case managers, family members, social workers, and other 
stakeholders. Many topics are as requested. A goal is to develop topics for direct support 
professionals and find best time/location to offer sessions to this important group.

St
ud

en
t P

ro
je

ct
s

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 L
ab

, 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 D
at

a 
Cl

in
ic

, W
eC

U

 C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
  

CC
M

HB
/C

CD
DB

 

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
HB

CCMHB/CCDDB staff work with student groups on projects of interest to the boards and 
community, to strengthen the systems of care for people with MI, SUD, or I/DD.  Student 
groups have helped improve online resource information, reported on literature review 
of barriers to adequate social services workforce,nexplored best practices for outreach to 
rural residents, improved presentation of aggregate data from funded programs, 
designed marketing plans for entrepreneurs with disabilities, and more.

U
IU

C 
Fa

m
ily

 
Re

so
ur

ce
 C

en
te

r

Bu
ild

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 S
up

po
rt

s 
CC

M
HB

/C
CD

DB
 

fu
nd

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

CC
DD

B/
CC

M
HB

 
$1

27
,5

11

First full year of a second research project to improve the system of collection, reporting, 
and analysis of program performance measures across the diverse set of service provider 
agency programs. Works closely with 4-6 programs each year, plus follow up to all 
previous pilot programs. All funded programs are encouraged to use the consultation 
bank, repository of outcomes systems, and related trainings and presentations. Also 
assists CCDDB/CCMHB staff with enhancements of funding application materials and 
reporting requirements.

88



CC Head Start/Early Head Start (MH and DD programs combined)
Revenue Source Amount

CCMHB $326,369

ISBE $1,205,192

USHHS $8,389,448

USDA $350,000

United Way $46,800

Fees-Child Care $985,850

In-kind $686,261

Misc $30,560

Total Agency $12,020,480

MHB is the only program revenue.

Chart shows total agency revenue.

CU Early (MH services, some DD services)
Revenue Source Amount

CCMHB $77,184

ISBE $394,659

In Kind Contributions $19,950

Total Program $491,793

DSC Family Development
Revenue Source Amount

CCMHB $656,174

United Way $50,000

Misc $4,340

EI $247,240

Other Fees $449

Total Program $958,203

CCMHB
69%

United Way
5%

Misc
0%

EI 26%

Other Fees 
0%

CCMHB
16%

ISBE
80%

In Kind Contributions
4%

CCMHB
3%

ISBE
10%

USHHS
70%

USDA
3%

United Way
0%

Fees-Child 
Care
8%

In-kind
6%

Misc
0%

89



CCRPC - Decision Support PCP
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $433,777

Champaign County $320,000

Federal Grants $13,766,512

State Grants $6,604,122

Local Grants $819,327

Charge for Services $1,176,288

Interfund Transfers $288,300

CCMHB $130,631

Misc $49,359

Total AGENCY $23,588,316

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

CUAN - Community Outreach Program
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $79,132

CCDDB (other) $65,217

Contributions $2,989

Fundraising $26,229

In Kind Contributions $4,500

Total AGENCY $178,067

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

CUAN - Planning Seed Grant
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $65,217

CCDDB (other) $79,132

Contributions $2,989

Fundraising $26,229

In Kind Contributions $4,500

Total AGENCY $178,067

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

CCDDB (this 
contract)

37%

CCDDB 
(other)

44%

Contributions
2%Fundraising 15%

In Kind 
Contributions 

2%

CCDDB (this 
contract)

44%

CCDDB (other)
37%

Contributions
2%

Fundraising
15%

In Kind Contributions
2%

CCDDB
2%

Champaign County
1%

Federal Grants
58%

State Grants
28%

Local 
Grants

4%

Charge for 
Services

5%

Interfund Transfers
1%

CCMHB
1%

Misc
0%

90



Community Choices - Customized Employment
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $226,500

CCDDB (other) $528,000

Contributions $32,000

Fundraising $10,000

IL DRS $35,000

IL DDD $78,000

DDB E1 Subcontract $20,860

Total AGENCY $930,360

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

Community Choices - Inclusive Community Support
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $198,000

CCDDB (other) $556,500

Contributions $32,000

Fundraising $10,000

IL DRS $35,000

IL DDD $78,000

DDB E1 Subcontract $20,860

Total AGENCY $930,360

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

Community Choices - Self Determination Support
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $176,500

CCDDB (other) $578,000

Contributions $32,000

Fundraising $10,000

IL DRS $35,000

IL DDD $78,000

DDB E1 Subcontract $20,860

Total AGENCY $930,360

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

CCDDB (this 
contract)

19%CCDDB (other)
62%

Contributions
4%

Fundraising 1%

IL DRS 4%
IL DDD

8% DDB E1 
Subcontract

2%

CCDDB (this 
contract)

21%

CCDDB (other)
60%Contributions

4%

Fundraising
1%

IL DRS
4%

IL DDD
8%

DDB E1 
Subcontract

2%

CCDDB (this 
contract)

24%CCDDB (other)
57%

Contributions
4%

Fundraising
1%

IL DRS
4%

IL DDD
8%

DDB E1 Subcontract
2%

91



Community Choices - Staff Recruitment and Retention
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $34,000

CCDDB (other) $720,500

Contributions $32,000

Fundraising $10,000

IL DRS $35,000

IL DDD $78,000

DDB E1 Subcontract $20,860

Total AGENCY $930,360

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

Community Choices -  Transportation Support
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $119,500

CCDDB (other) $635,000

Contributions $32,000

Fundraising $10,000

IL DRS $35,000

IL DDD $78,000

DDB E1 Subcontract $20,860

Total AGENCY $930,360

DDB is the only revenue for the program.

CCDDB (this 
contract)

13%

CCDDB (other)
68%

Contributions
4%

Fundraising
1%

IL DRS
4%

IL DDD
8%

DDB E1 
Subcontract

2%

CCDDB (this 
contract)

4%

CCDDB (other)
78%

Contributions
3%

Fundraising
1%

IL DRS
4%

IL DDD
8%

DDB E1 Subcontract
2%

92



DSC Clinical Services
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $241,000

Training Fees $84

Misc $815

Total Program $241,899

DSC Community Employment
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $459,606

DHS FFS $25,000

DHS DRS $135,500

Training Fees $283

Misc $2,735

Total Program $623,124

DSC Community First
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $890,042

Contributions $200

Ford County MHB $24,960

DHS FFS $2,051,694

Training Fees $1,413

Misc $14,237

Total Program $2,982,546

DSC Community Living
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $565,480

United Way $35,625

DHS FFS $125,000

Training Fees $335

Misc $17,244

Total Program $743,684

CCDDB
30%

Contributions
0%

Ford County 
MHB
1%

DHS FFS 69%

Training Fees 0%

Misc
0%

CCDDB
74%

DHS FFS
4%

DHS DRS
22%

Training Fees
0%

Misc
0%

CCDDB
100%

Training Fees
0%

Misc
0%

CCDDB
76%

United Way
5%

DHS FFS
17%

Training Fees 0%
Misc 2%

93



DSC Connections
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $106,400

Training Fees $31

Misc $2,296

Total Program $108,727

DSC Employment First
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $90,100

Training Fees $31

Misc $297

Total Program $90,428

DSC Service Coordination
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB $496,080

DHS FFS $188,000

Training Fees $311

Misc $3,004

Total Program $687,395

CCDDB
72%

DHS FFS
27%

Training Fees
0%

Misc 1%

CCDDB
100%

Training Fees
0%

Misc
0%

CCDDB
98%

Training Fees
0%

Misc
2%

94



DSC Workforce Development and Retention
Revenue Source Amount

CCDDB (this contract) $227,500

CCDDB and IDDSI (all other) $3,098,708

CCMHB $656,174

United Way $107,000

Contributions $173,200

Fundraising $410,000

Ford County MHB $24,960

ISBE $295,700

DHS FFS $6,413,015

Title XX-DFI $74,687

DHS DRS $135,500

Client/Family Payments $574,910

EI $247,240

Training Fees $5,000

Sale of Goods $1,875,000

Misc $1,064,980

Total AGENCY $15,383,574

DDB is the sole funder of this program.

This chart shows total agency revenue.

CCDDB (this 
contract)

1%

CCDDB and IDDSI (all 
other)
20%

CCMHB
4%

United 
Way 1%

Contributions 
1%

Fundraising
3%

Ford County 
MHB
0%

ISBE 2%

DHS FFS
42%

Title XX-DFI
0%

DHS DRS
1%

Client/Family 
Payments

4%

EI
2%

Training Fees
0%

Sale of Goods
12%

Misc
7%

95



DSC Individual and Family Support
Revenue Source Amount

IDDSI $250,000

Training Fees $118

Misc $1,145

Total Program $251,263

PACE - Consumer Control in Personal Support
Revenue Source Amount

IDDSI $36,000

Contributions $2,280

Total Program $38,280

IDDSI
94%

Contributions
6%

IDDSI
100%

Training Fees
0%

Misc
0%

96



 

DECISION MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: September 20, 2023 
TO:  Members, Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) 
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director 
SUBJECT:  2024 Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board Fund Budget 

Overview:  
This memorandum presents revised draft budgets for the Champaign County Mental Health 
Board (CCMHB) and Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) for 
County Fiscal Year 2024 (January 1 - December 31, 2024). Board approval is requested for the 
CCDDB budget. I/DD Special Initiatives Fund and CCMHB Fund budgets are for information 
only, to clarify how CCDDB administrative costs are determined. 
 
These drafts form the basis for staff planning and have been revised with revenue and cost 
information from the County Executive and Deputy Director of Finance. Initial drafts were 
submitted to the County’s online systems and reviewed during the Champaign County Board’s 
August budget hearing. Final budgets will be presented during their appropriations process in 
November. Because the CCDDB and CCMHB each have authority over the development, 
setting, and implementation of their budgets, subsequent approvals will be requested prior to 
submission to the County Board. 
 
Attached are revised 2024 CCMHB, CCDDB, and I/DD Special Initiative Fund Budget 
documents, with background details including updated comparisons of proposed 2024, 
projected 2023, and actual revenues and expenditures for fiscal years 2014 through 2022. Also 
attached are the documents prepared for County Budget hearings and publication on their 
website with all other budgets. An Intergovernmental Agreement (not attached) between the 
CCMHB and CCDDB defines cost sharing, and the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund Budget is 
under joint authority of the Boards. 

Highlights of Initial Budgets:  
• Projected 2024 property tax revenue assumes 7% growth over 2023 for the CCDDB and 

CCMHB, with no adjustment for collection rate below 100%.  

• Miscellaneous Revenue includes excess revenue returned by agencies in a different fiscal 
year than expended (CCDDB and CCMHB budgets). This category may include refunds 
or honoraria, paid to the CCMHB and then split between the Boards (CCMHB budget). 

• Contributions & Grants are the largest expense in each budget, for contracts with 
organizations providing services to the populations of focus (all three budgets). 

• Neither Board will transfer an amount to the I/DD Special Initiatives Fund after 2023. 

• The I/DD Special Initiatives budget is based on joint decisions by the Boards regarding 
allocations to providers for special projects. 

97



• An expense category is added to the CCDDB budget for the DDB-specific insurance. 

• Some CCMHB expenses are not shared by the CCDDB: cost of anti-stigma film 
sponsorship, MHB Contributions & Grants, and MHB-specific insurance. 

• Many expenditure categories have changed due to the Champaign County Auditor’s 
Chart of Accounts, which has been adjusted a few times since the implementation of the 
new accounting system. New in 2023, continuing 2024: attorney fees; non-food supplies, 
equipment rentals, software licensing. (CCMHB budget). 

• Expo consultant charges and other expenses are now included with other Professional 
Services, Rental, Printing, Advertising, etc. Between 2020 and 2022, these had been 
separated for easier tracking. Expo revenues are combined with other Gifts & Donations 
but are the greatest portion (CCMHB budget).  

• While the State of Illinois is expected to assume this cost starting in 2023 or 2024, both 
Boards participate with United Way to purchase 211 services from PATH, Inc., per 2021 
approvals and shared as other costs, 57.85%/42.15% (CCMHB budget).  

Revisions for Consideration:  
• All changes from the previously approved budgets are italicized. 

• Property tax revenue is now projected to increase by 6.25% rather than 7% and is 
lowered in budgets (CCDDB and CCMHB) 

• Interest income is recalculated using June 2023 YTD (CCDDB and CCMHB) 

• Back Taxes revenue is recalculated using 1/3 of 2022 actual (CCDDB and CCMHB) 

• Because the adjustments in Revenue result in total revenues lower than those in 
previously approved budgets, some 2023 projections and 2024 budgeted expenses are 
revised to compensate. Others are revised to align with the County’s Chart of Accounts. 
Contributions & Grants lines are lowered (DDB and MHB) 

• The CCDDB budget balances. Use of some fund balance is requested for CCMHB. 

• Staff health insurance costs are increased in CCMHB budget, increasing Professional 
Services amount in CCDDB budget. 

Decision Section:  
Motion to approve the attached revised DRAFT 2024 CCDDB Budget, with anticipated 
revenues of $5,245,817 and expenditures of $5,245,817. 
 

_______   Approved 
________ Denied 
________ Modified 
________ Additional Information Needed 

98



LINE 
ITEM

BUDGETED REVENUE

400101 Property Taxes, Current $6,302,595

400103 Back Property Taxes $2,941

400106 Mobile Home Tax $4,200

400104 Payment in Lieu of Taxes $1,500

400476 CCDDB Revenue $425,371

400801 Investment Interest $56,268

400901 Gifts & Donations $3,000

400902 Expo Revenue $12,000

400902 Other Miscellaneous Revenue $30,000

TOTAL REVENUE $6,837,875

LINE 
ITEM

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

500102 Appointed Official $110,745

500103 Regular FTE $389,583

500105 Temporary Salaries & Wages $1,000

500108 Overtime Wages $500

500301 Social Security/FICA $38,275

500302 IMRF Employer Cost $13,559

500304 Workers’ Comp Insurance $2,001

500305 Unemployment Insurance $1,656

500306 Health/Life Insurance $89,064

Personnel Total $646,383

501001 Stationery & Printing (Printing & Copier Suppl) $1,000

501002 Office Supplies $4,200

501003 Books, Periodicals, and Manuals $300

501004 Postage, UPS, Fed Ex $2,000

501005 Food, Non-Travel $1,000

501013 Non-Food Supplies $200

501017 Equipment Less Than $5000 $7,000

501021 Employee Development/Recognition $285

Commodities Total $15,985

502001 Professional Svcs (adds Expo consultants, removes legal) $180,000

502002 Outside Services (Computer and Photocopier Services) $28,000

502003 Travel Costs $7,000

502004 Conferences and Training (Employee only) $4,000

502005 Training Programs (Non-Employee) $12,000

502007 Insurance (Non-Payroll) $15,000

502011 Utilities $0

502012 Repairs and Maintenance (short term) $300

502013 Rent (Office, Expo Storage/Booths/Venue) $40,000

502014 Finance Charges/Bank Fees $30

502019 Advertising, Legal Notices (adds Expo Marketing & 
Promotion)

$12,000

502021 Dues, License, & Membership $20,000

502022 Operational Services (Zoom, domain names, web hosting, 
surveys)

$7,000

502024 Public Relations (Anti-Stigma) $20,000

502025 Contributions & Grants $5,801,407

502037 Repairs and Maintenance (Bldg, Alarm) $300

502046 Equipment Lease/Rental $3,000

502045 Attorney/Legal Services $2,000

502047 Software License & SAAS (user license, software cloud & 
installed)

$14,000

502048 Phone/Internet $2,470

Services Total $6,168,507

700101 Interfund Transfer, CCDDB (Share of Expo and some of 
Other Misc Rev)

$7,000

Interfund Transfers TOTAL $7,000

TOTAL EXPENSES* $6,837,875

Draft 2024 CCMHB Budget

99



Draft 2024 CCDDB Budget

LINE ITEM BUDGETED REVENUE

400101 Property Taxes, Current $5,179,568

400103 Back Property Taxes $2,415

400106 Mobile Home Tax $3,000

400104 Payment in Lieu of Taxes $4,000

400801 Investment Interest $44,834

600101 Interfund Transfer (Expo and some Other Misc Rev) from MHB $7,000

400902 Other Miscellaneous Revenue $5,000

TOTAL REVENUE $5,245,817

LINE ITEM BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

5002001 Professional Services (42.15% of an adjusted set of CCMHB Admin 
Expenses)

$425,371

502007 Insurance $4,333

502025 Contributions & Grants $4,816,113

TOTAL EXPENSES $5,245,817

100



Draft 2024 I/DD Special Initiatives (formerly 
CILA Facilities) Fund Budget

LINE ITEM BUDGETED REVENUE

600101 From CCDDB Fund 108 $0

600101 From CCMHB Fund 090 $0

400801 Investment Interest $6,000

- From Fund Balance $400,000

TOTAL REVENUE $406,000

LINE ITEM BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

501017 Equipment Less than $5,000 (includes a designated gift  for the 
benefit of one individual, accessed at family request, with balance 
$5063 as of May 5, 2022)

$5,063

502001 Professional Services (legal, accounting, if needed) $1,000

502025 Contributions and Grants $399,737

502019 Legal Notices, Advertising $200

TOTAL EXPENSES $406,000

101



20
24

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 R
EV

EN
U

E
20

23
 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

20
22

 
AC

TU
AL

20
21

 
AC

TU
AL

20
20

 
AC

TU
AL

20
19

 
AC

TU
AL

20
18

 
AC

TU
AL

20
17

 
AC

TU
AL

20
16

 
AC

TU
AL

20
15

 
AC

TU
AL

20
14

 
AC

TU
AL

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
, C

ur
re

nt
$6

,3
02

,5
95

$5
,9

32
,7

29
$5

,4
92

,3
90

$5
,2

78
,3

25
$4

,8
80

,4
91

$4
,8

13
,5

98
$4

,6
11

,5
77

$4
,4

15
,6

51
$4

,2
46

,0
55

$4
,1

61
,4

39
$4

,0
37

,7
20

Ba
ck

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
$2

,9
41

$2
,5

34
$8

,8
24

$0
$3

,3
82

$6
,4

89
$4

94
$2

,7
31

$2
,4

86
$2

,8
61

$1
,6

12

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
x

$4
,2

00
$3

,5
00

$3
,7

00
$0

$3
,7

36
$4

,0
62

$3
,9

09
$3

,7
66

$3
,9

03
$3

,9
95

$3
,8

61

Pa
ym

en
t i

n 
Li

eu
 o

f T
ax

es
$1

,5
00

$1
,5

00
$1

,4
74

$3
,6

79
$1

,0
88

$2
,6

04
$3

,4
06

$3
,2

01
$2

,9
70

$2
,8

69
$2

,8
59

C
C

D
D

B 
Re

ve
nu

e
$4

25
,3

71
$4

00
,5

01
$3

58
,4

50
$3

66
,3

44
$3

46
,7

06
$4

09
,1

75
$3

10
,7

83
$2

87
,6

97
$3

77
,6

95
$3

30
,6

37
$3

37
,5

36

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nt
er

es
t

$5
6,

26
8

$4
0,

00
0

$4
7,

85
5

$1
,3

43
$7

,6
27

$4
5,

95
0

$4
1,

81
8

$1
8,

47
3

$3
,4

93
$1

,3
85

$1
,0

15

G
ift

 &
 D

on
at

io
ns

$3
,0

00
$3

,0
00

$0
$1

00
$2

,9
00

$4
,7

06

Ex
po

 R
ev

en
ue

 (n
ow

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 O

th
er

 M
is

c 
Re

v)
$0

$0
$0

$1
00

$1
3,

80
5

$1
4,

27
5

$2
1,

61
3

$5
,2

25
$1

8,
82

2
$2

6,
22

1
$2

8,
19

2

O
th

er
 M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

Re
ve

nu
e

$4
2,

00
0

$4
2,

00
0

$5
5,

16
1

$2
,2

05
$8

0
$1

29
,0

28
$2

9,
95

5
$1

17
,1

95
$2

1,
34

0
$6

7,
59

9
$8

5,
71

9

*A
RP

A 
Fi

sc
al

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
Fu

nd
in

g
$0

$7
70

,4
36

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E

$6
,8

37
,8

75
$6

,4
25

,7
64

$5
,9

67
,8

54
$6

,4
22

,5
32

$5
,2

59
,8

15
$5

,4
29

,8
87

$5
,0

23
,5

55
$4

,8
53

,9
39

$4
,6

76
,7

64
$4

,5
97

,0
06

$4
,4

98
,5

14

20
24

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

 (S
EE

 P
AG

E 
5 

FO
R 

DE
TA

IL
S)

20
23

 
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
20

22
 

AC
TU

AL
20

21
 

AC
TU

AL
20

20
 

AC
TU

AL
20

19
 

AC
TU

AL
20

18
 

AC
TU

AL
20

17
 

AC
TU

AL
20

16
 

AC
TU

AL
20

15
 

AC
TU

AL
20

14
 

AC
TU

AL

Pe
rs

on
ne

l
$6

46
,3

83
$5

88
,1

29
$5

64
,4

44
$5

64
,5

42
$5

44
,0

01
$5

17
,0

53
$5

22
,0

73
$4

49
,2

20
$5

77
,5

48
$5

02
,8

90
$5

32
,9

09

C
om

m
od

iti
es

$1
5,

98
5

$1
6,

13
5

$1
0,

93
0

$8
,6

32
$1

2,
36

2
$1

1,
14

7
$1

0,
04

9
$6

,2
63

$7
,9

98
$1

1,
23

7
$9

,2
82

Se
rv

ic
es

 (n
ot

 C
on

tri
b 

& 
G

ra
nt

s)
$3

67
,1

00
$3

66
,9

17
$2

83
,0

66
$2

68
,5

12
$2

86
,9

12
$2

86
,3

76
$4

04
,0

59
$4

32
,8

28
$4

10
,1

57
$3

82
,8

70
$3

75
,7

35

*C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 &
 G

ra
nt

s
$5

,8
01

,4
07

$5
,4

28
,7

46
$5

,2
88

,0
28

$5
,0

63
,4

38
$4

,4
95

,8
20

$3
,9

93
,2

83
$3

,6
48

,1
88

$3
,5

93
,4

18
$3

,4
28

,0
15

$3
,3

35
,7

18
$3

,6
73

,9
66

In
te

rfu
nd

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
$7

,0
00

$7
,0

00
$6

,9
08

$2
8,

43
0

$5
,8

19
$4

06
,5

05
$5

6,
77

9
$5

7,
28

8
$6

0,
67

3
$0

$0

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

Ta
x 

C
as

e
$0

$0
$0

$0
$1

,6
48

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

SE
S

$6
,8

37
,8

75
$6

,4
06

,9
27

$6
,1

53
,3

76
$5

,9
33

,5
54

$5
,3

46
,5

62
$5

,2
14

,3
64

$4
,6

41
,1

48
$4

,5
39

,0
17

$4
,4

84
,3

91
$4

,2
32

,7
15

$4
,5

91
,8

92

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 fo

r 2
02

4 
C

C
M

H
B 

Bu
dg

et
, w

ith
 2

02
3 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 E

ar
lie

r A
ct

ua
ls

*P
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Bo
ar

d,
 th

e 
fu

ll 
am

ou
nt

 o
f A

RP
 re

qu
es

t i
s 

de
po

sit
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

20
21

, w
ith

 h
al

f s
pe

nt
 in

 2
02

1 
an

d 
th

e 
ot

he
r h

al
f

in
 2

02
2.

 T
hi

s 
re

su
lts

 in
 th

e 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f a

 s
ur

pl
us

 in
 2

02
1 

an
d 

de
fic

it 
in

 2
02

2,
 w

he
n 

in
 fa

ct
 th

e 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 w

ill 
co

ve
r i

t.

102



Pe
rs

on
ne

l 2
02

4 
v 

20
23

PE
R

SO
N

N
EL

20
24

20
23

Ap
po

in
te

d 
O

ffi
ci

al
$1

10
,7

45
$1

07
,0

00

Re
gu

la
r F

TE
$3

89
,5

83
$3

68
,1

98

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 W

ag
e/

Sa
l

$1
,0

00
$0

O
ve

rti
m

e 
W

ag
es

$5
00

$0

FI
C

A
$3

8,
27

5
$3

6,
35

3

IM
RF

$1
3,

55
9

$1
2,

54
6

W
-C

om
p

$2
,0

01
$2

,3
76

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

$1
,6

56
$1

,6
56

H
ea

lth
/L

ife
 In

su
ra

nc
e

$8
9,

06
4

$6
0,

00
0

$6
46

,3
83

$5
88

,1
29

C
om

m
od

iti
es

 2
02

4 
v 

20
23

C
O

M
M

O
D

IT
IE

S
20

24
20

23

Pr
in

tin
g 

& 
C

op
ie

r 
Su

pp
lie

s
$1

,0
00

$1
,0

00

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
pl

ie
s

$4
,2

00
$4

,2
00

Bo
ok

s/
Pe

rio
di

ca
ls

$3
00

$3
00

Po
st

ag
e/

U
PS

/F
ed

 E
x

$2
,0

00
$2

,0
00

Fo
od

 N
on

-T
ra

ve
l

$1
,0

00
$1

,1
50

N
on

 F
oo

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
$2

00
$2

00

Eq
ui

pm
en

t U
nd

er
 $

50
00

$7
,0

00
$7

,0
00

Em
pl

oy
ee

 D
ev

/R
ec

$2
85

$2
85

$1
5,

98
5

$1
6,

13
5

Se
rv

ic
es

 (n
ot

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 G
ra

nt
s)

SE
RV

IC
ES

20
24

20
23

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s*
$1

80
,0

00
$1

82
,9

77

At
to

rn
ey

/L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s*

$2
,0

00
$2

,0
00

O
ut

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(e

.g
., 

C
om

pu
te

r)
$2

8,
00

0
$2

4,
61

1

Tr
av

el
 C

os
ts

$7
,0

00
$1

1,
50

0

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
(e

m
pl

oy
ee

 o
nl

y)
**

$4
,0

00
$4

,0
00

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
(N

on
-

Em
pl

oy
ee

)
$1

2,
00

0
$1

2,
00

0

In
su

ra
nc

e 
(N

on
-P

ay
ro

ll)
$1

5,
00

0
$1

8,
00

0

U
til

iti
es

 (n
o 

lo
ng

er
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

)
$0

$0

Eq
ui

pm
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$3
00

$3
00

Re
pa

irs
 (B

ro
ok

en
s)

$3
00

$0

Re
nt

al
 (O

ffi
ce

 a
nd

 E
xp

o)
**

*
$4

0,
00

0
$3

1,
56

5

Re
nt

al
 (E

qu
ip

m
en

t)
$3

,0
00

$2
,5

00

Fi
na

nc
e 

C
ha

rg
es

/B
an

k 
Fe

es
$3

0
$0

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
, L

eg
al

 N
ot

ic
es

 (a
dd

s 
Ex

po
 m

ar
ke

tin
g)

**
*

$1
2,

00
0

$1
2,

00
0

Pu
bl

ic
 R

el
at

io
ns

**
*

$2
0,

00
0

$2
0,

00
0

D
ue

s/
Li

ce
ns

es
$2

0,
00

0
$2

0,
00

0

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l S

vs
 (Z

oo
m

, e
tc

)
$7

,0
00

$9
,4

94

So
ftw

ar
e 

Li
ce

ns
e

$1
4,

00
0

$1
3,

50
0

Ph
on

e/
In

te
rn

et
$2

,4
70

$2
,4

70

$3
67

,1
00

$3
66

,9
17

In
te

rfu
nd

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

IN
TE

R
FU

N
D

 T
R

AN
SF

ER
S

20
24

20
23

C
C

D
D

B 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 E

xp
o 

an
d 

so
m

e 
of

 M
H

B 
M

is
c 

Re
ve

nu
e

$7
,0

00
$7

,0
00

$7
,0

00
$7

,0
00

*P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s:
Fo

r 2
02

3,
 E

xp
o 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

an
d 

Au
di

t a
nd

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 li

ne
.

At
to

rn
ey

/L
eg

al
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

lin
e.

 O
th

er
 ty

pi
ca

l
co

st
s:

 w
eb

si
te

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, H
R,

 s
hr

ed
di

ng
,

la
ng

ua
ge

 a
cc

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

do
cu

m
en

ts
,

in
de

pe
nd

en
t C

PA
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
re

vi
ew

,
21

1,
 H

ea
lth

 P
la

n 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 th

ro
ug

h 
U

ni
te

d 
W

ay
,

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
C

ap
ac

ity
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t..

**
C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 T

ra
in

in
gs

: 
Fo

r 2
02

3,
 n

on
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

/tr
ai

ni
ng

s 
co

st
s 

w
er

e 
to

 b
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

/
tra

in
in

gs
 b

ut
 w

ill 
ag

ai
n 

be
 s

pl
it.

 T
hi

s 
lin

e 
is

 fo
r 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 fe

es
, w

hi
le

 fo
od

 a
nd

 
tra

ve
l a

re
 n

ow
 in

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t l

in
e.

 N
on

-E
m

pl
oy

ee
: 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

; m
on

th
ly

 tr
ai

ni
ng

s 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 w
ith

 e
xp

en
se

s 
fo

r p
re

se
nt

er
s 

an
d 

su
pp

lie
s;

  
bo

ar
d 

m
em

be
r c

os
ts

 fo
r c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s.

 


**
*P

ub
lic

 R
el

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 d

is
Ab

ili
ty

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Ex

po
: 

Fo
r 2

02
3,

 th
es

e 
w

er
e 

to
 b

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 

De
pa

rtm
en

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
st

s.
 P

ub
lic

 R
el

at
io

ns
 w

ill 
ag

ai
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

Eb
er

tfe
st

 (n
ot

 s
ha

re
d 

w
ith

 C
C

DD
B)

, 
ot

he
r c

om
m

un
ity

 e
du

ca
tio

n/
aw

ar
en

es
s,

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 

su
pp

or
t. 

Ex
po

 e
xp

en
se

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 
se

ve
ra

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s.

Ad
di

tio
na

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t E

xp
en

se
s 

(P
ro

po
se

d 
20

24
 v

er
su

s 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

20
23

)

103



Ad
di

tio
na

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t S

er
vi

ce
s

SE
RV

IC
ES

20
24

20
23

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
Se

rv
ic

es
*

$1
80

,0
00

At
to

rn
ey

/L
eg

al 
Co

st
s 

in
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
lin

e.
 In

clu
de

s 
Ex

po
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 c
os

ts
 ($

48
,0

00
) 

an
d 

Au
di

t a
nd

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

Se
rv

ice
s 

($
13

,0
00

). 
AA

IM
 (3

 y
ea

r m
em

be
rs

hi
p)

 $
30

00
 a

nd
 

hu
m

an
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

se
rv

ice
s 

($
10

00
). 

$1
27

,5
11

 fo
r U

IU
C 

Ev
alu

at
io

n 
Ca

pa
cit

y 
Bu

ild
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t s
up

po
rt.

 $
22

,5
00

 to
 U

ni
te

d 
W

ay
 fo

r 2
11

. $
1,

00
0 

Ed
 M

cM
an

us
. $

20
,0

00
 

on
lin

e 
ap

pl
ica

tio
n/

re
po

rti
ng

 s
ys

te
m

s 
(E

M
K)

. $
2,

00
0 

Ex
po

 &
 A

IR
 w

eb
sit

es
. $

5,
00

0 
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 h

ea
lth

 p
lan

. L
an

gu
ag

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
sib

le 
do

cu
m

en
ts

; 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
te

st
in

g;
 g

ra
ph

ic 
de

sig
n;

 s
hr

ed
di

ng
 s

er
vic

es
; C

PA
 re

vie
w

s.

$1
82

,9
77

At
to

rn
ey

/L
eg

al 
Co

st
s 

in
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
lin

e.
 E

xp
o 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 c

os
ts

 ($
47

,0
00

) a
nd

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ov

ed
 to

 th
is 

lin
e 

($
12

,0
00

). 
$8

3,
33

5 
fo

r U
IU

C 
Ev

alu
at

io
n 

Ca
pa

cit
y 

Bu
ild

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t s

up
po

rt.
 $

22
,5

00
 to

 U
ni

te
d 

W
ay

 fo
r 2

11
.  

$2
00

0 
hu

m
an

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

se
rv

ice
s 

(A
AI

M
). 

$1
,0

00
 E

d 
M

cM
an

us
. $

18
,0

00
 o

nl
in

e 
ap

pl
ica

tio
n/

re
po

rti
ng

 
sy

st
em

s 
(E

M
K)

.  
$2

,0
00

 m
ain

te
na

nc
e 

of
 E

xp
o 

an
d 

AI
R 

sit
es

. $
5,

00
0 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 h

ea
lth

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 p

lan
. A

lso
 in

clu
de

s:
 la

ng
ua

ge
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le 
do

cu
m

en
t p

ro
du

ct
io

n;
 g

ra
ph

ic 
de

sig
n;

 s
hr

ed
di

ng
 s

er
vic

es
; C

PA
 re

vie
w

s.

Pu
bl

ic
 

Re
la

tio
ns

**
*

$2
0,

00
0

$1
5,

00
0 

Eb
er

tfe
st

 fi
lm

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

, o
ffs

et
 b

y 
Al

lia
nc

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
. $

3,
00

0 
es

tim
at

ed
 fo

r o
th

er
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
an

ti-
st

ig
m

a 
ar

t s
ho

w
(s

) a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n,

 in
clu

di
ng

 M
ar

ke
t i

n 
th

e 
Sq

ua
re

 
an

d 
po

ss
ib

le 
Fa

rm
er

s 
M

ar
ke

t. 
$2

,0
00

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

s 
of

 o
th

er
 e

ve
nt

s,
 in

 w
hi

ch
 E

xp
o,

 A
IR

, o
r t

he
 

Bo
ar

ds
 a

re
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

.

$2
0,

00
0

$1
5,

00
0 

Eb
er

tfe
st

 fi
lm

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

, o
ffs

et
 b

y 
Al

lia
nc

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
. $

3,
00

0 
es

tim
at

ed
 fo

r o
th

er
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
an

ti-
st

ig
m

a 
ar

t s
ho

w
(s

) a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n,

 in
clu

di
ng

 M
ar

ke
t i

n 
th

e 
Sq

ua
re

 
an

d 
po

ss
ib

le 
Fa

rm
er

s 
M

ar
ke

t. 
$2

,0
00

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

s 
of

 o
th

er
 e

ve
nt

s,
 in

 w
hi

ch
 E

xp
o,

 A
IR

, o
r t

he
 

Bo
ar

ds
 a

re
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

.

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
Re

so
ur

ce
 

Ex
po

**
*

$0
Ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

, R
en

ta
l, 

Ad
ve

rti
sin

g,
 a

nd
 P

R 
w

he
n 

Ex
po

-re
lat

ed
. S

up
po

rt 
fo

r 
Ex

po
 e

ve
nt

s,
 in

clu
di

ng
 v

en
ue

, s
up

pl
ies

, f
oo

d,
 in

te
rp

re
te

rs
, a

dv
er

tis
in

g,
 t-

sh
irt

s,
 s

to
ra

ge
 s

pa
ce

, 
et

c.
 E

xp
o 

Co
or

di
na

to
rs

, i
nt

er
pr

et
er

s,
 a

nd
 P

As
 c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

. C
os

ts
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

ex
hi

bi
to

r f
ee

s 
an

d 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

ps
.

$0
No

w
 c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

, R
en

ta
l, 

Ad
ve

rti
sin

g,
 a

nd
 P

R 
w

ith
 E

xp
o-

re
lat

ed
. S

up
po

rt 
fo

r E
xp

o 
ev

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

en
ue

, s
up

pl
ies

, f
oo

d,
 in

te
rp

re
te

rs
, a

dv
er

tis
in

g,
 t-

sh
irt

s,
 s

to
ra

ge
 

sp
ac

e,
 e

tc
. E

xp
o 

Co
or

di
na

to
rs

, i
nt

er
pr

et
er

s,
 a

nd
 P

As
 c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vic
es

. C
os

ts
 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
ex

hi
bi

to
r f

ee
s 

an
d 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
ps

. T
ot

al 
co

st
 in

 2
02

2 
$7

0,
11

0,
 to

ta
l d

on
at

io
ns

 $
19

,7
78

 
(in

clu
de

s 
in

-k
in

d.
)

C
C

M
H

B 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
s 

& 
G

ra
nt

s

$5
,8

01
,4

07
Es

tim
at

ed
 C

CM
HB

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

4,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 

M
ay

 2
02

3,
 p

lu
s 

1/
2 

of
 e

st
im

at
ed

 P
Y2

5 
an

nu
al 

all
oc

at
io

n 
am

ou
nt

, w
ith

 a
ge

nc
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
m

ax
im

um
s 

to
 b

e 
au

th
or

ize
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
4.

$5
,4

28
,7

46
CC

M
HB

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 M

ay
 2

02
2,

 
pl

us
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 in

 M
ay

 2
02

3 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
fro

m
 J

un
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
02

3.

C
C

D
D

B 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
s 

& 
G

ra
nt

s

$4
,8

16
,1

13
Es

tim
at

ed
 C

CD
DB

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

4,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 

M
ay

 2
02

3,
 p

lu
s 

1/
2 

of
 e

st
im

at
ed

 P
Y2

5 
an

nu
al 

all
oc

at
io

n 
am

ou
nt

, w
ith

 a
ge

nc
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
m

ax
im

um
s 

to
 b

e 
au

th
or

ize
d 

by
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
4.

$4
,4

41
,8

83
Ac

tu
al 

CC
DD

B 
pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

 fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
 to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3,
 a

s 
au

th
or

ize
d 

in
 M

ay
 

20
22

, p
lu

s 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 in
 M

ay
 2

02
3,

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

fro
m

 J
un

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

02
3.

D
ue

s/
Li

ce
ns

es
$2

0,
00

0
$1

,0
00

 n
at

io
na

l t
ra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(N

AC
BH

DD
), 

$1
6,

00
0 

st
at

e 
tra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(A

CM
HA

I),
 a

nd
 

sm
all

er
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

Hu
m

an
 S

er
vic

es
 C

ou
nc

il, 
Ar

c 
of

 Ill
in

oi
s,

 a
ny

 n
ew

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p,

 e
.g

., 
CB

HA
, 

NC
BH

, N
AD

D,
 p

os
sib

le 
NA

DS
P 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p.

$2
0,

00
0

$9
50

 n
at

io
na

l t
ra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(N

AC
BH

DD
), 

$3
,0

00
 A

AI
M

 (p
aid

 e
ve

ry
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s)
, $

16
,0

00
 

st
at

e 
tra

de
 a

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
(A

CM
HA

I),
 s

m
all

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
Hu

m
an

 S
er

vic
es

 C
ou

nc
il, 

Ar
c 

of
 Ill

in
oi

s,
 

po
ss

ib
le 

NA
DS

P 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p.

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

/T
ra

in
in

g
$4

,0
00

$1
00

0 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
fo

r N
AC

o 
an

d 
NA

CB
HD

D 
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

an
d 

Po
lic

y 
Co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
(lik

ely
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

AC
M

HA
I).

 $
35

0 
fo

r N
AC

o 
An

nu
al 

M
ee

tin
g.

 R
eg

ist
ra

tio
n 

fe
es

 fo
r o

th
er

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e/

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

st
af

f m
em

be
rs

 m
ig

ht
 in

clu
de

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 A
m

er
ica

, F
ed

er
at

io
n 

of
 F

am
ilie

s,
 A

rc
 o

f I
L,

 N
AD

D,
 o

r 
sim

ila
r. 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 tr
ain

in
g 

an
d 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n.

 C
os

ts
 o

f t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 m

ea
l p

er
 d

iem
s 

fo
r 

st
af

f f
or

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
se

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 a
re

 in
clu

de
d 

in
 th

e 
Tr

av
el 

Co
st

s 
lin

e.

$4
,0

00
$0

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

fo
r N

AC
o 

an
d 

NA
CB

HD
D 

Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
an

d 
Po

lic
y 

Co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

(o
ffs

et
 b

y 
AC

M
HA

I).
 

$3
50

 fo
r N

AC
o 

An
nu

al 
M

ee
tin

g.
 R

eg
ist

ra
tio

n 
fe

es
 fo

r o
th

er
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e/
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

rs
 m

ig
ht

 in
clu

de
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 A

m
er

ica
, F

ed
er

at
io

n 
of

 F
am

ilie
s,

 A
rc

 o
f I

L,
 N

AD
D,

 o
r 

sim
ila

r. 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 F

irs
t A

id
 tr

ain
in

g 
an

d 
ce

rti
fic

at
io

n.
 C

os
ts

 o
f t

ra
ve

l a
nd

 m
ea

l p
er

 d
iem

s 
fo

r 
st

af
f f

or
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 a

re
 in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Tr
av

el 
Co

st
s 

lin
e.

N
on

-
Em

pl
oy

ee
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

/ T
ra

in
in

gs
**

$1
2,

00
0

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n,

 c
os

ts
 o

f t
ra

ve
l, 

lo
dg

in
g,

 a
nd

 fo
od

 fo
r b

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

 to
 a

tte
nd

 N
at

io
na

l o
r S

ta
te

 
As

so
cia

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 o

r t
ra

in
in

gs
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
Al

so
 c

ha
rg

ed
 h

er
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

co
st

s 
as

so
cia

te
d 

w
ith

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 tr
ain

in
gs

 a
nd

 m
on

th
ly 

lea
rn

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s/

tra
in

in
gs

 fo
r n

on
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
(e

.g
., 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 o

th
er

 s
er

vic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s)

, w
hi

ch
 

ca
n 

in
clu

de
 p

re
se

nt
er

s,
 re

nt
al,

 re
fre

sh
m

en
ts

, m
at

er
ial

s,
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n.
 S

om
e 

vir
tu

al 
tra

in
in

gs
.

$1
2,

00
0

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n,

 c
os

ts
 o

f t
ra

ve
l, 

lo
dg

in
g,

 a
nd

 fo
od

 fo
r b

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

 to
 a

tte
nd

 N
at

io
na

l o
r S

ta
te

 
As

so
cia

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 o

r t
ra

in
in

gs
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
Al

so
 c

ha
rg

ed
 h

er
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

co
st

s 
as

so
cia

te
d 

w
ith

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 F
irs

t A
id

 tr
ain

in
gs

 a
nd

 m
on

th
ly 

lea
rn

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s/

tra
in

in
gs

 fo
r n

on
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
(e

.g
., 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 o

th
er

 s
er

vic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s)

, w
hi

ch
 

ca
n 

in
clu

de
 p

re
se

nt
er

s,
 re

nt
al,

 re
fre

sh
m

en
ts

, m
at

er
ial

s,
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n.
 S

om
e 

vir
tu

al 
tra

in
in

gs
.

U
ne

xp
ec

te
d

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 s

up
po

rts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

, n
on

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 tr

ain
in

gs
, P

ub
lic

 R
ela

tio
ns

, E
xp

o 
co

st
s.

 P
ub

lic
 

he
alt

h 
ba

rri
er

 to
 la

rg
e 

ga
th

er
in

gs
. C

os
t o

f m
ov

in
g 

of
fic

es
 to

 a
 d

iffe
re

nt
 lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 re
no

va
tin

g,
 

gr
ea

te
r n

ee
d 

fo
r l

eg
al 

co
un

se
l. 

Bu
dg

et
 a

m
en

dm
en

t i
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
sig

na
tio

n 
(w

ith
 b

en
efi

ts
 

pa
yo

ut
) o

r c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

ta
ffin

g.
 F

un
d 

ba
lan

ce
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

es
t i

n 
M

ay
, a

t w
hi

ch
 p

oi
nt

 th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
ou

gh
 fo

r 6
 m

on
th

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

+ 
an

y 
ta

x 
lia

bi
lity

 +
 s

ha
re

 (5
7.

85
%

/4
2.

15
%

) o
f a

cc
ru

ed
 s

ta
ff 

be
ne

fit
s.

 If
 fi

rs
t t

ax
 d

ist
rib

ut
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

 b
y 

Ju
ne

, f
un

d 
ba

lan
ce

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

.

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 s

up
po

rts
 to

 a
ge

nc
ies

, n
on

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 tr

ain
in

gs
, P

ub
lic

 R
ela

tio
ns

, E
xp

o 
co

st
s.

 P
ub

lic
 

he
alt

h 
ba

rri
er

 to
 la

rg
e 

ga
th

er
in

gs
. C

os
t o

f m
ov

in
g 

of
fic

es
 to

 a
 d

iffe
re

nt
 lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 re
no

va
tin

g,
 

gr
ea

te
r n

ee
d 

fo
r l

eg
al 

co
un

se
l. 

Bu
dg

et
 a

m
en

dm
en

t i
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
sig

na
tio

n 
(w

ith
 b

en
efi

ts
 p

ay
ou

t) 
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

ta
ffin

g.
 F

un
d 

ba
lan

ce
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

es
t i

n 
M

ay
, a

t w
hi

ch
 p

oi
nt

 th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
ou

gh
 

fo
r 6

 m
on

th
s 

op
er

at
in

g 
+ 

an
y 

ta
x 

lia
bi

lity
 +

 s
ha

re
 (5

7.
85

%
/4

2.
15

%
) o

f a
cc

ru
ed

 s
ta

ff 
be

ne
fit

s.
 If

 
fir

st
 ta

x 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

 b
y 

Ju
ne

, f
un

d 
ba

lan
ce

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

.

104



20
24

20
23

*
C

C
DD

B 
Sh

ar
e

C
C

DD
B 

Sh
ar

e
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

le
ss

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

$1
00

91
83

$9
50

,1
81

Ad
ju

st
ed

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
x 

42
.1

5%
$4

25
,3

71
$4

00
,5

01
M

on
th

ly 
To

ta
l f

or
 C

C
DD

B 
Ad

m
in

$3
5,

44
8

$3
3,

37
5

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

C
D

D
B 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Sh
ar

e 
(“

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s”
)

20
24

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
20

23
 P

R
O

JE
C

TE
D

20
22

 A
C

TU
AL

20
21

 
AC

TU
AL

20
20

 
AC

TU
AL

20
19

 
AC

TU
AL

20
18

 
AC

TU
AL

20
17

 
AC

TU
AL

20
16

 
AC

TU
AL

20
15

 
AC

TU
AL

20
14

 
AC

TU
AL

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
, C

ur
re

nt
$5

,1
79

,5
68

$4
,8

75
,6

07
$4

,5
11

,2
49

$4
,3

34
,1

87
$4

,0
01

,8
72

$3
,9

82
,6

68
$3

,8
46

,4
13

$3
,6

84
,0

09
$3

,5
95

,1
74

$3
,5

45
,4

46
$3

,5
01

,3
62

Ba
ck

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
$2

,4
15

$2
,5

00
$7

,2
46

$0
$2

,7
73

$5
,3

69
$4

12
$2

,2
78

$2
,1

05
$2

,4
37

$1
,3

98

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
x

$3
,0

00
$3

,0
00

$3
,0

39
$0

$3
,0

66
$3

,3
61

$3
,2

61
$3

,1
42

$3
,3

05
$3

,4
04

$3
,3

48

Pa
ym

en
t i

n 
Li

eu
 o

f T
ax

es
$4

,0
00

$4
,0

00
$1

,2
10

$3
,0

21
$0

$2
,1

54
$2

,8
41

$2
,6

71
$2

,5
15

$2
,4

45
$2

,4
79

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nt
er

es
t

$4
4,

83
4

$4
2,

00
0

$3
5,

28
5

$7
91

$4
,0

54
$2

3,
50

8
$2

4,
06

2
$1

0,
88

3
$2

,3
18

$1
,4

88
$8

12

G
ift

s 
& 

D
on

at
io

ns
 (t

ra
ns

fe
r f

ro
m

 M
H

B)
$7

,0
00

$4
,0

00
$6

,9
08

$0
$5

,8
19

$1
06

,5
05

$6
,7

79
$7

,2
88

$1
0,

67
3

$0
$0

O
th

er
 M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

Re
ve

nu
e

$5
,0

00
$5

,0
00

$0
$9

71
$9

,5
24

$8
,9

55
$6

,4
08

$1
4,

43
2

$0
$0

$1
1,

82
5

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E

$5
,2

45
,8

17
$4

,9
36

,1
07

$4
,5

64
,9

37
$4

,3
38

,9
70

$4
,0

27
,1

08
$4

,1
32

,5
20

$3
,8

90
,1

76
$3

,7
24

,7
03

$3
,6

16
,0

91
$3

,5
55

,2
20

$3
,5

21
,2

24

20
24

 B
U

D
G

ET
ED

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

20
23

 P
R

O
JE

C
TE

D
20

22
 A

C
TU

AL
20

21
 

AC
TU

AL
20

20
 

AC
TU

AL
20

19
 

AC
TU

AL
20

18
 

AC
TU

AL
20

17
 

AC
TU

AL
20

16
 

AC
TU

AL
20

15
 

AC
TU

AL
20

14
 

AC
TU

AL

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(4

2.
15

%
 o

f 
so

m
e 

C
C

M
H

B 
ex

pe
ns

es
, a

s 
ab

ov
e)

$4
25

,3
71

$4
00

,5
01

$3
58

,4
50

$3
66

,3
44

$3
30

,4
45

$3
09

,1
75

$3
10

,7
83

$2
87

,6
97

$3
79

,4
05

$3
30

,6
37

$3
37

,5
36

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 &
 G

ra
nt

s
$4

,8
16

,1
13

$4
,4

41
,8

83
$3

,7
77

,2
07

$3
,5

14
,1

53
$3

,6
59

,6
91

$3
,4

35
,7

48
$3

,2
50

,7
68

$3
,2

62
,9

38
$3

,2
06

,3
89

$3
,0

69
,1

22
$3

,2
24

,1
72

In
su

ra
nc

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
to

 D
D

B
$4

,3
33

In
te

rfu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

r, 
C

IL
A 

Fu
nd

$0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$0

In
te

rfu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

r t
o 

M
H

 (l
oa

n 
re

pa
y)

$0
$1

00
,0

00

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

Ta
x 

C
as

e
$0

$0
$0

$1
,3

63

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

SE
S

$5
,2

45
,8

17
$4

,8
92

,3
84

$4
,1

85
,6

57
$3

,9
30

,4
97

$4
,0

41
,4

99
$3

,8
94

,9
23

$3
,6

11
,5

51
$3

,6
00

,6
35

$3
,6

35
,7

94
$3

,4
49

,7
59

$3
,5

61
,7

08

   
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
:

20
24

20
23

   
C

C
M

H
B 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 &
 G

ra
nt

s
$5

,8
19

,4
06

$5
,4

28
,7

46
   

Bo
ok

ke
ep

in
g 

pi
lo

t
$0

$6
00

0
   

Eb
er

tfe
st

 a
nt

i-s
tig

m
a 

fil
m

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s

$1
5,

00
0

$1
50

00
   

M
H

B-
sp

ec
ifi

c 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

co
st

$5
28

5
0

   
C

C
DD

B 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 D

on
at

io
ns

 &
 M

isc
 R

ev
$7

,0
00

$7
,0

00
- 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 T
ot

al
:

$5
,8

46
,6

91
$5

,4
56

,7
46

   
C

C
M

H
B 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s:
$6

,8
55

,8
74

$6
,4

06
,9

27
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

le
ss

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

:
$1

,0
09

,1
83

$9
50

,1
81

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 fo

r 2
02

4 
C

C
D

D
B 

Bu
dg

et
, w

ith
 2

02
3 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 E

ar
lie

r A
ct

ua
ls

*A
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r, 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
en

se
s 

ar
e 

up
da

te
d,

 s
om

e 
re

ve
nu

es
 (e

.g
.,

Ex
po

) a
re

 s
ha

re
d,

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

C
C

DD
B 

cu
rre

nt
 y

ea
r s

ha
re

.

105



Special Revenue Funds
106



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

2

Mental Health Board
Special Revenue Fund (2090-053)

Mental Health Board positions: 6 FTE 
The Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB), consisting of nine volunteer Board members who are selected and appointed by the 
Champaign County Executive and Board, was established under Illinois Revised Statutes (405 ILCS – 20/Section 0.1 et. Seq.), “The Community 
Mental Health Act,” by a referendum approved by Champaign County voters. Through passage of the referendum, a property tax levy supports 
fulfillment of the Board’s mission in compliance with the Act. To help meet its obligations, the Board employs an administrative team consisting of an 
Executive Director and five specialized staff. 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the Champaign County Mental Health Board is the
promotion of a local system of services for the prevention and
treatment of mental or emotional, intellectual or developmental, and
substance use disorders, in accordance with the assessed priorities of
the citizens of Champaign County. 

Revenue raised through the levy is distributed, using a competitive
application process, to community-based organizations serving
Champaign County residents who have mental health or substance use
disorders or intellectual/developmental disabilities (I/DD). Because
most organizations’ fiscal years align with the state fiscal year, July 1
through June 30, and because many rely on state funding, the CCMHB
and other local funders use this as the contract period (or “Program
Year”), providing for clear, uniform financial reporting and increased
accountability. These CCMHB funds are allocated as Contributions and
Grants expenditures. 

Some activities contributing to the local system are undertaken outside
of those agency services budgeted through Contributions and Grants.
Additional strategies by which the CCMHB promotes a local system
include: 211 information and referral call services; Cultural and
Linguistic Competency technical assistance and training; Mental Health
First Aid trainings; monthly presentations and learning opportunities for
service providers and interested parties; anti-stigma awareness through
social media, website, and community events; projects with UIUC

student groups and instructors; promotion of the work of artists and
entrepreneurs with lived experience; collaborative community needs
assessments to understand the priorities of Champaign County citizens;
and a large annual disAbility Resource Expo with searchable,
comprehensive online resource guide. These activities are budgeted as
expenditures other than Contributions and Grants, and many are
shared with the Champaign County Board for Care and Treatment of
Persons with a Developmental Disability, referred to as Champaign
County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) through
intergovernmental agreement, included in revenue from the CCDDB to
the CCMHB. The CCMHB also oversees an I/DD Special Initiatives fund
in partnership with the CCDDB. The specific use of that fund has shifted
from housing to a range of supports. 

Please see http://ccmhddbrds.org for information on these supports,
agency programs currently funded by the CCMHB, funding guidelines
and financial accountability policy, Three Year Plan, allocation priorities
and timelines, and aggregate annual reports of the funded agencies’
performance outcomes. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS – Per Allocation Priority Category 
Safety and Crisis Stabilization. For the agency PY2024 contract year, July
1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the CCMHB has awarded contracts for:
services for people who have justice system involvement or who will be
able to avoid it as a result of the program involvement; services to those
enrolled in Champaign County Drug Court; various case management
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024107



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

3

and resources including housing supports and services, especially for
those at the jail, with gun charges, without a permanent address, or in
re-entry; crisis co-response and follow-up for domestic offense calls in
northern Champaign County and rural areas; Youth Assessment Center
support; and interruption of community violence. The CCMHB and staff
identify and encourage innovative practices with potential high returns
on investment, improved behavioral health outcomes, and cost-shift
impact. Related collaborations include: National Stepping Up, Familiar
Faces, and Data-Driven Justice Initiatives; the Illinois Criminal Justice
Information Authority’s Byrne State Crisis Intervention Program advisory
board; Illinois Department of Human Services Peer Certification training
and SAMHSA-funded Competency Restoration Initiative; and
Champaign County’s Crisis Intervention Team Steering Committee. 

Healing from Interpersonal Violence . To improve health and success of
survivors, reduce the stigma and isolation associated with interpersonal
violence, disrupt cycles of violence, promote trauma-informed care and
crisis response, the CCMHB funds counseling services, child victim
services, and other supports for survivors of domestic violence and
sexual assault. 

Closing the Gaps in Access and Care. Recommended Practices are
supported by an evidence base, cultural context, and sound clinical
judgment. Innovative Practices have value for populations not
thoroughly included in prevailing research and often not engaged in
services. Many programs are for services not covered by Medicaid or
another payor. With growing evidence of positive outcomes, peer
support organizations are funded and encouraged to partner. For
PY2024, the CCMHB funds: coordination of homeless services; benefits
enrollment; case management; housing and employment supports for
those with risk of homelessness (e.g., formerly in child welfare);
refugee center and other immigrant services; self-help center; services

for senior citizens; wellness and mental health supports at the Federally
Qualified Health Center and a free clinic; resource center in northern
Champaign County; family care; family therapy for multi-system
involved youth; and substance use recovery homes. 

Thriving Children, Youth, and Families. The Champaign County
Community Coalition consists of representatives from the Cities of
Champaign and Urbana, Urbana and Champaign schools and park
districts, Parkland College, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign,
United Way of Champaign County, Champaign Urbana Public Health
District, law enforcement, State’s Attorney’s Office, and other County
government. The Coalition promotes healthier and safer communities
through trauma-informed training, violence interruption, and positive
opportunities for youth, leading with System of Care values. For PY2024,
the CCMHB contracts for services and supports for children, youth, and
their families, aligned with System of Care principles. The partnerships
promoted through the Coalition are a continued focus. 

Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities. Per Intergovernmental
Agreement with the CCDDB, the CCMHB committed $809,883 for the
period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, for programs serving people with
I/DD. Contracts funded by the CCMHB align with a shared priority for
services for very young children. Early childhood providers continue a
robust interagency partnership to better support young children and
their families; many incorporate trauma-informed and System of Care
principles. Offered through one of these contracts is the PLAY Project,
an evidence-based program for young children with autism. 

Priorities for PY25: Early in 2024, the board will accept applications for
funding within a priorities framework approved in late 2023. Successful
applications will deliver services and receive payments beginning July 1,
2024 and through June 30, 2025. Select two-year contracts will
continue. 

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

Revenues
Property Taxes

400101 Property Taxes - Current 5,492,390 5,913,892 5,932,729 6,302,595

400103 Property Taxes - Back Tax 8,824 1,000 2,534 2,941

400104 Payment In Lieu Of Taxes 1,474 2,000 1,500 1,500

400106 Mobile Home Tax 3,700 0 3,500 4,200

Property Taxes Total 5,506,388 5,916,892 5,940,263 6,311,236
Intergov Revenue

400476 Other Intergovernmental 358,450 407,118 400,501 425,371

Intergov Revenue Total 358,450 407,118 400,501 425,371
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024108



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

4

Misc Revenue
400801 Investment Interest 47,855 3,000 40,000 56,268

400901 Gifts And Donations 0 3,000 3,000 3,000

400902 Other Miscellaneous Revenue 55,161 39,000 42,000 42,000

Misc Revenue Total 103,016 45,000 85,000 101,268
Revenues Total 5,967,854 6,369,010 6,425,764 6,837,875

Expenditures
Personnel

500102 Appointed Official Salary 106,734 107,000 107,000 110,745

500103 Regular Full-Time Employees 345,774 368,198 368,198 389,583

500105 Temporary Staff 0 2,500 0 1,000

500108 Overtime 0 2,750 0 500

500301 Social Security-Employer 32,974 36,353 36,353 38,275

500302 Imrf - Employer Cost 22,496 12,546 12,546 13,559

500304 Workers’ Compensation Insuranc 2,299 2,376 2,376 2,001

500305 Unemployment Insurance 1,495 1,518 1,518 1,656

500306 Ee Hlth/Lif (Hlth Only Fy23) 52,673 73,440 60,000 89,064

Personnel Total 564,444 606,681 587,991 646,383
Commodities

501001 Stationery And Printing 0 1,000 1,000 1,000

501002 Office Supplies 2,807 4,200 4,200 4,200

501003 Books, Periodicals, And Manual 0 300 300 300

501004 Postage, Ups, Fedex 1,171 2,000 2,000 2,000

501005 Food Non-Travel 150 150 1,150 1,000

501013 Dietary Non-Food Supplies 0 0 200 200

501017 Equipment Less Than $5000 6,802 7,000 7,000 7,000

501021 Employee Develop/Recognition 0 285 285 285

Commodities Total 10,930 14,935 16,135 15,985

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024109



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

5

Fund Balance Goal: The CCMHB’s goal is to maintain a fund balance
which assures adequate cash flow necessary to meet contractual and
administrative obligations, including for agency services and supports,
for six months. The majority of expenditures are payments to contracts

with terms July 1 to June 30, and because the fund is lowest just before
the first property tax disbursement in June-July, payment schedules are
adjusted to use as much of the fund as possible for these contracts.
During 2024, the CCMHB will transfer a relatively small amount from
Fund Balance to meet contractual obligations. This is affordable due to
lower than anticipated expenses in 2022.  

Services
502001 Professional Services 113,448 158,133 182,977 180,000

502002 Outside Services 30,830 27,000 24,611 28,000

502003 Travel Costs 975 1,500 11,500 7,000

502004 Conferences And Training 1,616 20,000 4,000 4,000

502005 Training Programs 0 0 12,000 12,000

502007 Insurance (Non-Payroll) 13,168 18,000 18,000 15,000

502011 Utilities 664 600 0 0

502012 Repair & Maint 0 600 300 300

502013 Rent 23,992 26,800 31,565 40,000

502014 Finance Charges And Bank Fees 0 30 0 30

502019 Advertising, Legal Notices 191 500 12,000 12,000

502021 Dues, License, & Membershp 17,720 20,000 20,000 20,000

502022 Operational Services 42,676 79,100 9,494 7,000

502024 Public Relations 32,370 0 20,000 20,000

502025 Contributions & Grants 5,288,028 5,378,131 5,428,746 5,801,407

502037 Repair & Maint - Building 0 0 0 300

502045 Attorney/Legal Services 0 0 2,000 2,000

502046 Equip Lease/Equip Rent 0 0 2,500 3,000

502047 Software License & Saas 5,415 0 13,500 14,000

502048 Phone/Internet 0 0 2,470 2,470

Services Total 5,571,093 5,730,394 5,795,663 6,168,507
Interfund Expense

700101 Transfers Out 6,908 17,000 7,000 7,000

Interfund Expense Total 6,908 17,000 7,000 7,000
Expenditures Total 6,153,375 6,369,010 6,406,789 6,837,875

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

Fund Balance

2022
Actual

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

3,684,523 3,703,498 3,703,499

FTE Summary

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
6 6 6 6 6
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024110



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

6

ALIGNMENT to STRATEGIC PLAN 

County Board Goal 1 – operate a high performing, open, 
transparent County government. 
With statutory responsibility to plan and evaluate systems of services
and supports, CCMHB members and staff maintain involvement in state
and national trade associations and advisory committees to maximize
advocacy impact and contact with state and federal leadership. 

Funding decisions are made in open, properly noticed meetings.
Requests for funding are reviewed in open meetings prior to these
decisions. Public participation is welcomed at meetings and study
sessions. Members of the public may also offer input via Board staff by
email. 

Strategic plans and funding allocation priorities are reviewed and
approved annually during open meetings, with opportunities for public
and stakeholder input, and finalized before public Notification of
Funding Availability is made, 21 days prior to the application period. A
timeline for these and related activities is included in board packets,
online, and upon request. 

An online application and reporting system is maintained and updated
to support these functions, at http://ccmhddbrds.org. Members of the
public, agency representatives, stakeholders, and CCMHB members
and staff contribute to revisions of materials and online system. 

At http://ccmhddbrds.org are links to information about funded
programs and other activities, along with downloadable documents of
interest to agencies and the public. 

During open meetings, Board members review requests for funding
and participate in deliberations about final allocations and any related
policies and procedures. 

Board members may use the online system to view: agency applications
for funding; agency reports of service activity, financial activity, CLC
progress, and annual performance outcomes; aggregate and sortable
data; announcements; and downloadable documents. Many reports
are made public, posted online or in board meeting materials,
summarized, and available upon request. 

All funded agencies use CCMHB approved expenditure and revenue
categories and accrual accounting. All are required to submit an annual
audit, financial review, or compilation report, depending on total
agency revenue level, conducted by an independent CPA firm. CCMHB
staff and consultant review these reports for alignment to standards
and to understand agencies’ financial standing. 

Board meeting schedules, agendas, minutes, and recordings are posted
for the public on Champaign County government’s website. 

Educational and collaborative opportunities advance the local system of
services and supports. 

Board staff have access to equipment facilitating office and remote
work. The transition to Office 365 and cloud-based storage was
completed in early 2022. 

County Board Goal 2 – maintain high quality public facili-
ties and roads and a safe rural transportation system. 
For fullest inclusion of people with I/DD, two small CILA group homes
were maintained at a high standard from 2015 through 2020. Due to
critical direct support staff shortages, the homes were vacated and sold
in 2021 and 2022. This County Board Goal is no long addressed directly,
but rather through those portions of service providers’ contracts which
cover costs related to their facilities. 

County Board Goal 3 –promote a safe, healthy, just com-
munity. 
Many CCMHB and contracted agency activities aim to: mitigate the
impacts of trauma and violence; reduce unnecessary or inappropriate
incarceration, hospitalization, or institutionalization of people with MI,
SUD, and/or I/DD; and improve health and social integration, including
of those in reentry and their loved ones. Efforts are made through
trauma and crisis response and stabilization, benefits enrollment,
intensive case management and coordination, peer supports and peer
mentoring, and collaboration with law enforcement. 

Staff participate in the Champaign County Reentry Council, Drug Court
Steering Committee, Crisis Intervention Training Steering Committee,
Youth Assessment Center Advisory Board, and more. Some crisis
response efforts are based on the earlier work of the County’s Jail Task
Force, Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Project, and Racial
Justice Task Force, and some relate to the federal mandate for a 988
crisis call system. When opportunities arise, staff and board members
contribute to statewide advisory boards (e.g., ICJIA State Crisis
Intervention Program) and through local collaborations such as the
Champaign County Community Coalition and the UIUC Campus
Community Compact. 

CCMHB staff meet with leadership of regional health and behavioral
healthcare providers and funders which have similar needs assessment
and strategic health plan mandates or practices, around the shared goal
of making this the healthiest community in the State. 

A 211 call service is co-funded with the United Way of Champaign
County. An accessible, searchable, online resource directory is
maintained at http://disabilityresourceexpo.org. 

The System of Care approach can improve outcomes for children,
youth, and families, especially those impacted by violence and other
trauma. Community-wide trauma education continues. 

Expense Per Capita (in actual dollars)

2022
Actual

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

$31.51 $30.94 $33.30
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024111



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

7

CCMHB staff organize learning and networking opportunities for
providers of mental health, substance use, and I/DD services,
collaborating with the UIUC School of Social Work to offer Continuing
Education Units at no cost to participants. 

With other units of government, educators, providers, stakeholders,
and advocacy organizations, the CCMHB collaborates on wellness/
recovery programming, innovative practices, and anti-stigma initiatives,
e.g., http://champaigncountyAIR.com and related social media. 

County Board Goal 4 – support planned growth to balance 
economic growth with natural resource preservation. 
In accordance with the Community Mental Health Act, the CCMHB
advocates at the state and national levels for and with people who use
or seek services. Staff participate in trade association activities and
committees, advocating for other sources of revenue for services and
for alignment of policies with best practices. 

The CCMHB seeks to understand the impact of changes to state and
federal programs, to make effective and ethical investments of local
funding. Independently and through collaboration, the CCMHB pursues
sustainable, efficient supports with other funders and community
partners. 

The majority of this fund is allocated to community-based organizations
to provide services, fostering a professional workforce which
contributes to the economy and character of the County. In turn,
effective programs allow people with behavioral health conditions and
I/DD to thrive and contribute to the community’s economy and culture. 

County Board Goal 5 – maintain safe and accurate county 
records and perform county administrative, governance, 
election, and taxing functions for county residents. 
In accordance with the Community Mental Health Act, the CCMHB
allocates funding as established through the original referendum. 

Online records are maintained at the County government website and
http://ccmhddbrds.org. Paper and electronic files are also maintained
and stored as required by the Local Records Act. 

DESCRIPTION 
The CCMHB was established under Illinois Revised Statutes (405 ILCS –
20/Section 0.1 et. Seq.) and is responsible for planning, coordinating,
evaluating, and allocating funds for a comprehensive local system of
mental health, intellectual/developmental disabilities, and substance
use services for Champaign County. 

On an annual cycle, the CCMHB evaluates, plans, and funds supports
for people with mental illness, substance use disorders, and
intellectual/developmental disabilities, with special emphasis on
underinvested populations. Service providers demonstrate financial
and programmatic accountability, report on the impact of services, and
implement cultural and linguistic competence plans as a condition of
contracting with the CCMHB. Providers and Board staff meet monthly
for updates and coordination of services. Collaboration with other
government, funding organizations, peer networks, community-based
providers, and parent and youth groups is also within the purview of
the CCMHB and enhances evaluation and planning. 

OBJECTIVES 
Continue and expand virtual and technology options for engaging the
community and people with mental health or substance use disorders
and/or intellectual/developmental disabilities, to align with relevant
public health guidance and state and federal mandates and policies. 

In collaboration with Champaign County Government and community
stakeholders, ensure that people with disabilities or behavioral health
conditions are diverted to services and supports and away from Jail
whenever appropriate. 

In collaboration with the Champaign County Community Coalition and
partners, address the effects of trauma, promote recovery, and improve
the system of care for children, youth, and families. 

Based on annually approved priorities and decision support criteria
and timeline, issue contracts for services and supports for people who
have mental health or substance use disorders or intellectual/
developmental disabilities. 

Monitor program and financial accountability for all such contracts with
community-based organizations. 

Through monitoring and collaboration, assist with improving services
and access to services. 

Based on the findings of the regional collaborative health plan (IPLAN)
and community health needs assessment, implement FY2024 objectives
for the CCMHB Three Year Plan for FY2022-2024. 

Define and refine outcomes, using input from stakeholders and people
who use or seek services. 
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024112



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

8

Performance Indicators

Indicator
2022

Actual
2023

Projected
2024

Budget
Number of contracts awarded and executed for services or 
supports for people with mental health or substance use 
disorders or intellectual/developmental disabilities

46 45 47

Number of people served who have a mental health/
substance use disorder or intellectual/developmental 
disability

21,305 19,800 20,100

Number of state or federal advocacy activities or reports 
completed by Board members and staff

18 15 15

Number of desk reviews conducted (number of reports 
submitted), per agency contract

20 (24) 20 (24) 20 (24)

Number of agency contract compliance reviews by CCMHB 
staff, per contract

0.5 0.75 1

Number of improvements to the tracking or reporting of 
program performance, utilization, cultural and linguistic 
competence plans, or financial activities (i.e., an 
enhancement or revision implemented during the fiscal 
year)

4 2 2

Number of funded (not funded) organizations represented 
at collaborative meetings with board staff

33 (9) 35 (8) 35 (8)

Number of funded agencies participating in the Financial 
Management Coaching project (launched December 1, 
2021)

4 n/a n/s

Number of funded programs participating as target 
programs in the Evaluation Capacity project (discontinued 
July 1, 2022)

5 6 6

Percentage of required reports received in compliance with 
terms of contract

90% 95% 95%
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024113



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

9

I/DD Special Initiatives (2101-054)
MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the I/DD Special Initiatives fund, formerly the
Community Integrated Living Arrangement (CILA) project, has been to
expand the availability of “smaller setting” homes for people with
intellectual and developmental disabilities (I/DD) and, to the extent
possible, assure that people from Champaign County have integrated
residential options within the County. The project arose in response to a
large number of residents having no choice other than to utilize CILA
services in communities far from Champaign County or to remain in
family homes with limited care. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 
In 2014, the Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) and the
Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB)
committed to purchasing properties for use as CILA houses, each with a
capacity of 4 or fewer people. Each board contributed toward the
purchase of the houses. During 2019, the CCMHB paid the mortgage
balance, and the Boards amended their intergovernmental agreement
to define future contributions and prepare for several possibilities. 

From 2015 through 2020, two houses were in operation, with services
provided by Individual Advocacy Group (IAG) and funded by the state of
Illinois Department of Human Services-Division of Developmental
Disabilities (IDHS-DDD). To stabilize the organization’s staffing level and

revenue for local operations, IAG worked with CCMHB and CCDDB
members and staff, local families, IDHS-DDD, and Independent Service
Coordination staff to create additional day and residential services in
the community. This was successful for a while in the face of persistent
barriers, namely the I/DD workforce shortage and uncertainty of state/
federal CILA funding. During 2020 and 2021, the workforce shortage led
to reduced operations and closure and sale of the homes. 

For 2023, the CCDDB will make its final planned interfund transfer to
the project, so that the Boards’ contributions are equal. With other
revenue transferred from fund balance, the primary expenses will be
for contracts with organizations to strengthen and stabilize the I/DD
direct support workforce or to provide a range of supports to such
individuals as would have been eligible for this project, had it
continued to offer housing with 24-hour staff. 

$5,063 of budgeted expenditures result from a gift designated for a
particular individual. This ’trust’ is accessed at the request of the
individual’s family and restricted by terms set by the private donor. 

101-054 was established in FY2016 in collaboration with the
Champaign County Auditor’s Office, for transparency in CILA fund
financial activities. The fund is renamed as “I/DD Special Initiatives” for
2023, in an effort to offer solutions to critical service capacity barriers.
These funds were previously held in 090-054. 

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

Revenues
Misc Revenue

400801 Investment Interest 10,443 1,000 17,000 6,000

400902 Other Miscellaneous Revenue 262,044 0 0 0

Misc Revenue Total 272,487 1,000 17,000 6,000
Interfund Revenue

600101 Transfers In 50,000 50,000 50,000 0

Interfund Revenue Total 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
Revenues Total 322,487 51,000 67,000 6,000

Expenditures
Commodities

501017 Equipment Less Than $5000 0 5,063 5,063 5,063

Commodities Total 0 5,063 5,063 5,063
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024114



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

10
Fund Balance Goal: The CCMHB/CCDDB’s I/DD Special Initiatives goal is
to maintain a balance which will allow for similar allocations over the
next two to three years. Fund balance from the sale of the homes will
be used for contracts with organizations to strengthen and stabilize the
I/DD direct support workforce or to provide a range of supports to
eligible individuals. In 2024, $400,000 of fund balance will be spent.  

ALIGNMENT to STRATEGIC PLAN 

County Board Goal 1 – operate a high performing, open, 
and transparent County government. 
The CILA project’s service provider was initially determined by a Request
for Proposal process, compliant with the Open Meetings Act.
Subsequent discussions and decisions related to the project have
occurred during public meetings of each of the CCDDB and CCMHB. 

The second phase of this project retains a focus on individuals who
have I/DD and complex service needs, particularly those needs which
are not easily met by a local provider agency. The focus shifts from
housing to funding of supports for such individuals and, if possible, to
attracting and retaining a qualified workforce to serve them. Allocation
priorities, review of proposals, and award decisions are discussed and
approved during public meetings of the two Boards. 

County Board Goal 2 – maintain high quality public facili-
ties and roads and a safe rural transportation system. 
For fullest inclusion of people with I/DD, two small CILA group homes
were maintained at a high standard from 2015 through 2020. Due to
critical direct support staff shortages, the homes were vacated and sold
in 2021 and 2022. This County Board Goal is no longer addressed
directly, but rather through those portions of agency contracts which
support their facilities costs. 

County Board Goal 3 –promote a safe, healthy, just com-
munity. 
The purpose of this project has been full community integration of
persons with I/DD, aligned with the State of Illinois’ Ligas Consent
Decree and ’rebalancing’ initiative to move people out of institutions
and into their home communities. Barriers have increased, requiring
new strategies. 

County Board Goal 4 – support planned growth to balance 
economic growth with natural resource preservation. 
The majority of this fund is allocated to community-based organizations
to provide services, fostering a professional workforce which
contributes to the economy and character of the County. Effective
programs allow people with I/DD and their families to thrive and
contribute to the community’s economy and culture. The CCMHB and
CCDDB are aware of planned improvements to services funded by the
state through its partnership with federal Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. To encourage maximum use of state funding
opportunities, they engage in advocacy and education and support
programs which help eligible people secure those awards. 

County Board Goal 5 – maintain safe and accurate county records and
perform county administrative, governance, election, and taxing
functions for county residents. 

Services
502001 Professional Services 1,302 4,000 4,000 1,000

502007 Insurance (Non-Payroll) 316 0 0 0

502011 Utilities 1,604 0 0 0

502012 Repair & Maint 14,060 0 0 0

502014 Finance Charges And Bank Fees 161 0 0 0

502019 Advertising, Legal Notices 0 200 200 200

502025 Contributions & Grants 0 341,737 150,000 399,737

Services Total 17,444 345,937 154,200 400,937
Expenditures Total 17,444 351,000 159,263 406,000

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

Fund Balance

2022
Actual

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

764,758 672,495 272,495
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024115



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

11
In accordance with the Community Mental Health Act and the
Community Care for Persons with Disabilities Act, the CCMHB and
CCDDB each allocate funding and enter into agreements as established
by their respective original referenda. 

Records are maintained at the Champaign County government website
and at http://ccmhddbrds.org. Paper and electronic files are
maintained and stored as required by the Local Records Act. 

DESCRIPTION 
The CCMHB was established under Illinois Revised Statutes (405 ILCS –
20/Section 0.1 et. seq.) to “construct, repair, operate, maintain and
regulate community mental health facilities to provide mental health
services as defined by the local community mental health board,
including services for the developmentally disabled and for the
substance abuser, for residents of Champaign County.” The CCDDB was
established under Illinois Revised Statutes (50 ILCS 835 Section 0.05-
14), the “Community Care for Persons with Developmental Disabilities
Act,” and also has authority to own facilities to be used in the provision
of services to people with intellectual and developmental disabilities. 

The CCMHB is responsible for planning, coordinating, evaluating, and
allocating funds for the comprehensive local system of mental health,
developmental disabilities, and substance use services for Champaign
County. The CCDDB is responsible for planning, coordinating,

evaluating, and allocating funds for services and supports for people
with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities. The Boards
promote systems of services for the benefit of Champaign County
residents, with special emphasis on historically underinvested and
marginalized populations. 

The I/DD Special Initiatives project is a collaboration between the
Boards, in recognition of their shared responsibility for people with I/
DD and according to their Intergovernmental Agreement as amended. 

OBJECTIVES 
Continue to explore and expand virtual and technology supports for
people with I/DD, to foster their fullest community involvement, aligned
with public health guidance and state and federal policies. 

When feasible, restore and expand CILA capacity in Champaign County
for people with intellectual and developmental disabilities. 

Through CCMHB and CCDDB allocation process, fund appropriate
supports for Champaign County residents who have intellectual/
developmental disabilities and complex support needs and fund efforts
to strengthen the I/DD direct support workforce which serves them. 

Performance Indicators

Indicator
2022

Actual
2023

Projected
2024

Budget
Number of people served through CILAs 2 n/a n/a

Total dollars appropriated for CILA Program 50,200 350,100 406,000

Updates from property manager 20 n/a n/a

Updates from residential service provider 4 n/a n/a

Non-residential service and supports (related to MI, SUD, 
or I/DD) available to people living in the CILAs

2 n/a n/a

Number of people receiving a support through contracts 
with agencies from this fund

n/a 85 120
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024116



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

12
Developmental Disabilities Board
Special Revenue Fund (2108-050)
The Champaign County Board for Care and Treatment of Persons with a Developmental Disability, referred to as the Champaign County 
Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB), consists of five volunteer Board members who are selected by the Champaign County Executive and 
Board. It was established under the Illinois County Care for Persons with Developmental Disabilities Act (IL Compiled Statutes, Chapter 55, Sections 
105/0.01 to 105/13 inclusive) by a referendum approved by Champaign County voters in 2004. Through passage of the referendum, a property tax 
levy supports fulfillment of the Board’s mission in accordance with the Act. On January 1, 2019, the Act was revised as the Community Care for 
Persons with Developmental Disabilities Act, 50 ILCS 835 (0.05–14). 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the Champaign County Board for Care and Treatment of
Persons with a Developmental Disability (CCDDB) is the advancement of
a local system of programs and services for the treatment of people
with intellectual/developmental disabilities, in accordance with the
assessed priorities of the citizens of Champaign County. 

Revenue raised through the levy is distributed, using a competitive
application process, to community-based organizations serving
Champaign County residents who have intellectual/developmental
disabilities (I/DD). Because most organizations’ fiscal years align with
the state fiscal year, July 1 through June 30, and because many rely on
state funding, the CCDDB and other local funders use this as the
contract period (or “Program Year”), allowing for clear, uniform
financial reporting and increased accountability. These CCDDB funds
are allocated as Contributions and Grants expenditures, near 92% of
the total budget. 

Some activities contributing to the local system are undertaken outside
of the agency services which are budgeted as Contributions & Grants.
Other strategies by which the CCDDB promotes a local system include:
information and referral through the call service 211; Cultural and
Linguistic Competency technical assistance and training; monthly
presentations and learning opportunities for service providers and
interested parties; anti-stigma awareness through social media,
website, and events; projects with UIUC student groups and instructors;
promotion of the work of artists and entrepreneurs with disabilities;
collaborative community needs assessment to understand the priorities
of Champaign County citizens; and a large annual disAbility Resource
Expo event with searchable, comprehensive online resource guide. Per
an Intergovernmental Agreement between the CCDDB and the
Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB), these activities are
co-funded and paid as a share of the CCMHB’s administrative costs,
through Professional Services. The two boards also co-fund and share
authority over the I/DD Special Initiatives fund (formerly the “CILA
Facilities” fund) to offer a range of supports for people with complex
support needs. 

Please see http://ccmhddbrds.org for information on these supports,
agency programs currently funded by the CCDDB, funding guidelines
and financial accountability policy, Three Year Plan, allocation priorities
and timelines, and annual reports of the funded agencies’ aggregate
performance outcomes. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 
Recommended Practices, Core Services, and Innovative Supports. The
local “Employment First” collaboration is an innovation preparing
providers, families, and local businesses for community employment of
people with I/DD. Its most well-known product is the “Leaders in
Employing All People” (LEAP) certification and training. The CCDDB also
funds: customized employment and other employment supports; self-
advocacy groups; core services, including non-work and residential
options; and service coordination, planning, and linkage. Per the
intergovernmental agreement with the CCMHB, comprehensive care for
young children and their families is prioritized and funded, including
the use of evidence-based and recommended practices. Decreasing
provider capacity and workforce shortages present challenges across
the country, state, and county; CCDDB contracts help stabilize supports
for residents and their families. 

Responding to Community Input. Feedback from community members,
including people with I/DD and their loved ones, informs the Board’s
strategic plan and funding priorities, with common themes: the desire
for a full community life; stigma as a barrier; and difficulty accessing
services, including limited transportation, state/federal funding
limitations, and low awareness of services. For the agency contract year
July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, the CCDDB supports: independent living
and community employment programs; transformation of traditional
workshop to greater community integration; assisting young adults with
I/DD in the transition from high school; conflict free case management
and service planning for people who qualify for but do not yet receive
state funding; case management and clinical supports for people with
DD and behavioral health needs; transportation services; and two
workforce retention initiatives. Feedback from providers and board
members is used to revise the annual funding priorities and
requirements and to develop enhancements of the online application
and reporting system used by applicants and funded organizations. For
PY2024, priority categories are: Self-Advocacy; Linkage and
Coordination; Home Life; Personal Life; Work Life; Community Life;
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024117



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

13
Strengthening the I/DD Workforce; and Young Children and their
Families. The Three Year Plan for Fiscal Years 2022 through 2024, with
objectives specific to 2023, will inform future allocation priorities and
Board/staff practices. 

Workshops and Presentations. CCDDB staff coordinate a monthly
learning opportunity especially for case managers working with people
who have I/DD. Topics are determined by the group’s interest and
Board priorities. Workshops also offer continuing education units and
serve as networking opportunities. The target audience has expanded
to include other service providers, family members, stakeholders, and
agency financial staff, and topics are broadened to address various
interests and pressing needs. These continue as virtual meetings, with
in-person when appropriate and affordable. 

Cultural and Linguistic Competence. A coordinator with CLC
certifications in behavioral health and I/DD consults with providers to
improve access and engagement of underinvested communities. This
supports agencies’ quality improvement efforts and compliance with
State requirements, using the National Standards for Culturally and
Linguistically Appropriate Services in Health and Healthcare. 

Reporting of Service-Level Data. Programs report service-level data
through a HIPAA compliant online system introduced in 2017. CCDDB
staff are able to examine and report on utilization across programs as
well as per person served. 

I/DD Special Initiatives, formerly Community Integrated Living
Arrangement (CILA) Expansion. This collaboration with the CCMHB was
established to purchase and operate small group homes for people
who unable to secure these services in their home county. During 2019,
the CCMHB paid off the mortgages, and the Boards revised their
intergovernmental agreement to prepare for several possibilities. Due
to critical direct staff shortages, the homes were vacated and sold in
2021 and 2022. During 2023, the CCDDB will contribute its final $50,000
transfer, and the focus of the project will shift from housing to supports. 

Challenging the Stigma Associated with Intellectual/Developmental
Disabilities. Stigma is a barrier to services, funding, wellness, and full
community participation of those who have I/DD as well as of their
loved ones. The CCDDB supports community anti-stigma efforts,
including art shows, social media campaigns, traditional print and
online resource guides, community awareness events, trainings, and a
large disAbility Resource Expo. Board staff work with UIUC student
groups and local organizations to plan and support events to challenge
stigma and promote inclusion. 

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

Revenues
Property Taxes

400101 Property Taxes - Current 4,511,249 4,857,487 4,875,607 5,179,568

400103 Property Taxes - Back Tax 7,246 2,000 2,500 2,415

400104 Payment In Lieu Of Taxes 1,210 4,000 4,000 4,000

400106 Mobile Home Tax 3,039 0 3,000 3,000

Property Taxes Total 4,522,744 4,863,487 4,885,107 5,188,983
Misc Revenue

400801 Investment Interest 35,285 2,000 42,000 44,834

400902 Other Miscellaneous Revenue 0 5,000 5,000 5,000

Misc Revenue Total 35,285 7,000 47,000 49,834
Interfund Revenue

600101 Transfers In 6,908 4,000 4,000 7,000

Interfund Revenue Total 6,908 4,000 4,000 7,000
Revenues Total 4,564,938 4,874,487 4,936,107 5,245,817
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024118



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

14
Fund Balance Goal: The CCDDB’s goal is to maintain a fund balance
adequate to meet contractual and administrative obligations, including
for agency services and supports, for six months. The majority of
expenditures are payments to contracts with terms July 1 to June 30,
and because the fund is lowest just before the first property tax
disbursement of the year in June-July, payment schedules are adjusted
to use as much of the fund as possible for these contracts. In recent
years, the fund balance at this lowest point of the year has been
between two and three months’ operating expenses.  

ALIGNMENT to STRATEGIC PLAN 

County Board Goal 1 – operate a high performing, open, 
and transparent County government. 
With statutory responsibility to plan and evaluate systems of services
and supports, CCDDB members and staff maintain involvement in state
and national trade associations and advisory committees to maximize
advocacy impact and contact with state and federal leadership. 

Funding decisions are made in open, properly noticed meetings.
Requests for funding are reviewed in open meetings prior to these
decisions. Public participation is welcomed at meetings and study
sessions. Members of the public may also offer input via Board staff by
email. 

Strategic plans and funding allocation priorities are reviewed and
approved annually during open meetings, with opportunities for public
and stakeholder input, and finalized before public Notification of
Funding Availability is made, 21 days prior to the application period. A
timeline for these and related activities is included in board packets,
online, and upon request. 

An online application and reporting system is maintained and updated
to support these functions, at http://ccmhddbrds.org. Members of the
public, agency representatives, stakeholders, and CCDDB members and
staff contribute to revisions of materials and online system. 

At http://ccmhddbrds.org are links to information about funded
programs and other activities, along with downloadable documents of
interest to agencies and the public. 

During open meetings, Board members engage in review of requests
for funding and in deliberations about final allocation decisions and
any related policies and procedures. 

Board members may use the online system to view: agency applications
for funding; agency reports of service activity, financial activity, CLC
progress, and annual performance outcomes; aggregate and sortable
data; announcements; and downloadable documents. Service reports
are made public, posted online or in board meeting materials,
summarized, and available upon request. 

Expenditures
Services

502001 Professional Services 358,450 407,118 400,501 425,371

502007 Insurance (Non-Payroll) 0 0 0 4,333

502025 Contributions & Grants 3,777,207 4,417,369 4,441,883 4,816,113

Services Total 4,135,657 4,824,487 4,842,384 5,245,817
Interfund Expense

700101 Transfers Out 50,000 50,000 50,000 0

Interfund Expense Total 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
Expenditures Total 4,185,657 4,874,487 4,892,384 5,245,817

Department Summary

2022
Actual

2023
Original

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

Fund Balance

2022
Actual

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

3,123,528 3,167,251 3,167,251

Expense Per Capita (in actual dollars)

2022
Actual

2023
Projected

2024
Budget

$22.56 $23.68 $25.48
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024119



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

15
All funded agencies use CCDDB approved expenditure and revenue
categories and accrual accounting. All are required to submit an annual
audit, financial review, or compilation report, depending on total
agency revenue level, prepared by an independent CPA firm. CCDDB
staff and consultant review these for alignment with standards and
determination of agencies’ financial standing. 

Board meeting schedules, agendas, minutes, and recordings are posted
for the public on Champaign County government’s website. 

Educational and collaborative opportunities advance the local system of
services and supports. 

Board staff have access to equipment facilitating office and remote
work. The transition to Office 365 and cloud-based storage was
completed in early 2022. 

County Board Goal 2 – maintain high quality public facili-
ties and roads and a safe rural transportation system. 
For fullest inclusion of people with I/DD, two small CILA group homes
were maintained at a high standard from 2015 through 2020. Due to
critical direct support staff shortages, the homes were vacated and sold
in 2021 and 2022. This County Board Goal is no longer addressed
directly, but rather through those portions of agency contracts covering
costs related to service provider facilities. 

County Board Goal 3 –promote a safe, healthy, just com-
munity. 
CCDDB staff participate with leadership of regional health and
behavioral healthcare providers and funders which have similar needs
assessment and strategic health plan mandates or practices, around the
shared goal of making this the healthiest community in the State. 

A 211 call service is co-funded with the United Way of Champaign
County. An accessible, comprehensive, searchable resource directory is
maintained at http://disabilityresourceexpo.org. Organizations share
updated resource information on behalf of the people they serve. 

CCDDB staff organize learning and networking opportunities for
providers of I/DD services, collaborating with the UIUC School of Social
Work to offer Continuing Education Units at no cost to participants. 

Case management services improve coordination and access to
benefits, services, and supports. A variety of services and supports are
funded and monitored which increase the self-reliance, well-being, and
community inclusion of people with intellectual/developmental
disabilities. 

With other units of government, educators, providers, stakeholders,
and advocacy organizations, the CCDDB collaborates on the planning of
wellness and independent living programming for people with
disabilities, innovative and recommended practices, and anti-stigma

initiatives, e.g., http://champaigncountyAIR.com and http://
disabilityresourceexpo.org. The disAbility Resource Expo supports
improving the health, inclusion, and quality of life of people with
disabilities. 

County Board Goal 4 – support planned growth to balance 
economic growth with natural resource preservation. 
In accordance with the establishing Act, the CCDDB advocates at the
state and national levels for and with people who use or seek I/DD
services. Staff participate in trade association activities and committees,
often advocating for other sources of revenue for services and for policy
changes to improve the impact and cost. 

The CCDDB seeks to understand the impact of changes to state and
federal programs, in order to make effective and ethical investments of
local funds. Independently and through collaboration, the CCDDB
pursues sustainable, efficient supports with other funders and
community partners. 

The majority of this fund is allocated to community-based organizations
to provide services, fostering a professional workforce which
contributes to the economy and character of the County. In addition,
effective programs allow people with I/DD and their families to thrive
and contribute to the community’s economy and culture. 

County Board Goal 5 – Maintain safe and accurate county 
records and perform county administrative, governance, 
election, and taxing functions for county residents. 
In accordance with the Community Care for Persons with Disabilities
Act, the CCDDB allocates funding as established through the original
referendum. 

Online records are maintained at the County government website and
http://ccmhddbrds.org. Paper and electronic files are also maintained
and stored as required by the Local Records Act. 

DESCRIPTION 
The CCDDB was established by referendum and operates under the
requirements of the Community Care for Persons with Disabilities Act
(50 ILCS 835). All funds shall be allocated within the intent of the
controlling act as codified in the laws of the State of Illinois. The CCDDB
is responsible for planning, coordinating, monitoring, evaluating, and
funding a comprehensive community-based system of intellectual/
developmental disabilities programs and services. 

Annually, applications for funding are assessed using CCDDB
established decision support criteria and are subject to the availability
of funds. The nature and scope of applications vary significantly and
may include treatment, early intervention, long term supports, service
coordination and advocacy, and family support. Providers demonstrate
financial and programmatic accountability, report on the impact of their
services, and implement cultural and linguistic competence plans, as a
condition of contracting with the CCDDB. Providers and Board staff
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024120



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

16
meet monthly for updates and coordination. Collaboration with other
government, funding organizations, peer networks, community-based
providers, and parent/youth groups are also within the purview of the
CCDDB and enhance evaluation and planning. 

OBJECTIVES 
Continue and expand virtual and technological options for engaging the
community and people with intellectual/developmental disabilities, to
align with relevant public health guidance and state and federal
mandates and policies. 

To identify best practices and overcome barriers experienced by
persons with I/DD, continue involvement with state and national
advocacy organizations and trade association I/DD committees, for
meetings, webinars, and learning communities. In addition to
increasing people’s engagement with their community through
integrated housing and employment, integrated non-work activities
connect people to resources, friends, and family. Innovations in support
of people’s aspirations and preferences are of value. 

Participate in collaborative efforts to identify local resources and needs.
Through trade association committees and opportunities, advocate for
Champaign County residents who have I/DD. 

For planning and evaluation, use PUNS and other data on the service
needs and outcomes of Champaign County residents with I/DD. Several
programs report service-level data, allowing for analysis of service
utilization and gaps. From those agencies accredited by the Council on
Quality and Leadership, Performance Outcome Measure interviews
may also inform the CCDDB’s planning. 

Strategize with service providers and stakeholders to address the
workforce shortage and remove barriers to expanding service provider
capacity and upholding client choice. 

With service providers, advocates, and stakeholders, plan for best
supports for people with challenging behavioral issues and complex
service needs. This effort may involve other Champaign County
government, law enforcement, and healthcare providers, as well as
non-traditional supports, in order to divert people with disabilities from
unnecessary incarceration, hospitalization, and institutionalization. 

Based on approved priorities and decision support criteria, issue
contracts for services and supports for people who have intellectual/
developmental disabilities. 

Monitor program and financial accountability for all contracts with
community-based organizations. 

Through monitoring and collaboration, assist with improving services
and access to services. 

Based on the findings of the regional collaborative health plan (IPLAN)
and community health needs assessment, implement FY2024 objectives
for the CCDDB Three Year Plan for FY2022-2024. 

Define and refine outcomes, using input from stakeholders and people
who use or seek services.  
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024121



Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053) 

17
Performance Indicators

Indicator
2022

Actual
2023

Projected
2024

Budget
Number of contracts awarded and executed for services or 
supports for people with I/DD

15 15 15

Number of persons served who have I/DD (services for 
young children were co-funded by CCDDB and CCMHB in 
PY21 but fully funded by the CCMHB in PY22 and PY23, 
lowering the total counts attributable to CCDDB funding.)

920 920 950

Number of state or federal advocacy activities or reports 
completed by Board members and Staff

15 12 12

Number of desk reviews conducted (number of reports 
submitted) per agency contract

20 (28) 21 (28) 21 (28)

Number of agency contract compliance reviews by CCDDB 
Staff, per contract

1 0.5 1

Number of improvements to the tracking or reporting of 
program performance, utilization, cultural and linguistic 
competence plans, or financial activities (i.e., an 
enhancement or revision implemented during the fiscal 
year)

4 2 2

Number of funded (not funded) agencies represented in 
collaborative meetings with board staff

6 (3) 7 (3) 7 (3)

Number of funded agency programs participating as target 
programs in the Evaluation/Outcomes project (new FY20)

1 2 2

Percentage of reports received in compliance with contract 90% 90% 95%
Champaign County, Illinois Budget Book FY2024122



Coming this Fall!

Saturday, October 28, 2023
11 am – 4 pm

Market Place Mall
2000 N Neil St, Champaign, IL 61820

A Family Friendly Event!
A project of the Champaign County Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Boards

www.disabilityresourceexpo.org
123



¡Viene en este Otoño!  

Sábado 28 de Octubre del 2023
11 am – 4 pm

Market Place Mall
2000 N Neil St, Champaign, IL 61820 

¡Un evento familiar!
Un proyecto de las Juntas de Salud Mental y Discapacidades del Desarrollo del Condado de Champaign 

www.disabilityresourceexpo.org
124



 S
p

o
n

so
rs

h
ip

 
O

p
p

o
rt

un
it

ie
s

A
 D

IS
A
B
IL
IT
Y

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

 E
xp

o
fo

r 
C

h
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
E

a
st

 C
e

n
tr

a
l I

lli
n

o
is

Sa
tu

rd
ay

, O
ct

ob
er

 2
8,

 2
02

3
11

 a
m

 –
 4

 p
m

M
ar

ke
t 
Pl

ac
e 

M
al

l
20

00
 N

 N
ei

l S
t, 

Ch
am

pa
ig

n,
 IL

 6
18

20

 Th
e 

D
IS

A
BI

LI
TY

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Ex

po
 is

 a
 

sp
ec

ia
l p

ro
je

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
Bo

ar
d,

 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

Jo
in

 U
s 

b
y 

L
e

n
d

in
g

 
Yo

u
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

!

Fo
r 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t
D

yl
an

 B
oo

t 
at

 (2
17

) 7
22

-5
28

1
or

 w
he

el
zo

th
un

de
r@

gm
ai

l.c
om

 
w

w
w
.fa

ce
bo

ok
.c
om

/r
es

ou
rc

ee
xp

o
w

w
w
.d

is
ab

ili
ty

re
so

ur
ce

ex
po

.o
rg

 Th
e 

Re
so

ur
ce

 B
oo

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ag
ai

n 
in

 2
02

3!
 P

ap
er

 c
op

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 t
o 

Ex
po

 v
is
ito

rs
 a

nd
 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

. A
n 

on
lin

e 
ve

rs
io

n,
 

w
ith

 a
 s

ea
rc

ha
bl

e,
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ire

ct
or

y 
ca

n 
be

 f
ou

nd
 a

t 
di

sa
bi

lit
yr

es
ou

rc
ee

xp
o.

or
g.

 
Sp

on
so

rs
 a

t 
th

e 
Br

on
ze

 L
ev

el
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

m
ay

 
re

ce
iv

e 
a 

fr
ee

 a
d 

in
 t
he

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Bo

ok
. 

Fe
at

ur
es

 a
nd

 d
is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

 A
ll 

Ex
hi

bi
to

r 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

- 
N

am
e 

of
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 
- 

Se
rv

ic
es

 P
ro

vi
de

d
 

- 
Co

nt
ac

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

• 
 A

dv
er

tis
em

en
ts

 fr
om

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
Ex

po

• 
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Bo
ok

s 
ar

e 
ha

nd
ed

 o
ut

 t
o 

al
l 

vi
si
to

rs
 t
o 

th
e 

ex
po

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

be
in

g 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 
th

e 
ye

ar
 t

o 
co

m
m

un
ity

 m
em

be
rs

 f
or

 o
ng

oi
ng

 u
se

, a
nd

 
se

rv
e 

as
 a

n 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 r
es

ou
rc

e 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

es
.

• 
An

 o
nl

in
e,

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 d
ire

ct
or

y, 
ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 E

xp
o 

Re
so

ur
ce

 B
oo

ks
, c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

at
: d

is
ab

ili
ty

re
so

ur
ce

ex
po

.o
rg

 R
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
 f

re
e

 a
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 2

0
2

3
 E

xp
o

 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
 B

o
o

k

 Ex
po

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Bo

ok
 A

d 
Si

ze
s:

D
ia

m
on

d 
Le

ve
l 

6.
5″

 w
 x

 9
″ 

h
Pl

at
in

um
 L

ev
el

  
6.

5″
 w

 x
 9

″ 
h

G
ol

d 
Le

ve
l 

6.
5″

 w
 x

 4
.2

5″
 h

Si
lv

er
 L

ev
el

 
3″

 w
 x

 4
.2

5″
 h

Br
on

ze
 L

ev
el

 
3″

 w
 x

 2
″ 

h

125



An
 I

m
po

rt
an

t 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
es

ou
rc

e
H

ow
 Y

ou
 C

an
 M

ak
e 

A 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 

 O
ur

 M
iss

io
n:

 T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
ll 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fro
m

 a
 w

id
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

a 
be

tt
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
 C

ha
m

pa
ig

n 
Co

un
ty

 a
nd

 E
as

t 
Ce

nt
ra

l I
lli
no

is.

• 
Th

e 
Ex

po
 o

ffe
rs

 C
ha

m
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 a

nd
 E

as
t 

Ce
nt

ra
l I

lli
no

is
 r
es

id
en

ts
 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 

le
ar

n 
m

or
e 

ab
ou

t 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
in

 o
ur

 
ar

ea
.

• 
Th

e 
Ex

po
 li

nk
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 t
o 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 t
o 

liv
e 

m
or

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
.

• 
Th

e 
Ex

po
 h

el
ps

 e
du

ca
te

 a
ll 

ci
tiz

en
s 

ab
ou

t 
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

ho
w
, t

og
et

he
r, 

w
e 

ca
n 

m
ak

e 
a 

di
ffe

re
nc

e!
• 

Th
e 

Ex
po

 o
ffe

rs
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 
al

te
rn

at
iv
e 

fo
rm

at
s 

(e
le

ct
ro

ni
c, 

la
rg

e 
pr

in
t, 

et
c.)

.
• 

Th
e 

Ex
po

 h
as

 b
ec

om
e 

re
co

gn
iz
ed

 a
s 

a 
cr

iti
ca

l 
ar

ea
 r
es

ou
rc

e 
ev

en
t.

E
ve

nt
 D

et
ai

ls
 

Th
is 

ex
ci

tin
g,

 a
nn

ua
l, 

co
m

m
un

ity
-w

id
e 

ev
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

on
 S

at
ur

da
y, 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
8t

h,
 

20
23

, f
ro

m
 1

1 
am

 –
 4

 p
m

 a
t 
M

ar
ke

t 
Pl

ac
e 

M
al

l 
in

 C
ha

m
pa

ig
n,

 IL
, a

nd
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
up

 to
 8

5 
ex

hi
bi

to
rs

, n
ew

 t
re

nd
s 

an
d 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

, 
an

d 
lim

ite
d 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t. 

Li
ke

 u
s 

on
 T

w
itt

er
, I

ns
ta

gr
am

 a
nd

 
Fa

ce
bo

ok
. W

e’
ll 

br
ag

 a
bo

ut
 o

ur
 

sp
on

so
rs

 o
n 

so
ci

al
 m

ed
ia

.

 Th
e 

Ex
po

 is
 a

 fa
m

ily
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 e

ve
nt

 b
rin

gi
ng

 
to

ge
th

er
 m

an
y 

so
ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
ge

nc
ie

s, 
m

ed
ic
al

 
se

rv
ic
e 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
pr

ov
id

er
s, 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 
gr

ou
ps

, a
nd

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
, t

ha
t 
w

ill
 

an
sw

er
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 fo
r 
Ch

am
pa

ig
n 

Co
un

ty
 

an
d 

Ea
st

 C
en

tr
al

 Il
lin

oi
s 

re
sid

en
ts

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

su
pp

or
ts

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.

Th
ro

ug
h 

yo
ur

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

le
ad

 t
he

 w
ay

 in
 c

re
at

in
g 

th
e 

m
os

t 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
ex

po
 in

 E
as

t 
Ce

nt
ra

l 
Ill

in
oi

s. 
To

ge
th

er
, w

e 
ar

e 
m

ak
in

g 
a 

di
ffe

re
nc

e!
 

Th
an

k 
YO

U
!

Si
x 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

le
ve

ls 
ar

e 
of

fe
re

d 
an

d 
ca

n 
be

 
m

on
et

ar
y 

or
 in

-k
in

d 
su

pp
or

t. 
Su

pp
or

te
rs

 m
us

t 
pl

ed
ge

 t
he

ir 
sp

on
so

rs
hi

p 
by

 t
he

 d
ue

 d
at

e 
to

 
re

ce
iv
e 

fu
ll 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t. 

D
ue

 d
at

e 
fo

r 
A

LL
 c

op
y 

is
 O

ct
ob

er
 6

, 2
02

3.

D
ia

m
on

d
 L

ev
el

 ($
10

00
+

)
• 

 A
ll 

be
ne

fi t
s 

of
 G

ol
d 

Le
ve

l, 
pl

us
...

• 
 Lo

go
 o

n 
fro

nt
 c

ov
er

 o
r 
ba

ck
 c

ov
er

 o
f E

xp
o 

Re
so

ur
ce

 B
oo

k 
• 

 Fu
ll 

pa
ge

 a
d 

(p
re

m
iu

m
 p

la
ce

m
en

t) 
in

 t
he

 
Ex

po
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Bo
ok

• 
 Lo

go
 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

on
 D

ia
m

on
d 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

sig
ns

 a
t 
ce

nt
ra

l l
oc

at
io

n 
at

 E
xp

o
• 

 C
om

pa
ny

/o
rg

an
iz
at

io
n 

na
m

e 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

in
  

pu
bl

ic
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

w
he

ne
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le

P
la

ti
n

u
m

 L
ev

el
 ($

50
0-

$9
99

)
• 

Al
l b

en
efi

 ts
 o

f G
ol

d 
Le

ve
l, 

pl
us

...
• 

 Yo
ur

 lo
go

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 m

ai
n 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t 
sig

n 
at

 c
en

tr
al

 lo
ca

tio
n 

at
 t
he

 E
xp

o
• 

Fu
ll 

pa
ge

 a
d 

in
 t
he

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Bo

ok

G
ol

d
 L

ev
el

 ($
30

0-
$4

99
)

• 
 Li

st
ed

 a
s 

sp
on

so
r 
on

 m
ai

n 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

em
en

t 
sig

n 
at

 c
en

tr
al

 lo
ca

tio
n 

at
 E

xp
o

• 
 A

 1
/2

 p
ag

e 
ad

 in
 t
he

 E
xp

o 
Re

so
ur

ce
 B

oo
k

• 
 O

ne
 c

om
m

er
ci
al

 b
oo

th
 s

pa
ce

 if
 d

es
ire

d.
 

Re
ta

il 
sa

le
s 

ar
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

. (
In

cl
ud

es
 a

 
6’

 T
ab

le
—

ad
jo

in
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

is
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

$2
00

. 

Si
lv

er
 L

ev
el

 ($
15

0-
$2

99
)

• 
 A

 1
/4

 p
ag

e 
ad

 in
 t
he

 E
xp

o 
Re

so
ur

ce
 B

oo
k

B
ro

n
ze

 L
ev

el
 ($

10
0-

$1
49

)
• 

 B
us

in
es

s 
Ca

rd
 s

iz
ed

 a
d 

in
 t
he

 E
xp

o 
Re

so
ur

ce
 B

oo
k

F
ri

en
d

s 
L

ev
el

 (u
n

d
er

 $
10

0)
• 

Ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t 
le

tt
er

 Bo
ot

h 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
is
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 d
is
ab

ili
ty

-
re

la
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 O
N

LY
.

R
E

T
U

R
N

IN
G

 IN
 2

0
2

3
:

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

 P
R

E
S

E
N

TA
T

IO
N

 S
P

A
C

E

4
5

 m
in

u
te

 t
im

e
 s

lo
ts

, o
n

 E
xp

o
 d

a
y,

 a
re

av
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 a

 f
ir

st
-c

o
m

e
 b

a
si

s

C
o

st
s:

D
ia

m
o

n
d

 le
ve

l —
 F

re
e

   
   

   
   

 P
la

ti
n

u
m

 le
ve

l —
 $

1
0

0

   
   

   
   

 G
o

ld
 le

ve
l —

 $
2

0
0

126



 

PY2023  

4th Quarter  

Service Activity 

Reports 
 

for I/DD programs funded by 

the Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board 

and Champaign County Mental Health Board 

127



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: CCRPC - Community Services

Program: Decision Support PCP Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 07/21/2023 by JMCCANN

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 50 300 200 320

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

11 104 70 45

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
Outreach events and Individual Education Plans within the transition consultant program reduced during quarter 4 due 
to the end of school year. Though total outreach events were low, the turnout for attendees (or service contacts) was 
beneficial and is on target for the quarter. During quarter 4 and the totality of PY23, staffing has been at a deficit. 
However, the program is fully staffed entering into PY2024, with high expectations for positive forward movement. 

1 of 1

128



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Community Choices, Inc. DDB

Program: Customized Employment Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/25/2023 by CCCOOP

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

2 743 0 5 1030

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
2 CSEs in Q4: Jettie Rhodes Neighborhood Day (6/2023), TPC Family Informational Event (this was actually in March, 
2023, but we forgot to report it in Q3 reports)

743 claims were reported via the online claims reporting system.

0 NTPCs

5 new TPCS were reported in Q4

1030 direct hours were reported via the online claims reporting system.

1 of 1

129



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Community Choices, Inc. DDB

Program: Inclusive Community Support (Com Living) Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/25/2023 by CCCOOP

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 4 3539 15 30 4100

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

3 123 2 2 59

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
3 CSEs in Q4: Jettie Rhodes Neighborhood Day,  TPC Family Informational Event (this was actually in March, but we 
forgot to report it in our Q3 reports), CU Care App conversation

123 service contacts for personal development classes were recorded in Q4. 480 claims for TPCs were reported via the 
online claims system.

2 new NTPCs were recorded in Q4. NTPCs include personal development class participants.

2 new TPCs were opened in Q4.

59 direct hours were recorded for Q4. Direct hours is time spent planning and implementing personal development 
classes. 614 hours with TPCs were reported via the online claims system.

1 of 1

130



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Community Choices, Inc. DDB

Program: Self-Determination Support Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/25/2023 by CCCOOP

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

2 854 15 0 452

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
2 CSEs in Q4:
TPC Family Instructional Event (this was actually in March of 2023, but we forgot to report it in Q3)
Jettie Rhodes Neighborhood Day

854 total SCs were recorded in Q4. (519with members with disabilities; 335 with family members)

15 new NTPCs were recorded in Q4. (Of the 15 new NTPCs, 6 were members with disabilities and 9 were family 
members)

452 direct hours were recorded in Q4.

1 of 1

131



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Clinical Services Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 2 10 6 59

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

1 7 6

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
Community Service Events: In April, DSC staff shared information about services, including clinical supports, at the 
Autism Walk.

Individual Info: Seven individuals received two types of clinical services. 

Service/Screening Contacts: There were seven screening contacts this quarter. 1. Team concerned as there had been an 
increase in aggressive behavior and threats of self-harm. Did not connect well with Promise Counselor. Carle refused to 
see due to poor follow through in the past. Would work best with a counselor who specializes in LGBTQ issues. 
Appointment secured at Elliott Counseling Group (ECG) and individual has attended several sessions. 2. Team requesting 
counseling services. Had a counselor in the past, but she retired. Carle told him the wait would be 12+ weeks. Dealing 
with more immediate issues and unable to wait that long. Also needed a female counselor. Unable to secure 
appointment with female counselor at Promise. Referred to ECG and has attended a few appointments. 3. Individual 
requested psychiatry services in pursuit of interventions to help decrease her anxiety. Has been part of the DSC practice 
in the past with current psychiatrist. Does not feel comfortable with Rosecranse support at this time and wait list at 
Carle is at least three months. Secured appointment with psychiatrist in less than a month through DSC Clinical services. 
This is a new service as they are already open for counseling. 4. Referred for a psychological evaluation in order to gain 
more information regarding his diagnosis as well as best ways to support him through DSC. 5. Referred for a 
psychological evaluation in order to gain more information regarding his diagnosis and best ways to support him through 
DSC services. 6. Referred for a psychological evaluation due to previous assessments being several years old, changes in 
his family support, and changes in his level of functioning.  7. One individual moved back into Champaign County and 
continued with arranged counseling with preferred provider.

Update on Community Access: Based on feedback from individuals and families, as well as members of the Champaign 
County Behavioral Workgroup, access to providers that take Medicaid is still limited in our community. Access to 
counselors that have experience with the needs of LGBTQ+ population is still limited. Reached out to three providers 
and did not receive calls or emails despite multiple messages left. DSC Clinical Services secured a new counselor who is 
seeing individuals that need ongoing therapy after their counselor retired in February. Psychological evaluations began 
with our recently contracted psychologist this quarter.

1 of 2

132



Update on Clinical Wellbeing Assessment: The Clinical Wellbeing assessment was sent out to a total of 32 individuals 
during the last year. Twenty-four assessments were returned (19 had scores of five, four had scores of four, and one had 
a score of three.) Did not send to the individuals whose counselor retired. Will send to them next fiscal year if 
established with a new provider through clinical services.

Technology Training/Access Update: Telehealth is used less frequently than before, however, continues to be an option 
for some individuals. Most state they prefer in-person sessions. One counselor still does sessions primarily through 
telehealth. Psychiatry utilizes telehealth options for guardians who can’t attend the appointment in person and this 
hybrid approach to the appointment seems to work well for all involved.

Extra Reporting Time: Ten hours total this quarter. Seven hours of clinical time for billing, reporting, scheduling, 
quarterly summaries, and discussions regarding psychiatry and counseling practices. Three hours 
coordinating/discussing screening contacts.

2 of 2

133



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Community Employment Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 2 15 88

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

1 4 5

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
In addition to job development and offering support to those working, the Employment Specialists came together to 
develop a group open to individuals employed in the community to encourage a healthy work-life balance. Employment 
Plus meets to bring together individuals with the intention of supporting each other, learning from each other and 
having fun. The group is only a few months old but has enjoyed bowling together and attending an outdoor event in 
Urbana listening to a band. Members are communicating with each other and with Employment Specialists to plan the 
next get-together.  Members are interested in not only community activities but also learning about topics like how to 
deal with a challenging work environment, relaxation tips, and internet safety.

Supported employment continues at multiple work sites, including Hessel Park Church, The Independent Media Center, 
Advanced Medical Transport and the Champaign Park District.

1 of 1

134



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Community First Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 2 5 50 50

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

1 7 2 6

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
The fourth quarter was filled with wonderful opportunities for people to experience and learn new things. The Anime 
Group planned a trip to Indianapolis to attend the Indiana Comic Con. At the convention, group members were able to 
participate in panel discussions focusing on Japanese animation, art, and storytelling. The shining moment of the 
convention was a meet and greet with a famous anime voice actor. This group is comprised of several people who had a 
prior interest in Japanese animation, and a few that were interested in exploring something new. By the end of the 
group all participants held the same interest and long-lasting connections were made. 
Other groups that created a thriving environment for shared interests were Movie Buffs, Role Play and Fan Club, as well 
as Basketball/Video Games. Also offered on the foundation of promoting shared interests was Women’s Group. This 
group is made up of several women who were seeking a safe space to discuss matters of importance as well as exploring 
topics of advocacy. 
Opportunities for community connection through wellness included Health Matters, Zumba, Water Walking, and Hiking. 
Zumba and Water Walking were classes offered at the Stephen’s Family YMCA and included the participation of 
community members in an integrated class. New this session was Crazy 4 Sports, a group designed to explore 
opportunities in our community to play various sports. The group played field hockey in Hessel Park, utilized Dodd’s 
soccer fields, and learned the basics of volleyball on the University of Illinois campus. 
Through our mid-group surveys, we consistently heard that volunteering is a strong interest across the program. Due to 
the feedback, we expanded the offering of Salt and Light volunteering to include an additional day and also volunteered 
at the Moore’s Rescue Ranch. 

1 of 1

135



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Community Living Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 6 0 78

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

3 3

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
Community Living staff provide assistance with budgeting, medical appointments, shopping, and home maintenance. 
This assistance is hands-on and happens in the community or at the individuals' homes. Community Living staff also 
continue to provide education and training in the use of technology to promote independent living. This includes 
teaching individuals to use pharmacy websites/apps for calling in medication refills, ordering groceries online, using the 
MTD phone app to map out bus routes, and utilizing patient portals to track and schedule medical appointments. 

All of the participants in Community Living access their communities – banking, shopping, and enjoying community 
events as they desire.  For those who want, they can also join in planned events called Community Experiences.  This is 
where staff and individuals plan specific activities.  This quarter a group enjoyed putt-putt golf and dining at a local 
restaurant. 

Three new individuals joined the program this quarter.   

1 of 1

136



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Connections Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 5 0 12 25

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

3 1 5

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
        The Crow served as a venue for the Boneyard Arts Festival this year, bringing in nearly 500 visitors throughout the 
weekend. During the festival, products made by Crow artists were available for sale. Products were also available for 
purchase at the Ebertfest Art Show in April. An AIR Art Show was hosted at the Crow on May 20th.

Groups offered at the Crow this quarter focused on helping participants to hone 
in on their talents and develop as artists. The Photography group took full advantage of the beautiful weather and 
snapped shots of local parks, wildlife, and architecture. This group has continued to grow their skills since its inception; 
some participants have taken what they learned and put it into practice on their own time.  

Art Potpourri continued this quarter after success in the recent past. Led by a 
professional artist, this group’s focus is the development of each artist’s interests and talents. Some of the completed 
works from this group will be printed in limited numbers and featured at upcoming fairs and festivals. Also led by a 
professional artist was the Printmaking group. In this group, participants learned how to block print with found and 
created items. These were then used to print scenes and abstract images. 

Drawing continued and expanded on the content offered in previous group 
cycles. The participants explored self-portraits, still life, and even Japanese Manga concepts. The Manga art had good 
feedback from participants and plans to expand that to a full course are in the works. 

Jewelry making also continued with new participants. In this group, they have 
focused on using polymer clay to make beads and pendants, assembling bracelets and necklaces. These items will be 
available for sale at the Crow in the future.

1 of 1

137



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Employment First Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 25 0 0

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

23

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
Employer Trainings during fourth quarter totaled 23.
17 LEAP Trainings
• Champaign-Urbana Nursing & Rehab-61874; Attended a virtual LEAP training on 
04/03/23. The Activities Director attended.
• Circle of Friends Adult Day Center – 61820; Attended a virtual LEAP training on 
04/03/23. The Director of the facility attended.
• CRIS Healthy Aging – 61822; Attended a virtual LEAP training on 04/20/23. The 
Memory Care Program Manager and two interns attended.
• AAA Life Insurance Agency – 61820; Attended a virtual LEAP training on 
05/18/23. One Licensed Insurance Agent attended.
• Sam’s Club – 61822; Attended a virtual LEAP training on 05/18/23. The Training 
& Sales Manager attended. 
• Illini Insurance Agency, Inc. – 61874; Attended the LEAP training on 05/18/23. 
One Licensed Insurance Agent attended.
• Champaign County Fairgrounds – 61801; Attended the LEAP training on 
05/23/23. The Director of the fairgrounds attended.
• Curly Girl Productions, LLC – 61866; Attended the LEAP training in person on 
05/25/23. The owner of the business attended.
• The Villas of Holly Brook – 61866; Attended the LEAP training in person on 
05/25/23. The Community Relations Manager attended.
• The Village of Rantoul – 61866; Attended the LEAP training in person on 
05/25/23. The Village Administrator and one of the Public Officials attended.
• Lincoln’s Challenge – 61866; Attended the LEAP training in person on 05/25/23. 
The Public Relations Officer and two Cadets completed the training session.
• ET’s Downtown Rantoul; 61866 – Attended the LEAP training in person on 
05/25/23. One Manager attended the training session. 
• Rantoul Chamber of Commerce – 61866; Attended the LEAP training in person 
on 05/25/23. The Director of the Chamber attended.
• Credit Union 1 – 61866; Attended the LEAP training in person on 05/25/23. The 

1 of 3

138



Branch Manager attended the training session.
• Lanz Plumbing, Heating & Cooling, Inc – 61822; Attended the LEAP training in 
person on 06/05/23. The President, HR Specialist, and HVAC Manager attended the training session.
• Promise Healthcare – 61820; Attended the LEAP training virtually on 06/15/23. 
The VP of Administration and HR Generalist attended the training session.
• CVS – 61874; Attended the LEAP training virtually on 06/15/23. The Manager of 
the Savoy location attended.

    Six Frontline Staff Trainings
• City of Champaign – Equity & Engagement Department – 61820; Attended the 
Frontline Staff Training in person on 05/11/23. Members of the Equity & Engagement team joined the training session. 
• Urbana Park District (Aquatics Center) – 61802; Attended the Frontline Staff 
Training in person on 05/12/23. Multiple part-time & seasonal staff members attended the training session.
• Urbana Park District (Nature Center) – 61801; Attended the Frontline Staff 
Training in person on 05/22/23. A total of 23 Camp Leaders attended the training session.
• Urbana Park District (Phillips Recreation Center) – 61801; Attended the Frontline 
Staff Training in person on 05/30/23. A total of 10 members from the Arts Camp attended the training session.
• Urbana Park District (Athletics Camp) – 61801; Attended the Frontline Staff 
Training in person on 06/02/23. A total of 12 Camp Leaders/Camp Coordinators attended. 
• Bundles of Joy Learning Center – 61821; Attended the Frontline Staff Training in 
person on 06/16/23. 

This quarter the following LEAP trained businesses hired jobseekers through DSC or Community Choices: Coldwell 
Banker Realty, McDonalds, Urbana Park District, and Big Grove Tavern. During this quarter, 100 people in the community  
were introduced to the LEAP program via email, networking events, and visiting businesses (cold calling). Once 
businesses complete the LEAP training, they are contacted one month after the completion of the training. During the 
follow up conversation, the main focus is discussing the process of job carving. This quarter, the LEAP Program met with 
individuals from the following businesses to discuss job carving: Rapture Media; Lanz Plumbing, Heating, and Cooling; 
Village of Rantoul; Rector Construction; Keller Williams Realty; SafeWorks IL; and Urbana School District #116. 

The “Take the LEAP Podcast!” released a new episode which featured members from the Champaign-Urbana Special 
Recreation team. The episode discussed unconscious biases and the importance of challenging them. The podcast can 
be accessed on Spotify. 

This quarter, the LEAP Program presented to the U of I School of Social Work. This is the second time that the LEAP 
Program presented the training to a Social Work class at the U of I. As the relationship continues to grow, we hope to 
present to more classes.

The LEAP program continued to spread information about the Champaign County Directory of Disability-Inclusive 
Employers. Pamphlets were handed out to businesses and information was shared about the directory at networking 
events this quarter. A total of 65 people were introduced to the directory this month. Since the launch date, 50 
businesses have joined the directory. The LEAP Program purchased a domain this quarter for the new Champaign 
County Directory of Disability-Inclusive Employers website. Therefore, it will be easier for individuals to access the 
directory online. The website will be more accessible in terms of visual appearance and will offer more information on 
accessibility. Also, the new website will include the following: the about me section (Ashely and Maggie), history about 
the LEAP program, section for businesses, section for jobseekers, a list of LEAP trained businesses, resources section, 
and an area where jobseekers can tell us where they secured a job with a LEAP trained business. Once the directory is 
created, the LEAP Program will contact PIXO (local tech company) and have an accessibility audit done. Therefore, we 
know the website is ADA compliant.

2 of 3

139



3 of 3

140



Mental Health Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Family Development Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 15 200 0 655

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

5 101 156

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
Family Development had a busy quarter with developmental screenings. Increased partnerships and collaboration across 
Champaign County have resulted in more referrals for screening and service linkage for therapies. Additionally, Family 
Development offered numerous groups throughout the summer for parent-child networking, play, and support. Groups 
have led to increases in number of families and children served.

1 of 1

141



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Individual and Family Support Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 2 8 27 19

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

1 3 1 0

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
This grant supports people in day program and in intermittent direct support/respite services.
• Even though the individuals in the IFS day program continued to receive 1:1 
support throughout their day, an emphasis this quarter was to expand their participation with peers, both in-center and 
in the community.  Since joining more Community First and Community Day Services groups, their 1:1 staff members 
have noticed that a few participants are using more words, interacting more with friends, and following instructions 
more regularly.  Examples include one woman being able to identify the correct peer and give her an item when her staff 
member asked her to do so, another man approaching a friend and asking “wanna run?”, as they both take off sprinting, 
and another guy continuing to show more comfort joining small groups of friends in the community.
• One person continues to use his communication device to make his wants and 
needs known throughout his day and in different environments, and as noted, a few others are verbalizing more often 
and expanding their vocabulary as they continue to build trust with staff and interact more with friends.
• IFS participants were out and about this Spring, visiting: AMBUCs Park, Zahnd 
Park, Meadowbrook Park, Lake of the Woods, Lincoln Square Mall, Marketplace Mall, Harvest Market, Salt and Light, 
CVS, and Wal-Mart.

Respite services have enabled families to get a break, have additional experiences, and attend community events by 
having a respite provider to work with their son/daughter.  Families are appreciative of the support.

One family requested for their daughter to attend a U of I wheelchair camp.  This opportunity gave her daughter a fun 
recreational activity to participate with peers and learn new things.  Another request was for a much-needed activity 
chair for their daughter that had been denied twice by insurance.  This mother stated “It is amazing to see her sitting so 
straight and supported.  She uses her hands so much more to play with toys because she is supported in her trunk.”

1 of 1

142



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Service Coordination Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 2 70 33 280

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

1 9 1 10

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
Case Managers continue to ensure individuals are safe and have the supports they need.  This quarter Case Managers:
• Assisted in looking for a safe place for someone to live and supported them with 
documents required by the Housing Authority.
• Applied for Social Security benefits for someone due to lost income.  Also 
connected them to relevant community resources.  
• Along with other team members, assisted an individual who has had a broken 
air conditioner to advocate to their landlord and access the tenant union as well.    
• Assisted an individual with their vehicle and navigate related legal aspects. 
Provided support, researched resource options, and continued to build trust as this individual’s living 
situation/environment changes.

Case Managers continue to collaborate with other team members and the Independent Service Coordination Unit, 
assisting some guardians to better understand what guardianship is and means, restrictions as a last resort, alternatives 
to restrictions, as well as the rights of the people we serve. Education continues with guardians, parents, and clients on 
the HCBS settings rule that came into full implementation this year. 

1 of 1

143



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: Developmental Services Center

Program: Workforce Development and Retention Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 08/15/2023 by VICKIE2010

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 160

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

128

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
DSC staff greatly appreciate the retention and training bonuses! 

During 4th quarter six staff completed training and received a bonus and 122 staff received a retention bonus.  

John Raffaele, Director of Educational Services for the National Alliance for Direct Support Professionals (NADSP), 
conducted four different professional development sessions in May 2023.  Over 40 staff attended each of the four 
interactive sessions.
• Two 90-minute sessions on the Code of Ethics introduced the nine tenets of the 
profession which are also being highlighted in DSC’s monthly newsletter and further discussed in program meetings.  
• Two 3-hour sessions on the Culture of Competence were also presented in May. 
This training introduced 15 competency areas that guide the profession in supporting personal autonomy, access to 
integrated settings, informed choices and person-centered practices.  

DSC’s NADSP membership was shared with all staff so they can access trainings online, receive informative emails and 
have access to the NADSP Frontline Initiative newsletters. 

1 of 1

144



Developmental Disabilities Board

Quarterly Program Activity / Consumer Service Report
Agency: PACE, Inc.

Program: Consumer Control in Personal Support Period Fourth Quarter PY23
Submitted 07/19/2023 by SHERRY

Community 
Service Events 
(CSE)

Service / Screening 
Contacts 
(CS)

NON-Treatment Plan 
Clients
(NTPC)

 Treatment Plan 
Clients
(TPC)

Other

Annual Target 15 200 65 0 6

Quarterly Data 
(NEW Clients)

5 45 9 0 2

Continuing from Last 
Year (Q1 Only)

Comments:
PACE offered orientations via zoom and 1:1 appointments at PACE's office during this quarter to recruit PSWs. Due to 
the decrease inquiries of potential PSWs, PACE continues to do outreach activities, job postings and attending 
community events to attempt to recruit PSWs. PACE staff was part of the Champaign library job fair event.

No TPCs due to people being served through this funding are people seeking employment as PSWs and not consumers 
with I/DD. Continued collaboration is taking place with IRC, DSC, Community Choices, and CCRPC-ISC, in that they are 
referring individuals with I/DD and their family to PACE to hire a PSW that was oriented and put onto a registry through 
this funding.

PACE continues to reach out and attempt to collaborate with the  Illinois School of Social Work, Arc of Illinois, Family 
Matters, parent group at Community Choices, IRC, NAMI and DSC.

PACE continues to offer quarterly PSW advisories to provide an extra opportunity for consumers and PSWs to get 
connected and discuss topics about the PSW program. The PSW advisory also provides an opportunity to discuss topics 
to improve the employer/employee relationship. The last online PSW advisory occurred on, Friday, June 2, 2023.

PACE would like to note that during this quarter recruiting efforts was affected by potential PSWs not passing the 
background checks to be successfully added to the PSW registry. As a result, for this quarter there was two (2) potential 
PSWs that were not successfully added to the PSW registry

PACE also collaborated with Champaign library by attending the community job fair and Urbana High School for a 
disability awareness event at PACE.

For the Fourth Quarter PY23, PACE has sent out five (5) PSW referrals

1 of 1

145



 
PY2023 
Service  
Data  

Charts 
for I/DD programs funded by 

the Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board 

and Champaign County Mental Health Board 

 

 

146



CCRPC - Community Services
Decision Support Person $323,550 PY23
377 people were served, for a total of 3,280 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 2 3
Closed/Discharged 1 1
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 278 34% 1355 41%
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 92 11% 174 5%
With Person Served - On Site 355 43% 1552 47%
With Person Served - Off Site 92 11% 195 6%
Total 817 3280

2

1

278

92

355

92

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

3

1

1355

174

1552

195

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

147



Community Choices
Customized Employment $217,500 PY23
51 people were served for a total of3,741 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 18 47% 19 1%
Closed/Discharged 12 14
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 34 1002
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 42 111% 1401 37%
With Person Served - Off Site 39 103% 720 19%
With Person Served - On Site 32 84% 585 147%
Total 38 3741

18

12

34

42

39

32

N E W  C L I E N T

C L O S E D / D I S C H A R G E D

O N  B E H A L F  O F  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O F F  S I T E

O N  B E H A L F  O F  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O N  S I T E

W I T H  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O F F  S I T E

W I T H  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O N  S I T E

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

19

14

1002

1401

720

585

N E W  C L I E N T

C L O S E D / D I S C H A R G E D

O N  B E H A L F  O F  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O F F  S I T E

O N  B E H A L F  O F  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O N  S I T E

W I T H  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O F F  S I T E

W I T H  P E R S O N  S E R V E D  - O N  S I T E

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

148



Community Choices
Inclusive Community Support $193,874 PY23
33 people were served for a total of 2,103 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 10 11
Closed/Discharged 3 4
On behalf of Person Served - Off Site 11 150
On behalf of Person Served - On Site 32 529
With Person Served - Off Site 32 1096
With Person Served - On Site 26 124% 313 15%
Total 21 2103

10

3

11

32

32

26

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

11

4

150

529

1096

313

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

149



DSC
Clinical Services $184,000 PY23
55 people were served for a total of 1,140 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 9 9
Closed/Discharged 5 5
Coordination of Mental Health Services (Staff Hour) 26 #DIV/0! 165 14%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 53 326
With Person Served - Off Site 51 583
With Person Served - On Site 16 #DIV/0! 52 5%
Total 1140

9

5

26

53

51

16

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

New Client

Closed/Discharged

Coordination of Mental Health Services (Staff Hour)

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

9

5

165

326

583

52

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

New Client

Closed/Discharged

Coordination of Mental Health Services (Staff Hour)

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

150



DSC
Community Employment $435,000 PY23
95 people were served for a total of 6,989 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 33 33
Closed/Discharged 18 18
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 43 60% 636 9%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 74 103% 2340 33%
With Person Served - Off Site 70 97% 3767 54%
With Person Served - On Site 37 51% 195 3%
Total 72 6989

33

18

43

74

70

37

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

33

18

636

2340

3767

195

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

151



DSC
Community First $847,658 PY23
42 people were served, for a total of 27,408 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 11 13
Closed/Discharged 7 7
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 25 45% 259 1%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 40 71% 4906 18%
With Person Served - Off Site 36 64% 15,185 55%
With Person Served - On Site 37 66% 7038 26%
Total 56 27408

11

7

25

40

36

37

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

13

7

259

4906

15185

7038

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000 14000 16000

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

152



DSC
Community Living $536,000 PY23
77 people were served for a total of 12,023 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 31 31
Closed/Discharged 6 6
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 74 128% 3175 26%
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 74 128% 4671 39%
With Person Served - Off Site 51 88% 2849 24%
With Person Served - On Site 50 86% 1291 11%
Total 58 12023

31

6

74

74

51

50

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

31

6

3175

4671

2849

1291

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

153



DSC
Connections $95,000 PY23
31 people were served, for a total of 1,216 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 12 12
Closed/Discharged 15 15
With Person Served - Off Site 24 120% 1189 98%

20 1216

12

15

24

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

New Client

Closed/Discharged

With Person Served - Off Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

12

15

1189

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

New Client

Closed/Discharged

With Person Served - Off Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

154



DSC
Family Development $596,520 PY23 MHB
878 people were served for a total of 8,805 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 445 82% 445 5%
Closed/Discharged 437 437
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 539 99% 4356 49%
With Person Served - Off Site 310 57% 968 11%
With Person Served - On Site 4 10
Screening Outreach/Education (Staff hour) N/A #VALUE! 1218 14%
Staff Support & Development (Staff hour) N/A 1371
Total 543 8805

445

437

539

310

4

0

0

0 100 200 300 400 500 600

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

Screening Outreach/Education (Staff hour)

Staff Support & Development (Staff hour)

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

445

437

4356

968

10

1218

1371

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

Screening Outreach/Education (Staff hour)

Staff Support & Development (Staff hour)

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

155



DSC
Individual & Family Support $390,000 PY23
34 people were served for a total of 8,714 hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 7 10
Closed/Discharged 8 8
Coordination of IDS 19 57
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 8 9
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 31 57% 379 4%
With Person Served - Off Site 26 48% 7545 87%
With Person Served - On Site 9 17% 706 8%
Total 54 8714

7

8

19

8

31

26

9

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

New Client

Closed/Discharged

Coordination of IDS

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

10

8

57

9

379

7545

706

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000 7000 8000

New Client

Closed/Discharged

Coordination of IDS

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

156



DSC
Service Coordination $468,000 PY23
239 people were served, for a total of 5,866 hours 

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
New Client 27 11% 75 1%
Closed/Discharged 21 21
On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site 16 23
On Behalf of Person Served - On Site 223 91% 5359 91%
With Person Served - Off Site 29 12% 139 2%
With Person Served - On Site 55 22% 249 4%

246 5866

27

21

16

223

29

55

0 50 100 150 200 250

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

75

21

23

5359

139

249

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

New Client

Closed/Discharged

On Behalf of Person Served - Off Site

On Behalf of Person Served - On Site

With Person Served - Off Site

With Person Served - On Site

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

157



PACE
Consumer Control in Personal Support $27,367 PY23
34 PSWs registered, 9 Successful Matches, & 862 total program hours

Service Activity # of People % of total # of Hours % of total
PSW Registry Completion 34 #DIV/0! 34 4%
Successful Match 9 12
Reporting/Planning (Staff hour) 1 #DIV/0! 778 90%
Program Promotion (staff hour) 38

0 862

34

9

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

PSW Registry Completion

Successful Match

PARTICIPANTS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

34

12

778

38

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

PSW Registry Completion

Successful Match

Reporting/Planning (Staff hour)

Program Promotion (staff hour)

HOURS PER SERVICE ACTIVITY

158



From the Interim CEO

Hello everyone,

As we have already communicated to you, our CEO, Chris Workman, 

passed away on April 28, 2023. He cared very deeply about the future 

of PATH, the staff, and, most importantly, the communities that we 

serve. He talked about his vision for PATH until the very end of his life 

and will be missed by all of us. 

Over the past quarter, we have made some exciting new additions to 

our executive team at PATH:

• Ryan Opalk (Assistant Director of Database Services). Ryan comes 

to PATH with database administration and team leadership 

experience and is working closely with Chris Baldwin to learn all 

aspects of running our Database Department. Ryan will regularly 

be copied on communications with Chris as part of that process.

• Dr. Adam Carter (Assistant Director of 988 Call Center Services). 

Adam brings previous experience as an assistant professor of 

counseling at Northern Illinois University and as the National 

Clinical Director with the National Alliance for Children’s Grief. 

Though he is working with our Director of Call Center Services, 

Kevin Richardson, he is specifically responsible for 988 Call Center 

operations, not 211 services.

• Dr. Pedro Santana (Director of Homeless Services). Pedro brings a 

long history of executive leadership in business and academia, 

with a particular focus on non-profits. Like me, he is a transplant 

from the East Coast.
159



Warmest Regards,

Martha Evans

Chief Operating Officer 

& Executive Director, 

Human Resources.

From the Interim CEO, contd.

• Katherine Qian (Administrative Assistant). Katherine recently 

relocated to Central Illinois from Shanghai, China, where she 

gained valuable experience in call center administration and 

employee engagement. She will be assisting the entire Executive 

Team with a wide range of tasks.

We are also sad to inform you that Kevin Richardson, our Director of 

Call Center Services and PATH’s longest-tenured employee, relocated to 

San Diego at the beginning of this month to accompany his wife as she 

makes a career-related move. However, Kevin will continue to work 

remotely and to be as available as ever, meaning no change in 

procedure with regard to you or any of our partner agencies.

Lastly, PATH has recently undertaken some new initiatives to improve 

employee engagement, especially with regards to diversity, equity, and 

inclusion. This is important not only to ensure that our staff are well 

represented and cared for, but also because well-trained and thriving 

staff provide better service to callers. DEI is a part of our overall 

strategy, and you will learn more about our intentional efforts to 

strengthen our organization through talent, culture, community, and 

investment over the next fiscal year.

We’re always confident to see what the future brings and look forward 

to our continued partnership with you to provide 211 service to your 

area!

160



Table of Contents

Champaign County

United Way 211 Report

2nd Quarter
April 1st – June 30th, 2023

Overview
✓ Total Calls

✓ Total Texts

✓ Total Spanish Calls

✓ COVID-19 Contacts

Contact Stats
✓ Call Time

✓ Contact Person Type

✓ Caller Demographics

✓ Referral Source

Contact Needs
✓ AIRS Problem Needs

✓ Unmet Needs

✓ Top 10 Agency Referrals

✓ Follow-Ups

Call Center
✓ InQueue and Handle Time

✓ Service Level

✓ Abandons

✓ Success Stories

✓ Contact Density

Links/Resources

161



597
Contacts

Champaign 

County 

Total 211 Contacts

Overview

Last Year

Last Quarter

All of PATH 211

644
Contacts

Champaign 

County 

This Quarter

1,031
Contacts

Champaign

County

9,566
Contacts

PATH 211

162



Total 211 Texts

Overview, Cont.

This Quarter

Last Year

Last Quarter

All of PATH 211

6
Texts

Champaign 

County 

8
Texts

Champaign 

County 

26
Texts

Champaign 

County 

162
Texts

PATH 211

163



Total Spanish 211 Calls

Overview, Cont.

Last Year

Last Quarter

All of PATH 211

4
Spanish 

Calls

11
Spanish 

Calls

Note: Previous quarterly 

reports did not break this 

information down by month.

This Quarter

12
Spanish 

Calls

169
Spanish 

Calls

164



COVID-19 Contacts

Overview, Cont.

Last Year

Last Quarter

All of PATH 211

11
Contacts 

related to 

COVID-19

44
contacts 

related to 

COVID-19

This Quarter

66
Contacts 

related to 

COVID-19

5
Contacts 

related to 

COVID-19

Note: Unless otherwise requested, we will stop including this page in future reports.

165



Call Time

Contact Stats

All of PATH 211

Chart describes the distribution of calls received during 4 different 

time periods:

1. Early morning hours (12am-8am)

2. Morning business hours (8am-12pm)

3. Afternoon business hours (12pm-5pm)

4. After hours (5pm-12am)

Local

166



Contact Person Type

Contact Stats, Cont.

All of PATH 211

Local

Contact Person Type describes the 211 caller and their role in contacting I&R services. 

90.9%
Individual

89.6%
Individual

Note: We have improved our report categories. This quarter shows data gathered 

using both the old (red) and the new (dark blue) categories. The “Individual” 

category remains unchanged. Next quarter’s report will only use the new categories.

167



Caller Demographics

Contact Stats, Cont.

All of PATH 211

Local

Note: “Other” includes callers who self-

identified as trans or non-binary. 

“Unknown” includes the categories Refusal 

to Answer, Not Recorded, and Unknown.

168



Referral Source

Contact Stats, Cont.

All of PATH 211

Local

Referral source refers to how the caller found out about 211 services. 

Note: This report includes new categories, altering the data distribution 

compared to last quarter’s report.

39.4%
Already 

knew about 

the line

33.4%
Already 

knew about 

the line

169



AIRS Problem Needs

Contact Needs

All of PATH 211

This chart describes how AIRS Problem Needs were reported across all 

contacts. There are often multiple needs recorded per call. Colors do not 

correspond to the same categories in both charts.

• AIRS= The Alliance of Information and Referral Systems. (AIRS home page)

• AIRS Problem Needs = List of national categories for I&R problem/needs is a 

means to organize the incredibly wide range of inquiries handled by I&R 

services and to provide for the consistent and credible reporting of 

community needs across jurisdictions.

Note: Champaign County had 1,504 total 211 contacts and all of PATH had 

43,004 total 211 contacts.

Local

170

https://www.airs.org/i4a/pages/index.cfm?pageid=1


Unmet Needs

Contact Needs, Cont.

Each item on this list is a term in the Database that the 211 Call Center 

was unable to refer to a caller. Common reasons for that include:

- The caller already contacted the relevant agency but was ineligible.

- The caller already tried to contact the relevant agency without success.

- The type of service does not exist in the caller’s area.

182
total

unmet 

needs

19
distinct 

categories

182 total unmet needs were recorded in 

Champaign County across 19 distinct categories. 

Refer to the “Raw Data” link at the end of the 

report for the complete list.

171



239
distinct 

agencies

3,291
total 

referrals

Top Agency Referrals

Contact Needs, Cont.

This chart displays the top agencies by referral count. Refer to the “Raw 

Data” link at the end of the report for the complete list.

3,291 total referrals were made in Champaign 

County across 239 distinct agencies. 

172



1,804 
Follow-ups

Follow-Ups

Contact Needs, Cont.

Note: PATH performed follow-up calls for a portion of the calls received. 

This chart breaks down the result of each follow-up attempt. 

221 
Follow-ups

All of PATH 211

Local

173



8:47
Last Quarter

97.79%
Last Quarter

0:14
Last Quarter

95.96%
Last Quarter

8:55
Last Quarter

0:18
Last Quarter

Service Level = Percentage of calls answered within 90 seconds. Goal = 80%.

InQueue and Handle Time

8:53
Average Handle Time

0:15
Average InQueue Time

Call Center

The following data corresponds to all of PATH 211, 

rather than to specific counties or areas. 

InQueue Time = how long a caller waits to speak with an agent.

Handle Time = how long it takes to resolve a 211 call.

Service Level

96.90%
Service Level

9:22
Average Handle Time

0:16
Average InQueue Time

English Spanish

96.71%
Service Level

English Spanish

174



0:45
Last Quarter

0:09
Last Quarter

3.72%
Last Quarter

12.60%
Last Quarter

380
Last Quarter

78
Last Quarter

PATH Success Stories  

The following are real 211 callers and their stories 

from this quarter. Certain details have been 

changed to preserve their anonymity.  

Call Center, Cont.

Abandons

Abandons = Calls where the caller hung up while waiting to speak with an agent.

Abandon Time = How long a caller waits to speak to an agent before hanging up.

Abandon Rate = Percent of calls that are abandons. Goal = 9%.

0:46
Average Abandon Time

413
Abandons

0:14
Average Abandon Time

61
Abandons

3.41%
Abandon Rate

11.25%
Abandon Rate

English Spanish

175



Story 1

Caller was requesting assistance applying for an 

extension on her taxes. She is the legal guardian of 

twin boys and receives SNAP but was unsure how 

to maximize tax-related assistance for childcare. 

We referred her to a pro-bono tax-accountant, but 

she was also generally lonely and thankful to have 

someone with whom she could discuss the 

struggles of raising two young boys on her own 

with limited income.

This was not her first call to 211. She spoke highly 

of previous experiences with the crisis line and 

mentioned having several friends who regularly 

sought referrals through 211. She expressed 

gratitude both for the referral and for the volunteers 

in general. In her social circle, 211 volunteers have 

a shining reputation for being welcoming, 

judgment-free, and helpful.
176



Caller recently lost access to her therapist due to 

missing too many appointments. She has been 

dealing with conflict with her boyfriend but 

doesn’t have many other friends to talk to after 

having dropped out of high school for medical 

reasons. Even though she likes her boyfriend, she 

was upset about him cheating on her and retaliated 

against him in a similar manner. She also feels like 

he is too controlling with regards to her alcohol or 

marijuana intake, though he has been putting more 

effort into the relationship recently.

Throughout the conversation, our operator 

discussed the importance of self-care, both 

physically and emotionally. Even though the 

caller’s mom is supportive, the caller said she felt 

better after talking with our operator.

Story 2

177



Call Center, Cont.

Contact Density

This map reflects contact volume from each county with respect to that 

county’s population. In effect, callers in the darker purple areas are calling us 

more frequently while callers in the darker orange areas are calling us less 

frequently. The red boundary indicates PATH’s 211 service area.

Note: The legend 

indicates “Calls per 

Population per Year”. 

That is, if Q2 data were 

constant for a whole 

year, the top category 

would receive at least 

one call for every 50 

inhabitants that year.

178



We’re trying to make these reports more 

efficient and useful for you! Please follow the 

link below to share your thoughts with us about 

any aspect of these reports (information, layout, 

or anything else that comes to mind!).

https://forms.gle/DypSH5nYxiPYu5G96

Feedback Survey

179

https://forms.gle/DypSH5nYxiPYu5G96


PATH Inc. Website 

• https://www.pathcrisis.org/ 

211 Counts

• https://uwaypath.211counts.org/  

PATH Inc. Online Database 

• https://www.navigateresources.net/path/ 

AIRS 

• https://www.airs.org/i4a/pages/index.cfm?pageid=1 

Raw Data

• https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1I0wNzo6JPR43-vCOS1hCcC8pjYZ_E3_-

QUsrJZgnSeI/edit#gid=36914255 

Chris Baldwin
Director of Database Services

cbaldwin@pathcrisis.org

309-834-0590

Links/Resources

Submitted by:

Links/Resources

Ryan Opalk
Assistant Director of Database Services

ropalk@pathcrisis.org

309-834-0580180

https://www.pathcrisis.org/
https://uwaypath.211counts.org/
https://www.navigateresources.net/path/
https://www.airs.org/i4a/pages/index.cfm?pageid=1
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1I0wNzo6JPR43-vCOS1hCcC8pjYZ_E3_-QUsrJZgnSeI/edit#gid=36914255
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1I0wNzo6JPR43-vCOS1hCcC8pjYZ_E3_-QUsrJZgnSeI/edit#gid=36914255
mailto:cbaldwin@pathcrisis.org
mailto:ropalk@pathcrisis.org


C
C

D
D

B
 L

ia
is

o
n

 C
h

o
ic

e
s

 2
0

2
3

Vic
ki
 N

is
w
an

de
r

G
eo

rg
ia
na

 S
ch

us
te

r

Ann
e 

R
ob

in Kim
 W

ol
ow

ie
c-

Fis
he

r

Sus
an

 F
ow

le
r

C
U

 A
u

ti
s

m
 N

e
tw

o
rk

C
C

R
P

C
 (

H
e

a
d

 S
ta

rt
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
)

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

h
o

ic
e

s

D
S

C
 (

4
th

 T
h

u
rs

.,
 5

:3
0

 p
m

)

P
A

C
E

E
x

p
o

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s

 (
v

a
ri

o
u

s
)

181



DRAFT 
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 

DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES BOARD (CCDDB) 
GUIDELINES FOR BOARD-TO-BOARD PARTICIPATION 

 
CCDDB members may serve as liaisons to funded agencies and community collaborations, 
to further educate the Board of organizations’ goals, accomplishments, and problems. 
Contact through liaisons is one way of fostering positive relationships with organizations. 
The following guidelines are meant to clarify the CCDDB member’s responsibility and 
expectations while acting as a liaison to contracting agencies: 
 
1. The liaison should attend an orientation to the agency. The session should include the 

agency’s mission, goals, and programs as well as the ways in which CCDDB funds are 
used by the agency. Attendance at board meetings is encouraged as the liaison’s schedule 
permits. All liaison participation is optional. 

 
2. CCDDB members are not members of the provider agency board. We neither vote nor 

perform functions typically associated with members of the agency’s board. 
 
3. You may expect to be notified of all meetings and to receive board packets and any 

appropriate written information given to the provider agency’s board members in 
preparation for their board meetings. 

 
4. Questions may be answered about CCDDB processes as appropriate, but no 

commitments about CCDDB policy or action should be made. Opinions on issues may 
be given but be clear that it is your individual opinion and not the official position of the 
CCDDB. 

 
5. Multiple CCDDB members may share a liaison assignment, each informing the agency 

when they will attend an agency board meeting and taking care to comply with Open 
Meetings Act (OMA).   

 
6.  Information received during the provider agency’s board meeting that is of special 

interest or concern may be reported back to the CCDDB. 
 
7.  It is appropriate to ask questions and seek additional information while attending an 

agency’s board meeting. 
 
8. Honor any confidentiality requirements associated with board assignments, i.e. proprietary 

information learned while attending an agency board meeting.  
 
9. Avoid any possible conflict of interest situations related to your board-to-board 

assignment. Questions about potential conflict of interest situations should be directed to 
the CCDDB executive director. Legal opinions will be sought through Champaign 
County State’s Attorney’s Office or the Board’s independent legal counsel. 

 

 

182


	b6d4d3ab-2225-4666-ab19-38335ecd1c93.pdf
	9edad7b7-e72a-459b-8b2a-c9e811cd4a4b.pdf
	Agency and Program acronyms commonly used by the CCDDB
	Glossary of Other Terms and Acronyms

	88083bdc-d7b1-4194-ae9f-c9d13e7e82b0.pdf
	______________________________________________________________________________
	CHAMPAIGN COUNTY BOARD FOR CARE AND TREATMENT OF PERSONS WITH A DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY (CCDDB)
	MEETING
	Minutes July 19, 2023
	This meeting was held at the Brookens Administrative Center
	1776 E. Washington St., Urbana, IL  61802
	and with remote access via Zoom.
	9:00 a.m.

	33b7957a-4fc9-4efa-a9ec-10ad034b92b1.pdf
	MENTAL HEALTH - MENTAL HEALTH B
	IDD SPECIAL INITIATIVES - CILA
	DEVLPMNTL DISABILITY FUND - DEV

	4730a9fd-b59d-41a5-92b7-e8022d0de8ec.pdf
	All Pies

	c82807b7-6ea5-4125-9050-b182886c749b.pdf
	PY2024 APPROVED

	e5d72ee8-b90b-4086-98c4-dc961226abc2.pdf
	CCHS-CU Early -DSCFD PY24
	CCRPC-CUAN PY24
	Community Choices PY24 Page One
	Community Choices PY24 Page Two
	DSC PY24 Page One
	DSC PY24 Page Two
	IDDSI DSC-PACE PY24

	75008047-c9ca-4243-92f3-ec6579672f0a.pdf
	Special Revenue Funds
	Mental Health Board Special Revenue Fund (2090-053)
	I/DD Special Initiatives (2101-054)
	Developmental Disabilities Board Special Revenue Fund (2108-050)





